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CMB Wing Lung Bank (the “Bank”), founded in 1933, is
among the oldest local Chinese banks in Hong Kong. The
Bank has at all times followed its motto of “Progress with
prudence, service with sincerity” in providing personalised

and sincere service to customers.

Originally established as an indigenous Chinese bank, The
Bank developed and expanded as Hong Kong underwent
a remarkable economic transformation after the War. The
Bank has since established itself as one with contemporary
outlook and comprehensive services, catering to the needs of
the business community and playing a part in the generally

vibrant economy of Hong Kong.

China Merchants Bank successfully took over the Bank in
2008. The Bank has become a member of China Merchants
Bank Group. The Bank changed its named to CMB Wing
Lung Bank in 2018, which marked the tenth anniversary of
acquisition by China Merchants Bank.

China Merchants Bank was incorporated in Shenzhen in
1987 as the first share-holding commercial bank wholly
owned by corporate legal entities in China. After years
of effort, China Merchants Bank, now listed in Shanghai,
China and Hong Kong, has transitioned itself into a leading
national commercial bank with total assets over RMB6,740
billion and operating over 1,800 banking business outlets by
the end of December 2018.

China Merchants Bank and the Bank will further strengthen
the collaboration and foster the establishment of a cross-
border financial service platform so as to offer a wider range

of quality products and services to customers.
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Corporate Information

HEY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
HHE Chairman
HHF TIAN Huiyu, MP4
Rl#EHR Vice-Chairman
ZEk LI Hao, MBA4
E Director
¥ S ZHU Qi, Msc
A XU Shiqing, PhD
B LIU Jun, MBA
Rk ZHANG Cheng, MB4
R PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS
AR ZHU Jiangtao, MSc
* JE R *CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP, B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD
* B TR *LIU Erh Fei, MB4
* S I *KWOK Lam Kwong Larry, SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA
=SR] *WANG Qixin, MBA
*RIR *CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, BBs, JP
* WL BT HEE * Independent Non-executive Director
& Secretary
KA CHU Hon Yee Iva, BA(Hons), MCG, ACIS, ACS
BHERGY Management Committee
¥ S ZHU Qi, Msc
GiaeL XU Shiqing, PrD
B LIU Jun, MBA
Dt 32 FENG Xuefeng, PhD
B ZE G Strategy Committee
HEF (EF) TIAN Huiyu (Chairman), mP4
¥ S ZHU Qi, Msc
LR PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS
I AR LIU Erh Fei, MB4
SN KWOK Lam Kwong Latry, SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA
ESEE WANG Qixin, MB4
BB ERERREE Remuneration and Appraisal Committee
FOHREE (EE) KWOK Lam Kwong Larry (Chairman), SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA
ZETE LI Hao, MB4
SR ZHANG Cheng, MB4
ot e CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP, B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD
FIEH WANG Qixin, MB4
RAR CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, BBS, JP
RUBEZRE Nomination Committee
ORI (EJF) KWOK Lam Kwong Larry (Chairman), SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA
ZETE LI Hao, MB4
PR PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS
Jaot CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP, B4, FCA, FCP4, FHKIoD
FIEH WANG Qixin, MB4

RIR CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, BBS, JP
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Audit Committee

CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP, B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD
PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS

ZHU Jiangtao, MSc

LIU Erh Fei, MB4

KWOK Lam Kwong Larry, SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA
CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, BBS, JP

Risk Committee

CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen (Chairman), BBS, JP
PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS

ZHU Jiangtao, MSc

CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP, B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD
KWOK Lam Kwong Larry, SBS, JP, LLM, FCPA

LIU Erh Fei, MB4

EXECUTIVES

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer
ZHU Qi, Mse

Executive Director, General Manager & Chief Risk Officer
XU Shiqing, PhD

Executive Director & General Manager
LIU Jun, mMB4

General Manager
FENG Xuefeng, PrD

Chief Financial Officer
CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Information Officer & Chief Operating Officer
WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Assistant General Manager

CHAN Kin Hing, MBA, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS
SONG Lihua, Msc

HE Xin, MB4

REGISTERED OFFICE

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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Board of Directors

Mr TIAN Huiyu, mP4

Chairman

Mr Tian has been the Chairman of the Bank since May 2015. He is the
Executive Director, President and Chief Executive Officer of China
Merchants Bank Co., Ltd. (“CMB”). He obtained his bachelor’s degree
in infrastructure finance and credit from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics and his master’s degree in public administration from
Columbia University. He is a senior economist. He has been the business
executive of retail banking at the head office and general manager of
Beijing Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation (“CCB”) from
March 2011 to May 2013. He served consecutively as deputy general
manager of Shanghai Branch of CCB, head and general manager of
Shenzhen Branch of CCB from December 2006 to March 2011, vice
president of Bank of Shanghai from July 2003 to December 2006
and vice president of Trust Investment Branch of China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd from July 1998 to July 2003. He is currently
also the Chairman of CMB International Capital Holdings Corporation
Limited and CMB International Capital Corporation Limited, the Vice-
Chairman of Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company Limited
and the Chairman of Board of Supervisors of National Association of
Financial Market Institutional Investors.

Mr LI Hao, MB4

Vice-Chairman

Mr Li has been a Director and the Vice-Chairman of the Bank since
October 2008 and July 2015 respectively. He obtained a master’s degree
in Business Administration from the University of Southern California
and is a senior accountant. He joined CMB as Executive Assistant
President of the Head Office in May 1997. He was the General Manager
of the Shanghai Branch of CMB from April 2000 to March 2002. He
has been an Executive Vice President of CMB since December 2001,
and the Chief Financial Officer since March 2007. He has served as an
Executive Director of CMB since June 2007, and the First Executive
Vice President of CMB since May 2013. He obtained a master’s degree
in Business Administration and is a senior accountant. He is also the
Chairman of China Merchants Fund Management Co. Ltd., the vice
chairman of Shenzhen CMB Qianhai Financial Asset Exchange Co. Ltd,
a Director of Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company Limited, the
Vice President of Payment & Clearing Association of China, Director
and Vice President of Asset Management Association of China, and a
Director of National Internet Finance Association of China.
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Mr ZHU Qi, Msc

Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

Mr Zhu has been the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Bank since September 2008 and October 2008 respectively. He
also sits on the board of principal subsidiary companies of the Bank.
He obtained a master’s degree in Statistics from Zhongnan University
of Finance and Economics and is a senior economist. He is a Director
of CMB International Capital Corporation Limited and The Hong Kong
Chinese Enterprises Charitable Foundation Limited. He had been the
Executive Vice President of CMB from December 2008 to January 2019.
He had worked in the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China from
1986 to 2008, and had been the Deputy General Manager and General
Manager of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Hong Kong
Branch, the Director, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited and the
Chairman of Chinese Mercantile Bank.

Dr XU Shiqing, prD

Executive Director, General Manager & Chief Risk Officer, Alternate
Chief Executive Officer

Dr Xu joined the Bank as the General Manager and Chief Risk Officer
in October 2016, and has been the Executive Director of the Bank
and the Director of all principal subsidiary companies of the Bank
since November 2016. He was a doctor of philosophy in Business
Administration of the Southern California University and a senior
economist. He joined CMB in 1993. He held various positions such
as the executive assistant in the General Officer of the Head Office,
Assistant General Manager of International Business Department of
the Head Office, Deputy General Manager of International Business
Department, Deputy General Manager of Offshore Business Department
of the Head Office, Assistant General Manager of Fuzhou Branch,
Deputy General Manager of Planning and Treasury Department of Head
Office, Person-in charge of Custodian Department of the Head Office,
General Manager of Planning and Treasury Department and Custodian
Department of the Head Office, General Manager of Planning and
Treasury Department of the Head Office, General Manager of Strategic
Development Department and Overseas Department of the Head Office,
President & Chief Executive of Hong Kong Branch, the Secretary of the
Board of Directors and one of the joint company secretaries of CMB.
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Mr LIU Jun, mMB4

Executive Director, General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive Officer
Mr Liu joined the Bank as the General Manager and Chief Risk Officer
in January 2013, and has been the Executive Director of the Bank since
April 2013. He is also a Director of all principal subsidiary companies of
the Bank. He ceased to act as Chief Risk Officer in October 2016. Prior
to joining the Bank, he held various senior executive roles including
General Manager of Operations Management Department of the Head
Office, General Manager of Accounting Department of the Head Office
and Vice President of Hong Kong Branch of CMB.

Mr ZHANG Cheng, mB4

Non-executive Director

Mr Zhang has been a Director of the Bank since September 2017. He
graduated and obtained a master’s degree in business administration
from the Renmin University of China. From August 1993 to February
2014, he served as Deputy General Manager and General Manager
of the departments of Shenzhen Branch and Beijing Branch of China
Construction Bank Corporation. In April 2014, he joined CMB and
served as Deputy General Manager and General Manager of Human
Resources Department of the Head Office of CMB.

Mr PENG Jiawen, BEcon, BCS

Non-executive Director

Mr Peng has been a Director of the Bank since July 2018. He graduated
from Zhongnan University of Economics. In September 2001, he
joined CMB and served as Manager and Senior Manager of Planning
& Treasury Department of the Head Office, Assistant General Manager
and Deputy General Manager of Planning & Financial Department of
the Head Office, Deputy General Manager and General Manager of
Retail Integrated Management Department, Deputy General Manager
and Vice President of Retail Finance Headquarters of the Head Office,
Vice President of Retail Finance Headquarters and General Manager
of Retail Credit Department of the Head Office and General Manager
of Zhengzhou Branch of CMB. He has been the General Manager of
Asset Liabilities Management Department and Investment Management
Department of the Head Office of CMB since January 2018.
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Mr ZHU Jiangtao, MSc

Non-executive Director

Mr Zhu has been a Director of the Bank since July 2016. He obtained
a master degree in Economics. He joined CMB in January 2003. He
had served as the General Manager of Qingshanhu Sub-branch of
Nanchang Branch, General Manager of Risk Management Department
of Guangzhou Branch, General Manager of Credit Department of
Guangzhou Branch, Assistant General Manager of Guangzhou Branch,
Deputy General Manager of Guangzhou Branch, General Manager of
Chongqing Branch and General Manager of Credit Risk Management
Department of the Head Office of CMB from January 2003 to
February 2016. He has been the General Manager of Risk Management
Department of the Head Office of CMB since March 2016.

Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, JP. B4, FCA, FCPA, FHKIoD

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Chow has been a Director of the Bank since June 2014. He is a
fellow and council member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, chairman of its Hong Kong Chapter and a former
chairman of its Commercial Board. He is a past president of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and chaired
the HKICPA’s Corporate Governance Committee and Professional
Accountants in Business (PAIB) Committee before elected president.
He had been a Deputy Chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors from 2001 to 2008 and the Chairman of the PAIB Committee
of the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) from 2006 to
2008. He is currently a core member of the OECD/World Bank Asian
Corporate Governance Roundtable, a Non-executive director of the
Urban Renewal Authority, a member of Council and of the Court of
The University of Hong Kong, an Independent Non-executive Director
of Melco International Development Limited, Redco Properties Group
Limited and China Aircraft Leasing Group Holdings Limited, an
advisor of the Business and Professionals Federation of Hong Kong,
and was a Standing Committee member and convenor of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference — Zhejiang Province, and
was a member of the Election Committee of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and an expert advisor of the Accounting
Standards Committee of the Ministry of Finance, the People’s Republic
of China. Prior to entering the commercial sector, he spent 11 years
working for two major accounting firms, Deloitte Haskins & Sells and
Price Waterhouse (as they were then known), respectively in London and
Hong Kong. Mr Chow was appointed a Justice of Peace by the Chief
Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region in July
2008. Mr Chow was also an awardee of the Directors of the Year Award
2010 in the non-executive director of listed companies (SEHK — Hang
Seng Index Constituents) category, awarded by the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors.
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Mr LIU Erh Fei, mB4

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Liu has been a Director of the Bank since October 2013. He is a
founding partner and CEO of Asia Investment Fund Management Ltd
as well as a director of Cindat Capital Management Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of 21Vianet Group, Inc.,
Huabao Finance (Finance Section of Baosteel), Jiangxi Copper Company
Limited, Qingling Motors Co., Ltd and United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited. From 1999 to 2012, he worked at Merrill Lynch (later Bank of
America Merrill Lynch) in various capacities including Chairman of the
China Region, Chairman of Investment Banking for Asia and Head of
Private Equity for Greater China. In 2006, he received the Investment
Banker of the Year in Asia award from “Banker” magazine. From 1987
to 1999, he worked in a number of investment and commercial banks
including Goldman Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Credit
Agricole Indosuez. He graduated from Harvard Business School in
1987 with a master degree in Business Administration, from Brandeis
University with a bachelor of arts degree in Economics in 1984 and
from Beijing Foreign Languages University with a diploma in English in
1981.

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry, S8S, /P

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr Kwok has been a Director of the Bank since May 2015. He is
currently a partner of Kwok Yih & Chan. He graduated from the
University of Sydney, Australia with double bachelor’s degrees in
accounting/economics and laws respectively as well as a master’s degree
in laws. He also obtained the Advanced Management Program diploma
from the Harvard Business School. He is qualified to practise as a
solicitor in Hong Kong, Australia, England and Wales and Singapore.
He is also qualified as a Chartered Accountant in England and Wales
and a CPA in Hong Kong and Australia. He has served regularly on
Government boards and committees. He is currently a member of the
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Securities and
Futures Commission and the Hospital Government Committee of the
Prince of Wales Hospital. Previously, he was the Chairman of the
Transport Advisory Committee, Chairman of the Independent Police
Complaints Council, Vice-Chairman of the Consumer Council, Convenor
of the Disciplinary Appeals Committee of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and Chairman of the Traffic Accident Victims Assistance
Advisory Committee.
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Mr WANG Qixin, MB4

Independent Non-executive Director

He has been a Director of the Bank since January 2017. He obtained a
master’s degree in Business Administration from National University
of Singapore. He had worked in China Construction Bank Corporation
from August 1983 to April 2015 and served as the Secretary of Duty
Room of Head Office, Deputy Head and Head of International Business
Department of Head Office, Deputy Chief Representative of Tokyo
Representative Office, Chief Representative of Singapore Representative
Office, Deputy General Manager of Singapore Branch, Deputy General
Manager of International Business Department of Head Office, Chief
Representative of Sydney Representative Office and General Manager of
Sydney Branch of China Construction Bank Corporation. He had been
the Non-executive Director of China Construction Bank (New Zealand)
Limited from November 2014 to August 2016.

Professor CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen, BBs, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Bank since September 2017.
He is President of The Education University of Hong Kong (“EdUHK”),
holding the concurrent title of Chair Professor of Public Policy. Prior to
joining the EQUHK, he was Dean and Chair Professor of Finance, School
of Business at the Hong Kong Baptist University. He also holds Advisory
and Adjunct Professorships at Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao
Tong University respectively. He is highly active in academic research,
focusing on corporate governance, corporate social responsibility and
financial market development, and publishes widely in international
refereed journals. He has actively participated in a wide range of
community services. He is Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of
the Asian Bond Fund (ABF) Hong Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority and the Transport Advisory Committee, and
Member of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.
He is also an Independent Non-executive Director of the Changsheng
Fund Management Co. Ltd. In past years, He held a number of other
public offices. He was the Chairman of the Social Innovation and
Entrepreneurship Development Fund Task Force, the Hong Kong
Committee for Pacific Economic Cooperation, the Consultation Panel
of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority and the Nursing and
Midwifery Sub-Group of the Steering Committee on Strategic Review
on Healthcare Manpower Planning and Professional Development. He
also served as a member on the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee of
the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and the Commission on Poverty as
well as Part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit. He was awarded
the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009 and was appointed as Justice of the
Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR Government. He was also bestowed the
Distinction of “Officier dans 1’Ordre des Palmes Academiques” by the
French Government in 2017.
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Executives

FENG Xuefeng, PiD

General Manager & Alternate Chief Executive Officer

Dr Feng joined the Bank as the General Manager in December 2017. He
obtained a doctorate degree in Finance from Nan Kai University and is
a senior economist. He joined CMB in 1997 and served as the General
Manager of Credit Business Department and International Business
Department of Xian Branch, Deputy Director of Document Center of
International Business Department of the Head Office, General Manager
of International Business Department of Shenzhen Branch, General
Manager of Shekou Sub-branch of Shenzhen Branch, Qianhai Branch
preparation Chief Team Leader of Shenzhen Branch, Deputy General
Manager and Assistant General Manager of Hong Kong Branch of CMB.

Mr CHEUNG Chung Keung, MSc, MBA, FCCA, CPA, FRM

Chief Financial Officer

Mr Cheung joined the Bank in 1991 and was appointed as an Assistant
General Manager in 2007. He is a Certified Public Accountant. He
has been the Chief Financial Officer since 2010. He is also a member
of the board of Sea Wing Investments Limited and CMB Wing Lung
(Nominees) Limited.

Mr WANG Zhiqiang, MSc

Chief Information Officer and Chief Operating Officer

Mr Wang joined the Bank in 2009 as an Assistant General Manager. He
was appointed as the Chief Information Officer in 2010. He has been the
Chief Information Officer and Chief Operating Officer since 2015. He is
also a member of the board of Hongnet Limited.

Ms CHAN Kin Hing, MBA4, LL.B. (Hons), ACIS, ACS

Assistant General Manager

Ms Chan joined the Bank in 1981 and has been appointed as an Assistant
General Manager since 2010. She is primarily responsible for the Bank’s
credit risk management affairs and loan asset portfolio monitoring.

Ms SONG Lihua, msc

Assistant General Manager

Ms Song joined the Bank as an Assistant General Manager in 2011. She
is primarily responsible for the Bank’s financial institutions business,
cash management business, corporate communications and strategic
development & overseas business management.

Mr HE Xin, MBA

Assistant General Manager

Mr He joined the Bank in 2014 and has been an Assistant General
Manager since 2016. He is primarily responsible for the Bank’s corporate
banking and global financing businesses. He is also a member of the
board of CMB Wing Lung Capital Limited and CMB Wing Lung Equity
Investment Management (Shenzhen) Limited.
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Chairman’s Statement

T HFR
TIAN Huiyu Chairman

2018 marked the 10th Anniversary of acquisition of the Bank by China
Merchants Bank (“CMB”). The Bank changed its name to CMB Wing
Lung Bank so as to unify its brand identity with CMB, thus fostering
the integration of market brand with CMB and strengthening the brand
identity as a wholly-owned subsidiary of CMB. Upon renaming as CMB
Wing Lung Bank, the Bank has embarked on a new journey together
with its customers to achieve new milestone.

In the past year, CMB Wing Lung Bank fulfilled the requirements of
regulatory authorities and the Board of Directors, overcame numerous
adverse factors, steadily advanced the collaboration with CMB, enhanced
key competencies and accelerated the pace of reform.

During the year, the Bank maintained an excellent development trend.
Firstly, the Bank’s business scale expanded steadily. At the end
of 2018, the total assets amounted to HK$314.5 billion, representing
an increase of 5.3% as compared with that at the end of 2017. Total
advances to customers, including trade bills, increased by 4.0% to
HKS$162.5 billion as compared with that at the end of 2017. Total
deposits from customers increased by 4.9% to HK$221.3 billion
as compared with that at the end of 2017. Secondly, the Bank’s
profitability maintained steady. During the year, the Bank achieved
a consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of HK$3,219 million.
Net interest income was HK$4,765 million, representing an increase
of 31.0% as compared with that of 2017. The net interest margin for
the year was 1.74%, up by 34 basis points as compared with that for
the year of 2017. Return on average assets and return on average
equity (excluding additional equity instruments) were 1.05% and
9.39% respectively. Thirdly, the Bank’s risk resistance capability
strengthened continuously. The non-performing loan ratio, including
trade bills, was 0.52%, reflecting a sound asset quality. As at the year
end of 2018, total capital ratio, tier 1 capital ratio and common equity
tier 1 capital ratio were 18.0%, 14.8% and 12.7% respectively, all above
statutory requirements.
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In 2018, the Board of Directors properly performed its duties, further
enhanced its decision making capability. The Board achieved remarkable
results in corporate governance, collaboration with CMB, business
innovation, enhancing management capability and promoting corporate
culture.

To optimise procedures and policy as well as strengthen corporate
governance, the Board revised the Article of Association, the procedural
rules for the Board of Directors and the terms of reference of the
specialised committees. The Procedures for Appointment, Election
and Removal of Directors was established. Non-executive director and
members of specialised committees were appointed. The Board deployed
comprehensive management teams in major business lines. Moreover,
the Board further promoted the optimisation of the internal structure and
reporting line of the Bank by the management.

To adhere to customer-centric, the Board fostered collaboration with
CMB. The Board continued to strengthen business referral, cross-selling
and resources sharing between CMB and the Bank, so as to capitalise on
the advantages of cross-border coordination. The Bank also unified its
brand identity with CMB so as to enhance brand image and strengthen
market competitiveness.

To cater for the needs of customer, the Board accelerated
business innovation. The Board grasped the opportunities arising
from the increase in demand for cross-border financial service and
comprehensively enhanced its cross-border financial service capability.
The Board also further diversified and optimised the cross-border
corporate financial products system including cross-border settlement,
crossborder financing, asset management and structural wealth
management. Great emphasis was placed on building a cross-border
financial service platform for small and medium banks. To meet the
wealth protection and inheritance needs of high-end customers in Hong
Kong and the Mainland, the Board emphasized providing tailored wealth
management solutions and exclusive value-added services to high-net-
worth customers so as to enable them to achieve “Prosperity Across
Generations”, by leveraging on globalised vision and local knowledge.
To align with CMB’s leading position in mobile financial services in
the Mainland and the development of FinTech, the Board focused on
customer experience and fostered the upgrading of the mobile application
“CMBWLB Wintech”, providing quality, convenience and efficient
banking services to customers.

To improve systems as well as enhance management capability, the
Board devoted much effort to improve its various risk management
measures and system comprehensively, and continued to put forward
the consolidated reporting management and joint implementation of the
new capital accord requirements with CMB. Great emphasis was placed
on strengthened the core capabilities of IT system, channel building,
performance appraisal system and customer service. The Bank was
committed to build a proactive, harmonious and progressive culture.
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To develop cultural spirit and promote corporate culture, the Board
established “Solidarity, professionalism, progressivism, meticulosity”
and “Progress with prudence, service with sincerity” as the corporate
culture. The Board set up a specialised working group which was
responsible for the arrangement of the risk and cultural reforms,
communication of risk compliance culture messages to all staff and
promotion of the spirit of corporate culture.

The above achievements and progress of work were attributable to
the dedicated service of all our staff, the guidance of the regulatory
authorities and the valuable support from CMB, our customers, fellow
bankers as well as all walks of life. On behalf of the Bank, I would like
to express my sincere gratitude to all of our friends for their dedication
and continued support.

In 2019, the global economy was complicated and filled with
uncertainties. China-US Trade conflicts will affect the growth of global
trade. Monetary tightening in certain advanced economies will lead to
more volatility in global financial market. With the introduction of the
trade measures, coupled with the waning of fiscal stimulus, US economic
growth is expected to decelerate. Brexit and Italy’s fiscal situation may
adversely affect the eurozone economy. The Chinese economy will see
changes amid overall stability and concerns over changes with increased
downward pressure. The Central Government will adhere to the general
working guideline of seeking progress while maintaining stability and
further advance supply-side structural reform. In the light of uncertain
external environment, the operating environment will be challenging
for the Bank. However, the persistent financial reform in China, the
acceleration in the shift of driver of economic growth, the continuous
optimisation of the economic structure as well as the growth in demand
for cross-border financial services will bring new opportunities to CMB
and the Bank for further business development and collaboration.

Under the new situation, the Bank will continue to strengthen its
collaboration with CMB, enhance synergy effects and build an integrated
cross-border financial service platform. Meanwhile, the Bank will strive
to put forward business transformation, foster strategic reform, enhance
overall management and operational efficiency as well as strengthen core
competencies. Moreover, the Bank will offer quality services and achieve
better results to reward the community for their valuable support.

We sincerely look forward to the continuous support from the public in
the years ahead.

TIAN Huiyu
Chairman

21 March 2019
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Chief Executive Officer

In 2018, Hong Kong economy attained above-trend growth in 2018,
with real Gross Domestic Product increased by 3%. In view of the
slackened growth of the global economy and China-US trade conflicts,
Hong Kong’s total export of goods recorded decelerated growth in
the fourth quarter and moderate growth in 2018 as a whole. Domestic
demand stayed broadly resilient. Increase in labour earnings boosted
private consumption expenditure to grow notably for the year as a
whole. However, the growth momentum of private consumption slowed
gradually during the year given asset market corrections. The labour
market remained in a state of full employment and tightened further,
marked by sustained growth in wages and earnings. With the expectation
of US interest rate hikes and the trade conflicts, the local stock market
saw significant adjustment. The residential property market was buoyant
in the first half of 2018, but underwent consolidation in the second half.
The inflation rate rose slightly given continuous economic growth.

Externally, the growth momentum of the global economy remained
strong in the first half of the year, but weakened in the second half of
the year. Thanks to the expansionary fiscal policy, the US economy
recorded significant growth. The US Federal Reserve hiked interest rate
four times and scaled back its balance sheet as scheduled during the
year. Economic growth in euro area slowed amid global trade frictions
coupled with political and economic issues. Emerging market economies
continued to grow remarkably, but most of their growth pace slowed
in the latter part of the year. Most of the Asian economies recorded
steady growth, but their growth momentum eased in the second half of
the year given increasing external economic pressures. The Mainland
sustained economic operation within an appropriate range, adopted new
development philosophy, fostered the supply-side structural reform.
The Mainland economy grew by 6.6%, achieving the general stable
momentum by pursing progress while ensuring stability. Hong Kong,
being an open economy, is inevitably affected by the external factors.
The operating environment was challenging for the banking sector.
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2018 marked the 10th Anniversary of acquisition of the Bank by China
Merchants Bank (“CMB”). The Bank realized synergy effects through
changing its name to CMB Wing Lung Bank, further collaboration
with CMB, actively promoting cross-border coordinated business
and enhancing key competencies. Consequently, the Bank achieved
remarkable results and established a solid foundation for building a
cross-border financial service platform.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the profit attributable to the
shareholders of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) was
HK$3,219 million, representing a decrease of 16.6% as compared with
that of 2017, which was mainly attributable to the increase in impairment
loss and decrease in net non-interest income. Return on average assets
and return on average equity were 1.05% and 9.39% respectively.

In 2018, the Group recorded a net interest income of HK$4,765 million,
representing an increase of 31.0% as compared with that of 2017, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in loans and interbank lending.
The net interest margin for the year was 1.74%, up by 34 basis points as
compared with that for the year of 2017.

Net non-interest income was HK$1,423 million, representing a decrease
of 36.0% as compared with that of 2017, which was mainly attributable
to the decrease in net trading gain by HK$460 million to HK$101
million when compared with that of 2017. Insurance business posted net
operating income of HK$190 million, representing a decrease of 9.7% as
compared with that of 2017. Net fees and commission income amounted
to HK$834 million, representing an increase of 3.2% as compared with
that of 2017, which was primarily attributable to the increase in the
fees and commission income from securities brokerage and investment
services as well as trade finance.

Operating expenses amounted to HK$2,169 million, representing an
increase of 11.0% as compared with that of 2017. The cost-to-income
ratio for 2018 was 35.0%, representing an increase of 1.7 percentage
points as compared with that in 2017.

In 2018, the impairment loss increased by HK$660 million to HK$850
million when compared with that of 2017, which was mainly attributable
to the increase in impairment losses on debt securities investment.

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of total advances to customers,
including trade bills, of the Group increased by 4.0% to HK$162.5
billion as compared with that at the end of 2017. The non-performing
loan ratio, including that of trade bills, was 0.52%, representing a
decrease of 0.02 percentage point as compared with that in 2017, which
implied a sound loan quality on the whole.
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The Group’s total deposits from customers increased by 4.9% to
HK$221.3 billion as compared with that at the end of 2017. Among
various kinds of deposits, Hong Kong Dollar deposits increased
by HKS$7,562 million or 6.3%; US Dollar deposits after translation
decreased by HK$1,357 million or 2.9%; RMB deposits after translation
increased by HK$2,410 million or 8.1%; and deposits in other foreign
currencies after translation increased by HK$1,751 million or 11.9%, as
compared with that at the end of 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, total assets of the Group amounted to
HKS$314.5 billion, representing an increase of 5.3% as compared with
that at the end of 2017. Equity attributable to sharecholders amounted
to HK$35.4 billion, representing an increase of 6.9% as compared with
that at the end of 2017. Loan-to-deposit ratio was 68.6%, down by 1.1
percentage points as compared with that at the end of 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, common equity tier 1 capital ratio, tier 1
capital ratio and total capital ratio of the Group were 12.7%, 14.8%
and 18.0% respectively, and the average liquidity coverage ratio for the
fourth quarter was 166.3%, all above statutory requirements.

Retail banking

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of retail deposits amounted to
HKS$167.3 billion, representing an increase of 8.8% over that at the end
of 2017. FinTech is expected to be widely applied by banks in future.
With the smart device and customer service, it is anticipated that new
service experience can be brought to customers. The Bank devoted much
effort to develop “CMBWLB Wintech” as the customers’ most favourite
mobile banking application through introducing innovative functions
in areas such as deposits, securities, investment and payment as well as
providing customers with preferential interest rate and fabulous offers.
At the end of 2018, the number of monthly active users of “CMBWLB
Wintech” sharply increased by more than 80% as compared with that at
the end of 2017. As for physical channels, “CMBWLB Wintech” priority
counters were established in certain branches for handling appointments
of account opening and foreign currency exchange service via mobile
banking, so as to enhance the operational efficiency of branches and
customer experience.
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As at 31 December 2018, the balance of mortgage and personal loans
amounted to HK$30.9 billion, representing a decrease of 2.0% as
compared with that at the end of 2017. Of the total loans, the balance of
residential mortgage loans amounted to HK$7,638 million, representing
a decrease of 7.1% as compared with that at the end of 2017. In 2018,
Insurance Policy Financing was the key driver for the growth in personal
loan business. The Bank will continue to strategically appeal and retain
high-end customers, and sustain wealth management development.
Moreover, the Bank will optimise systems, procedures and offer
electronic application and approval of comprehensive other secured
loans, so as to enhance wealth management product financing business
and increase comprehensive income.

With respect to credit card business, the market competition remained
keen. As of 31 December 2018, the credit card receivables decreased as
compared with that at the end of 2017. Great effort was made to pursue
merchant acquiring business. To seize the opportunities brought about by
cross-border customers and e-commerce business, the Bank developed
WeChat merchant acquiring business and online merchant acquiring
service, boosting its operating income. At the end of 2018, merchant
acquiring business turnover increased by 5.1% and credit card fees and
commission increased by 5.3%, as compared with that of 2017.

As regards private banking and wealth management business, the volatile
global capital market, continuous trade frictions and slowdown of
China’s economy posed significant challenges to the wealth management
business. To be in line with market demand, the Bank timely adjusted
its investment strategy and developed new products. Structural products
and foreign exchange became the growth points. By leveraging on the
advantages of diversification of public and private equity, the Bank
optimised customer asset allocation and boosted customer satisfaction.
The Bank also fostered FinTech development and upgraded wealth
management system. To exploit the advantages of mobile banking,
the Bank formed an efficient services model and enhanced customer
experience, thus persistently improving its cross-border customer service
capabilities. In 2018, commission income from investment services
increased 18.9% as compared with 2017.
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In 2018, the stock market trended downward after reaching high. The
market sentiment deteriorated sharply amid the US interest rate hikes
and elevated China-US trade tensions.
" The Hang Seng Index plunged to
24,540, its lowest level in the past
18-month period. In 2018, the Bank’s
securities brokerage commission
income was broadly in line with 2017.
" The Bank strived to be the pioneer in
application of mobile technology to
securities services. To significantly
enhance customer experience as well
as appeal younger and cross-border
customers, the Bank continuously
optimised securities trading function
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providing pioneered mobile securities
service including account opening application, unlogin real-time Hong
Kong Indices and stock quote, subscription of initial public offer shares
by cash or loans, submission reply of corporate action, etc.

As for branch network, the Bank has a total of 35 banking offices in
Hong Kong at present. By integrating the “CMBWLB Wintech” mobile
application and Virtual Teller Machine, the Bank established the first
smart banking services business outlet at Hong Kong Express Rail
Link in September 2018, so as to provide customers with convenient
investment and wealth management services. Customers are able to
open an account rapidly through making appointment via “CMBWLB
Wintech” and using the Virtual Teller Machine at the Express Rail Link
Branch. To cater for banking needs of customers, customers can contact
their account managers by the Virtual Teller Machine anytime.

!i*&lﬁ

CHE WING LUND Bamx



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

2 W] o v SR AT

T R ERATER W ME O —
NE+H=+—H  SR%BHE (O
PIZEEIE) Bwt7ssfEx, -0 —
LEE FF12.3% W EFE A KIE
PT; o SREER I H > MBS > A
TTHEFBRAT RN G O = FEA
HH > FE A s R B T 8 T R Y
Lo Py ARATHE— S TR R it By A 2
PSS E S EE ST TEREME
T o [ > ARATIRFFAE B G AT 2
B PO Bk - IRE S 5 1R T
BEER - HE O~ /K - h¥ELH
ERFE Sy us WRssfE ot O — LA
JEWL D27.7% o ARATFREEAL [ 2% —
490 | RAnRBMREY > CHBMER
RAEFHZHHSMEBEEREEFE
SEHCRIE §h > AR XL R AT
AN 2 BEHEBE > RAFFFRE TR A EE R Y
EE T ER o FIRF > ARITERREF T
PR E > RS EH TR ®R
B EEfE - MRBEIE S WERF 2K
bRy 4 Rl IR B 75 oK > RBIAATEE N —
R T =gihl 5

&

O /NAERE B N HE T 3 E BV
JoHNRBELB R LRI > 475 MR
BRI E R » B
Ko R BUMERE KREEANE S 5 > R
[ BT K FEdRAT — B | ANEST S F B4
BZERFINEL ¥ - BE_O0—
JNAFTE > MRS 7 B E s (B 45 A
i) BE¥231ME 0 0 — L4
BEMMI13.1% o M & Wil 25 N % - %
AN B s D

HE O~ N\FE » AEBRESEER
WSS or W Oo—tERK LD
F2.2% o H B (E A S AR TE
A3ER L b > B o

AAT B — 2 4R T 4 T 3 09 B )
RES > BOoRAERMETMT 58 8 > IR E
B AR o & AT AR R AL B
B L o W BRI T B
WA HF (L B o MR AR B R A
B /N T 56 0 A a4 I
LR T2 5 S AR B i B o

Corporate and commercial banking

With respect to corporate and commercial banking business, total
corporate loans amounted to HK$75.8 billion as at 31 December 2018,
representing an increase of 12.3% as compared with that at the end of
2017, which contributed to the significant increase in interest income.
As regards syndicated loan business, according to Reuters ranking, the
Bank ranked among the top 5 syndicated loans bookrunners in Hong
Kong for three consecutive years, thus establishing a professional
image in syndicated loan market in Hong Kong. The Bank laid a solid
foundation for acquiring high-quality assets including mergers and
acquisitions financing for large-scale and cross-border corporations.
Moreover, the Bank persistently enhanced the quality of its customer
base through capital market operations including initial public offer
receiving bank service and dividend payment service, etc. At the end of
2018, total corporate deposits amounted to HK$25.5 billion, representing
a decrease of 27.7% as compared with that at the end of 2017. The Bank
continuously upgraded the “U-BANK@WLB services” and expanded
its net banking business. To broaden and optimise different customer
segments as well as maintain sustainable corporate customer business,
the Bank provided customers with efficient fund management product
including physical multi-level cash pool. The Bank was committed to
strengthen the collaboration with CMB through the establishment of
cash management platform, syndicated loans, bond issuance as well as
business and investment collaboration so as to cater for the diversified
financial needs of customers, thus realising the advantages of the Bank’s
integrated local and overseas operations.

Treasury business

In 2018, the overall foreign exchange market remained volatile. In
particular, Renminbi experienced significant fluctuation. By focusing
the needs of large-scale enterprises and wealth management customers,
the Bank succeeded in completing sizable foreign exchange transactions.
The Bank also expanded retail foreign exchange trading business
through the foreign exchange trading platform of “CMBWLB Wintech”.
In 2018, revenue from foreign exchange trading business, including
money exchange business, amounted to HK$231 million, representing
an increase of 13.1% as compared with that in 2017. With the decrease
in revenue from currency swaps, net gain from foreign exchange trading
decreased as compared with that in 2017.

At the end of 2018, the Group’s balance of debt securities investment
amounted to HKS$53.5 billion, representing an increase of 2.2% as
compared with that at the end of 2017. More than 80% of the debt
securities were rated A3 or above and were exposed to comparatively
low risks.

To capture market changes, the Bank will further enhance its professional
financial market analysis capabilities. The Bank will also seize
opportunities for selling various products. Great emphasis was placed
on establishing a comprehensive and efficient treasury product center as
well as developing and forming competitive and unique treasury products
of the Bank. To provide more information, improve trading efficiency
and enhance customer experience, the Bank will continue to develop
electronic trading platform for retail customers as well as medium and
small-sized enterprises.
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Financial institution business

With respect to bank financial institution business, the Bank focused on
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domestic small and medium-sized banks.
The Bank devoted effort to realise three
main functions, namely “Clearing and
Settlement, Dealing and Trading as well
as Investment and Financing”. To cater
for the business needs of the customers,
the Bank provided financial institution
customers with diversified product
chain, thus enhancing synergy effects.
In adherence to the “asset-light bank”
business strategy, the Bank will build asset management platforms,
cooperate with high-quality banks in the Belt and Road Region and
Greater Bay Area as well as foster business coordination with branches
in China and overseas.

As regards non-bank financial institution business, the Bank proactively
expanded investment and commercial banking businesses through
participating in initial public offer financing, mergers and acquisitions
financing, bridge loans, bonds, funds and stock collateral loans. Risk
Management was given as the top priority. To follow the “asset-light
bank” business strategy, the Bank achieved remarkable results in custody
service, bond issuance, initial public offer receiving bank service and
dividend payment service, thereby increasing non-interest income. As
at 31 December 2018, advances to customers increased over that at the
end of 2017. To put forward steady transformation, the Bank cooperated
with non-bank financial institution customers in financing, trading and
asset allocation. The Bank also explored diversified financing models,
intensified the advantages of capital market and enhanced its market
influence.



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

N b % ¥ Bb S B

N B AN AT T > O — N4
T 67 A48 75 N A7 JBE g K i 3 4 i K Bk
B Rl 2 Gl 5 P R s TR AL A IR
Wets > WA SRR AT
S T ARSI > MM Z nib B Ak
T~ PRARE S AR - InREE 1 E - &
T A S DUER AT ZL R ERE o T
G A W B AR A A At
B FEEEMREEE  BAEMRT
SEEBE AR > AR LA
WA = 0 —LEME24% - &
E2O0~NE+H=1+—H EF &
ABEWE39ME T B O—LEFIETR
[%4.6% 5 K 7173 5 k1468 o0 > 1
T O— LA R R40.9% o K HL K 4D
ITATHE AR LA TN AN B~ 3T LB
RIZESHE s BEFRMAEEAN -4
TR B 45 A & MIRES -

A HP B 55 A 3L BeA ] o SCAT o ERET R
A—WT > HERBBEELHEEEE
H B SN AT o

(3

TO— /N Bk FER B A R T
(TR M A BB ) HH BR B AW
607 JC > W O — L4 IN13.0% -
Hep i K Z BB A R IR > DI
TIRE SR b 5 R SR e SR T AT
B — R, (A RERE N
Jn6.4% % #k W2 86 o0 » AE B R 14 21 iR
O — LA RS%E 5,001 8
IC o RA > A7 T K W R B A 45 e R S
T EE R ~ AR B E I ZETS R IE » (R B
B AR ETS DA IRE > o R A 4 R 4R AT
W - BT RMEET > PR TR
%o EBUE E FHE o AW > 38R K BE AR
e — I EE SRS
By > $RIAIRIEE K o 38 0 AR R IR %
TR T ) B 5 R i n JEL B A PR > 58
ENTRH o

MELEL T

ELENTESEE L T

MREES®RE2.0
VAR EERNHEREEN
F LTS PUTEY I
ARERER L ERS

ERE®WR : 2826 B428

woww.amibwinglungbank.com

China and overseas business

With respect to China and overseas business, the spreads narrowed
significantly given the pressure of the economic downturn and the
market reversal. To follow the working guidelines of adjusting structure,
boosting revenue, increasing deposits and ensuring quality, the branches
strived to diversify sources of funds, reduce cost of funds, strengthen
business collaboration and implement strategic transformation, aiming
at increasing the profit contribution of branches. The branches also
strengthened asset and liability management, achieved balanced
development, demonstrated the complementary of credit and inter-
bank assets as well as enhanced pricing power, leading to an upward
trend in profits. Operating income increased by 28.4% as compared
with 2017. As at 31 December 2018, loans to customers amounted to
HK$31.9 billion, representing a decrease of 4.6% as compared with
that at the end of 2017. Deposits from customers amounted to HK$14.6
billion, representing an increase of 40.9% as compared with that at the
end of 2017. In adherence to the “cross-border coordination and cross-
selling” business strategy, the China and overseas branches will provide
differentiated and unique cross-border financial services to customers.

The Bank has 4 branches and sub-branch in China, a branch in Macau
and 2 overseas branches, located respectively in Los Angeles and San
Francisco in the United States.

Insurance

In 2018, CMB Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited (“CMB Wing
Lung Insurance”) realised a gross premium income of HK$607 million,
representing an increase of 13.0% as compared with 2017. Majority
of the businesses achieved growth, among which electronic channel
business recorded the most rapid growth rate. Although Typhoon
“Mangkhut” posed certain impact on the business, the total claim amount
only increased by 6.4% to HK$286 million. Underwriting business
recorded an increase of profit by 1.5% to HK$50.61 million. In future,
CMB Wing Lung Insurance will continue to adhere to the business
strategy of balanced development and efficiency-oriented. Besides
retaining quality renewal businesses, CMB Wing Lung Insurance will
also proactively expand businesses from banking and electronic channel
so as to enhance its overall revenue and achieve asset appreciation.
Meanwhile, CMB Wing Lung Insurance will further promote innovation
and reform as well as improve customer experience and enhance service
quality. To improve corporate governance, CMB Wing Lung Insurance
will strengthen its risk management in accordance with new regulatory
requirements.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of employees of the Group
is 1,935 (31 December 2017: 1,836), of which 1,674 are in Hong Kong,
189 are in the PRC, 39 are in Macau and 33 are overseas.
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Looking ahead into 2019, the global economy will be full of
uncertainties, with increasing downward pressures. In view of
diminishing effects of fiscal stimulus and trade measures, the US
economy is expected to see a slowdown. Economic growth in the euro
area is anticipated to moderate given the uncertainties brought about by
the Brexit and other political developments in Europe. The slackened
growth of the global economy and elevated uncertainties may affect
the performance of emerging market economies. With respect to Asian
economies, the Japan economy will grow slowly and other high-income
Asian economies will remain modest growth. The global financial
market will volatile amid the China-US trade conflicts, interest rate
hikes by the US Federal Reserve and the normalisation of monetary
policy in major advanced economies. The Mainland will adhere to
the general working guideline of making progress while maintaining
stability, continue to adopt new development philosophy, further put
forward the supply-side structural reform as well as maintain sustainable
and healthy development of economy. Locally, the export growth may
be suppressed and the downside risks to the domestic demand increase.
Inflation is expected to remain steady. In view of complex and ever-
changing economic outlook, the operating environment continues
to be challenging for the banking sector. The Bank will stay alert to
the operating environment and strive to strengthen risk management
capabilities, fine-tune operation procedures to enhance work efficiency,
tighten cost control measure and improve resources allocation. Being a
member of China Merchants Bank Group, the Bank has strong parental
support and wide business scope for further development. The Bank will
strive to realise synergy effects through further collaboration with CMB.
Meanwhile, the Bank will also cooperate with CMB to build a cross-
border financial service platform, so as to strengthen its competitive
edge and enhance its profitability.

ZHU Qi
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

21 March 2019
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Report of the Directors

The directors of CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited (formerly known as
Wing Lung Bank Limited) have pleasure in submitting their report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Principal place of business

The Bank is a licensed bank incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 45 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are engaged in the provision
of banking and related financial services. The principal activities of the

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and
geographical segment is set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations
The profits of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 45.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend (2017:
Nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018.
Reserves

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set out in Note 34
to the financial statements.

Donations

There were no charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year (2017: HK$21,000).

Other properties and equipment

Details of the movements in the Group’s other properties and equipment
are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of share capital of the Bank are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements. There were no movements during the year.
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Capital instruments

During the year, the Bank redeemed subordinated notes which qualified
as supplementary capital of the Bank totalling US$200,000,000. Details
of the Bank’s subordinated debts issued and additional equity instruments
are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Mr TIAN Huiyu (Chairman)

Mr LI Hao (Vice-Chairman)

Mr ZHU Qi # (Chief Executive Officer)
Dr XU Shiqing *

Mr LIU Jun #

Mr ZHANG Cheng

Mr PENG Jiawen (appointed as Non-executive
Director on 12 July 2018)

Mr ZHU Jiangtao

Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward !

Mr LIU Erh Fei !

Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry !

Mr WANG Qixin !

Mr CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen !

Ms LIU Hui (resigned on 9 March 2018)

# Executive Director
! Independent Non-executive Director

Directors of subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the Bank’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of the financial statements
are as follows:

CHEN Zhaonan, CHEUNG Chung Keung, CMB Wing Lung (Trustee)
Limited, CHOI Heung Kwan Agnes, DEERIGHT LIMITED,
EAGLEARN LIMITED, FENG Xuefeng, FONG Kwun Wai Matthew?*,
GAO Hong, GUAN Huanfei, HE Xin, JIN Lu, LAU Wai Man
Katherine*, LAU Lik Alaric, LAU Yu Keung, LEE Tsz Kwan Peggie,
LEONG Chou Sern, LIAO Xiaoju, LIU Jun, MA Jack Jian, PUN Kei
Yuen Henry?, SHIH Pui Ying, WANG Zhiqiang, WOO Lap Hoi, XU
Shiqing and ZHU Qi.

* He/she has resigned/retired as a Director of the relevant subsidiary of the
Bank.
2 Deceased
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Directors’ interests in shares

None of the directors have been granted, or have exercised, any rights to
subscribe for shares of the Bank.

At no time during the financial year was the Bank, or any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors of the Bank to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Bank or any
other body corporate.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, a permitted indemnity
provision that meets the requirements specified in section 469(2) of the
Companies Ordinance for the benefit of Directors of the Bank is in force.

Directors’ interests in transactions, arrangement or
contracts

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to
the Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a director
of the Bank or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or subsisting during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The Bank is required to comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules
which set out the minimum standards for public disclosure which
authorised institutions must make in respect of the income statement,
state of affairs and capital adequacy. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 comply fully with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Retirement schemes
The Group operates retirement schemes for its employees. Details of

the Group’s retirement schemes are set out in Note 15 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

1% B fp Auditors

TEE) . B W BT & RHET S5 T & Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
B AR BT o ZERAS BB re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte Touche
WRER G > LR E R S« Tohmatsu as auditors of the Bank is to be proposed at the forthcoming
IR R 7 R RIS S P A A AT A% BT Annual General Meeting.

EE3

HRE G By Order of the Board

FRHEE  RERK XU Shiging

AT E F AR AR Executive Director and General Manager

—Oo—NE=A-+—H 21 March 2019
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Corporate Governance Report

The Bank is devoted to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. To enhance the overall management quality of the Bank, the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) has put in place governance practices
with special emphasis on an effective Board for leadership and control,
sound business ethics and integrity in all business activities. Throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Bank is committed to the
guidelines set out in the “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

Board of Directors

The Board is charged with leading the Bank in a responsible and
effective manner. Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share
responsibility for the proper direction and management of the Bank. The
Board is responsible for providing direction at the top of the organization
and for the operations and financial soundness of the Bank. Its main
responsibilities include, but not limited to, the followings:

* Approving and monitoring the Bank’s objectives, strategies,
business plans and key policies;

. Ensuring the establishment of effective risk management policies;

*  Appointing and overseeing the Executives as well as ensuring
competent management;

. Setting corporate values and standards;

e Ensuring effective audit functions;

e Ensuring prudent conduct of operations within laws and approved
policies;

e Ensuring and monitoring integrity in the Bank’s conduct of affairs;
and

*  Responsible for the risk management and internal control of the
Bank and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

The Board has convened four meetings in 2018. The Board currently
comprises thirteen members, three executive directors and ten
non-executive directors, of whom five are independent non-executive
directors. The individuals who make up the Board draw on a rich and
diverse background of experience from both within and outside of the
banking community. The independent non-executive directors possess
appropriate professional qualifications. The names and brief biographical
details of the directors are shown on pages 6 to 11 of this Annual Report.
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Since the Bank has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Merchants Bank, the Board strives to improve its corporate governance
and ensure operational compliance so as to enhance management quality.
The Bank currently establishes Strategy Committee, Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee, Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and
Risk Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Bank’s affairs. Each
of the committees has defined terms of reference setting out its duties,
powers and functions. The committees report to the Board and, where
appropriate, make recommendations on matters discussed. The Board, in
addition to its overall supervisory role, retains specific responsibilities
such as approving specific executive appointments, approving financial
accounts, recommending dividend payments, approving policies relating
to the Board’s compliance, etc.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer are
separated.

The Chairman, Mr TIAN Huiyu, provides leadership for the Board. He
is responsible for ensuring that the Board works effectively and that all
key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner.

The Chief Executive Officer, Mr ZHU Qi, in conjunction with
the Management Committee, is delegated with the authority and
responsibility for running the Bank’s operation and implementing the
Bank’s business strategies.

Management Committee

The Management Committee consists of four members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Mr ZHU Qi, Dr XU Shiqing, Mr
LIU Jun and Dr FENG Xuefeng. The Management Committee exercises
the powers, authorities and discretions of the Board relating to the
management and day-to-day running of the Bank in accordance with its
terms of reference and directions as the Board may determine from time
to time. Its main responsibilities include the followings:

« To implement agreed policies and to execute business plans
approved by the Board;

*  To review and approve the policies with the authority granted by the
Board as well as make recommendations to the Board with respect
to the key policies;

* To assist the Board to formulate the Bank’s risk appetite and
strategies for managing various types of risk to which the Bank’s
business are exposed; and the implementation and maintenance of
the overall risk management framework across the Bank’s business;



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

o TEORAATIA BN ST AL ARG A Bk
T b AL R BOR W IEEAE

o EEATARFEZEG > WWRA
G BERH IR HE T 25 R E R B g T
H W g

o BT EORNI ) S AR R
KITwg

o TRBREEARLTES

o R E S G H AL B AR AR
BRI AR T 5 8l ) DAL T HL G

o BERPRATE R G RIRM H AL EL o

BB B e ) ) B AR R R
st o AL B Y SE T S AN H
T~ A TE ST 0 R AT B A AR 5 DU
EFESE 2@ ok L alam o B Z B @iy
B (A28 0 A0 Y DR T 3 S LAt R
B SHRMBAT R W > LT H
B o

B EEHE

B ZE B @K B R TR B
F N 3 S AL o A T SE
(E/E) ~ RESEE - R CEE - B2
ST - S SEAE K E RSB ©
S Roib) L RO

o BT I BRI > A
A S PR R B

o BEARLT OB E 6 AR S o R
B it ) T o 2 LR E 1

e ATEHEEREKEZEENEARNL

HIH

o FRANAATELANERAEAS - BRSO E
EERR 5

o RHAEATHLHEARATHY R E B RGE B
K

o PR AREE B e R E Y EE R R
R A TR

e To ensure smooth day-to-day operations of the Bank within
applicable laws and policies approved by the Board;

* To oversee the specific committees of the Bank, and delegate
authority and power to these committees for daily monitoring as the
Committee thinks fit from time to time;

*  To collect market information and to recommend policy and strategy
to the Board;

*  To manage the Bank’s business in a prudent manner;

e To provide timely information to other members of the Board and
keep them apprised of the latest development of the Bank so as to
enable them to discharge their duties; and

e To carry out any other matters as the Board thinks fit from time to
time.

The Management Committee presents to the Board regularly by way
of detailed business reports on management’s business strategies and
objectives, updates on different lines of business, action plans, etc
for discussion at each Board meeting. The Committee also provides
appropriate and sufficient information to the other members of the Board
in a timely manner to keep them apprised of the latest development of
the Bank so as to enable them to discharge their duties.

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee consists of six members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Mr TIAN Huiyu (Chairman), Mr ZHU
Qi, Mr PENG lJiawen, Mr LIU Erh Fei, Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry
and Mr WANG Qixin. The duties of the Strategy Committee include the
followings:

*  To establish strategic development goals, and to formulate medium
to long term development strategies of the Bank;

+ To implement and review the strategies of the Bank as well as
strengthen the consistency and stability of the implementation of the

strategies of the Bank;

»  To approve significant investment and capital expenditure plan;

*  To evaluate the Bank’s key partnership with external organizations;

e To evaluate and approve the donations made to charitable
organizations; and

e To put forward proposals and plans for important issues to be
discussed and decided by the Board.
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Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

The Remuneration and Appraisal Committee consists of six members,
all appointed by the Board. The current members are Mr KWOK
Lam Kwong Larry (Chairman), Mr LI Hao, Mr ZHANG Cheng, Mr
CHOW Kwong Fai Edward, Mr WANG Qixin and Prof CHEUNG Yan
Leung Stephen. The Committee shall exercise such functions as shall
be determined from time to time by the Board and unless otherwise
determined shall include the followings:

. To oversee, examine and evaluate the execution of the Bank’s
annual business plans and the Board’s resolutions;

*  To study the performance appraisal standards for the Directors and
Executives, and to conduct appraisals and make recommendations
annually;

*  To study, review and approve the Bank’s remuneration policy and
packages for the Directors, Senior Management, and Key Personnel;

e To evaluate and approve the employment or service agreements of
the Bank’s Directors and Executives;

*  To evaluate and approve the Bank’s remuneration strategies, the
annual pay adjustment and benefits schemes for the staff of the
Bank;

*  To ensure that remuneration is appropriate and consistent with the
Bank’s culture, long-term business and risk appetite, performance
and control environment as well as with any legal or regulatory
requirements;

*  To work closely with other relevant committees of the Bank’s board,
such as the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee, and consult
with the Bank’s Legal and Compliance Department in evaluating
incentives created by the remuneration system;

« To play a leading role in establishing the Bank’s culture and
behavioural standards that promote prudent risk-taking and fair

treatment of customers; and

*  To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of six members, all appointed by
the Board. The current members are Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry
(Chairman), Mr LI Hao, Mr PENG Jiawen, Mr CHOW Kwong Fai
Edward, Mr WANG Qixin and Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen. The
Committee shall exercise such functions as shall be determined from
time to time by the Board and unless otherwise determined shall include
the followings:

e To identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and its committees or senior management, and selecting,
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of,
individuals nominated for directorships and senior management
positions (based on the role and its responsibilities and the
knowledge, experience and competence which the role requires);

* To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and its committees as well as succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairperson and the chief
executive;

*  To evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the functioning of
the Board and its committees on an annual basis;

*  To ensure objectivity and independence in the selection process for

Board members and its committees as well as senior management;

* To ensure that the Board is not dominated by one individual or
small group of individuals in a manner so as to protect the interests
of the Bank as a whole;

* To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and

*  To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of six members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Mr CHOW Kwong Fai Edward
(Chairman), Mr PENG Jiawen, Mr ZHU Jiangtao, Mr LIU Erh Fei, Mr
KWOK Lam Kwong Larry and Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen.
They possess appropriate academic and professional qualifications or
related financial management expertise, and are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties. The principal duties of the Audit
Committee include the followings:

*  To draw up, review and update periodically the terms of reference
for the Board’s approval indicating the Committee’s composition,
authority and duties, as well as the manner of reporting to the
Board;

*  To monitor the Bank’s financial reporting process and relevant
output, including arrangements through which concerns about
possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting can be
raised;

*  To oversee the establishment of the Bank’s accounting policies and
practices (including quality of accounting estimates and disclosures)
and review significant judgements made in financial reporting
within the Bank’s financial statements;

*  To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of the audited
annual financial statements together with the independent auditor’s
report and the interim financial disclosure statement;

¢ To recommend the Board’s approval of the appointment of the Chief
Auditor of the Bank;

*  To recommend the Board’s approval of the audit charter drawn up
and updated periodically by the Internal Audit Department;

 To approve, periodically, the audit plan as well as the related
manpower and financial resources required after identifying the
areas of risk within the Bank’s operations to be covered;

e To review the performance of the Chief Auditor and the
effectiveness of the Internal Audit Department;

* To review reports and significant recommendations provided
by Internal Audit Department and management plans for their
implementation;

* To make recommendations to the Board with regard to the
appointment of the Bank’s external auditors and related matters
(including terms of engagement and remuneration) and oversee the
work of the external auditors (such as considering their audit work
plan and reviewing their audit conclusions and recommendations);
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*  To report to the Board regularly on the work performed by
the Committee and its significant findings, and the progress in
implementing any remedial actions to address deficiencies identified
in the Bank’s internal control systems (including those identified
by internal and external auditors, the Committee or the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority);

. To provide opportunities for external and internal auditors to meet
and discuss their respective findings;

*  To review/propose/recommend the approval of significant policies;
and

*  To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
Risk Committee

The Risk Committee consists of six members, all appointed by the
Board. The current members are Prof CHEUNG Yan Leung Stephen
(Chairman), Mr PENG Jiawen, Mr ZHU Jiangtao, Mr CHOW Kwong
Fai Edward, Mr LIU Erh Fei and Mr KWOK Lam Kwong Larry. The
members of the Committee collectively possess relevant technical
expertise and experience in risk disciplines that are adequate to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities effectively. The principal duties
of the Risk Committee include the followings:

e To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of the Bank’s
risk management strategies, key risk policies and risk appetite, at
least annually;

* To review and recommend for the Board’s approval of specified
types of risk management policies and procedures;

*  To review and assess the adequacy of the Bank’s risk management
framework and policies in identifying, measuring, monitoring
and controlling risks and the extent to which these are operating
effectively;

e To monitor, review and conduct regular assessment of the internal
control system of the Bank and to monitor the risk management
of the Bank’s exposures to credit risk, market risk, operational
risk, interest rate risk, strategic risk, legal risk, reputation risk and
liquidity risk by the Executives;

e To oversee the establishment and maintenance by senior
management of appropriate infrastructure, resources and systems for
risk management, particularly in relation to the Bank’s adherence to
the approved risk appetite and related policies;

e To oversee and discuss the strategies for capital and liquidity
management, and those for all relevant risks (on both an aggregated
basis and by type of risk) of the Bank, to ensure they are consistent
with the stated risk appetite;
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+  To oversee and evaluate the design and execution of stress testing
and scenario analyses;

* To review periodic reports provided by the senior management
(including the Chief Risk Officer) on the state of the Bank’s risk
culture, risk exposure and risk management activities;

. To ensure that the staff members of the Bank responsible for
implementing risk management systems and controls are sufficiently
independent of the Bank’s relevant risk-taking activities;

. To examine, without prejudice to the tasks of the Remuneration and
Appraisal Committee, the incentives created by the remuneration
system are aligned with the Bank’s risk culture and risk appetite,
and ensure remuneration awards appropriately reflect risk-taking
and risk outcomes; and

*  To execute other duties as may be delegated by the Board.
Internal Control

The Board and Executives are responsible for establishing, maintaining
and operating an effective system of internal control. The internal
control system of the Group comprises a well-established organizational
structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The Audit
Committee, Risk Committee and other designated committees have
been established with the objective of assisting the Board to manage
and monitor various risks. The Board’s expectations regarding duty,
responsibility and integrity of each department are clearly spelled out
in formal policy statements, which include Code of Conduct, Internal
Control Policy and Compliance Policy Statement, etc. The Board has
clearly defined the lines of authority and responsibilities of each business
and operational unit to ensure adequate checks and balances.

The Group’s internal control system covers every business and
operational function so as to safeguard its assets against loss and
misappropriation; to maintain proper accounting records for producing
reliable financial information; to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material fraud and errors. Policies and procedures are
established to ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulations and
industry standards. To cope with the increasingly stringent requirements
from relevant regulatory authorities together with ever-changing business
environment, the Board has dedicated more resources and efforts to
further strengthen the Group’s management structure and oversight.



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

A A [ L AT AN [A] 114 B A B ISR A AR
o 3l R E B & B e R BT
A~ wEAG L5 S A BEAS B 1 B T B )
25 ol JEL g o G T HE BOOR RRE DLE f
) B 9 B PR o 3 2 Bl B B
FEMCHETE o A7 B M R (R AEE
B T T E B RCE ) B
WML > wEOAE B oK sk R4 [ 4
JER B B | —

HEHRFHRAAERZ NMEZERS > I
A B RS A BN L AR o RERRE
Bl AL N B M I A — 3R
[6) 26 o PR L ROBLIR RS o IR T A 2
B L T P Y s ) 4 T o A DA DR 58
5 114 A0 B 2 AR A A LA MR e
YR AR E o 3 Rh %% B & & 3 B A
&R 1 BT o SN A BB
L BRI % S A T A P 0 O
PR R R B G AR > HERAE LR
R BT B - Sl BRI A R AR AR
T2 BRI [ AT o A A% 0B 4 AF AR 4
B s A 2 SRR > ot R A% T U SR AR O
ey Ja Py G > DA T AR A
At ut o BZEtH g R K B B w
B - Sl A T & B AR o AR OR RS A
P VA IR o ] RV R
2 > i HT A RRAE A% 2 BE S AT > AT
MEEEENENEEZREGMEIRRS
Wl o A RAR I E R IR o

5 M e ¥

IR AT B i R R IR B B
W o il AR HAE LR 2N 1 b S i 4E )
TEZ B ERR D - BB &=
HH - RMERHNBEE O NE+TH=
+—HIEFEZ B RER > EHEOR
R 2 Gt EOR ERUER > St
PRANFE B 150 [ B T S s 6 U 1) 2 3 A s
WAES s e ) AR s S 1A A B H B
T At o S F 43 A0 A0 8 2 JE v R YA S
e

ASATAE AT B 3V ] 5 4 4% 19 DO A A B = {1
JYBREA - 73 Fll 78 Iy 3 35 3 22 4R 3
PSR E S VA

The Group has had in place various risk management policies and
procedures. There are specific committees and units that are responsible
for identifying, assessing, monitoring and managing the risks that the
Group faces. Risk management policies and major risk control limits are
established and approved by the Board or the Management Committee.
A more detailed discussion of the policies and procedures for managing
each of the major types of risk the Group is facing, including credit,
market, liquidity and operational risk, is included in Note 4 to the
financial statements “Financial Risk Management” section.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s internal control system and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s internal control framework. It provides
objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions. The Audit Committee reviews the significant
issues raised in the internal audit reports. Significant issues raised in the
management letters from external auditors and reports from regulatory
authorities will be brought to the attention of the Audit Committee
to ensure that prompt remedial action is taken. All recommendations
will be properly followed up to ensure they are implemented within a
reasonable period of time. Pursuant to a risk based methodology, the
Internal Audit Department plans its internal audit schedules annually
with audit resources prioritised towards higher risk areas. The Internal
Audit Plan is submitted to the Management Committee for review and
the Audit Committee for approval. To preserve the audit independence,
the Board has established the Audit Charter to set out the authorities
and responsibilities of internal audit function. The Chief Auditor reports
directly to the Management Committee and Audit Committee, and
ultimately reports to the Board.

Accountability and Audit

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for
that period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, the directors have applied suitable accounting policies
consistently, approved adoption of all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are in conformity with the International Financial
Reporting Standards, and made prudent judgments and estimates, and
prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Bank has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of 4 months and 3 months respectively after the
end of the relevant period.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CMB WING LUNG BANK LIMITED
(formerly known as Wing Lung Bank Limited)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CMB Wing
Lung Bank Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 45 to 208, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) on
the classification and measurement of financial instruments of
the Group

We identified the adoption of HKFRS 9 on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments of the Group as a key audit
matter due to the considerable judgement exercised by management
in classifying and measuring the financial instruments including the
impairment under the expected credit loss (“ECL”) model and the
nature and extent of audit effort needed to address the matter.

The accounting policies in relation to classification and
measurement of financial instruments (including the impairment
under ECL and the impact on the net assets of the Group as at 1
January 2018) and the credit risk management are set out in notes 1
and 4.1, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements. The
critical accounting estimates and judgement made by management
in applying HKFRS 9 are set out in notes 2.1 and 2.2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the adoption of HKFRS 9 on the
classification and measurement (other than the impairment under
ECL model) of financial instruments of the Group included:

— Obtaining and understanding the Group’s policies and
procedures and evaluating the key controls in relation to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments;

— Determining whether the management’s classification of
financial instruments are in accordance with HKFRS 9 by
assessing the terms and features as well as the business model
objective of a selection of financial instruments;

— Engaging our internal valuation specialists to assess the
methodology and test the accuracy and relevancy of the key
inputs used in the valuation of Level 3 financial instruments;

—  Testing the accuracy and relevancy of the key inputs which are
observable market data used in the valuation of Levels 1 and 2
financial instruments; and

— Examining whether the disclosure in relation to the
classification and measurement of financial instruments are in
accordance with the requirements under HKFRS 9.

39



40

Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

TR ST AZ BT i
Independent Auditor’s Report

FeAM e AR 9 3B ) < L R )
o T i e R S0 BE T AR &
BRARR 2 AR L

— R LS SRR - A A R
R RERAE AR - Bl
{EL AP Al R 3 S AR AT Al (B R 52 2
[GE LS

- EEME RS AR E TN E EE
RIERANTTI%

- AR B AR R B
S (L % AR % A AL % 7 2 Bl
BEPE 3

— PEEERRA 0 R A R b H R
DLREAS T M5 B4R R AT ik
DA% JE T 0 B A AR R S A
A7 W S o R SR oE Y
FE 3

— A ERITE BT RE A E]
BT WS SRR BT A B
STV T REAG

— EMREPIM B E YA FEAE
L S5 i R R G R 1
(LIRSt L

— BUER =B BT AR AR B
EPATHEIMES - BRI
N T = B B A R B

Ed

— AR B EAR AR B A O Y
SCARVEAR EEE > LR
TEI AR BRI 0 19 Al i e
MEVERISE R 5 2

— A DR BR T A T A e
RO M ME ) T A B4R R
T 1 R R 2 R -

Our procedures in relation to the application of ECL under HKFRS
9 on the Group’s relevant financial assets included:

— Assessing the key controls over credit approval, review
and monitoring processes, the internal credit rating system,
impairment assessment processes and collateral valuation;

—  Understanding the Group’s policies and methodology for the
determination of ECL;

—  Evaluating the key controls over the approval of key inputs and
assumptions in the calculation of ECL;

—  Engaging our internal credit risk specialists to assess whether
the ECL model methodology as well as the judgements and
assumptions applied are reasonable and in compliance with
HKFRS 9;

—  Engaging internal IT specialists to assess the IT controls and
integrity of data used in the ECL computation;

—  Assessing the reasonableness of management’s internal credit
rating for a selection of performing loans by reviewing the
corresponding loan files;

—  Performing additional procedures in respect of the impairment
on loans and advances to customers in Stage 3 as detailed
below under the heading of “Calculation on loans and advances
to customers in Stage 3”;

—  Testing on a sample basis the accuracy and completeness
of data applied in the ECL computation by checking to the
Group’s supporting documents of the relevant loan files; and

—  Examining the disclosures of assessment under ECL model for
the adoption of HKFRS 9.
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Calculation of ECL on loans and advances to customers in Stage 3

We identified the calculation of ECL on loans and advances to
customers in Stage 3 as a key audit matter due to the involvement of
significant management judgement in the estimation of the amount
and timing of future cash flows.

As set out in note 4.1 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group defines the impairment assessment rules by segment
to estimate future cash flows individually or by the Rule-based
Approach. The ECL for corporate segment with Stage 3 is
determined on an individual basis using a discounted cash flow
methodology. The expected future cash flows are based on the
credit risk estimates as at the reporting date, reflecting reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of future recoveries
and expected future receipts of interest. Collateral is taken into
account if it is likely that the recovery of the outstanding amount
will include realisation of collateral based on its estimated fair
value of collateral at the time of expected realisation, less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral. The cash flows are discounted
at a reasonable approximation of the effective interest rate.

As at 31 December 2018, as set out in note 21(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, gross loans and advances to customers
mainly comprised of corporate and individual loans amounting to
HKS$157,760 million. HK$848 million out of the gross loans and
advances to customers balance has been classified as Stage 3 loans.
An ECL of HK$549 million has been recognised in relation to
these loans as disclosed in note 4.1(h) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group’s disclosures with regards to the relevant significant
accounting policies, the related financial risk management as
well as the relevant critical accounting estimates and judgements
are contained in notes 1.7, 4.1(c)(i) and 2.1 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to the calculation of ECL on loans and
advances to customers in Stage 3 included those covered in the
above key audit matter related to ECL model and the following
additional procedures:

—  Assessing the reasonableness of management’s classification
of a selection of the credit-impaired loans by reviewing the
corresponding loan files;
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—  Examining the collateral valuation reports and other evidence
provided by management and challenging the reasonableness
of management’s assumptions in determining the estimated fair
value of the collateral at the time of expected realisation and
the cost for obtaining and selling the collateral;

— Evaluating and challenging key assumptions underlying
the management’s credit risk estimates, projection of
future recoveries, expected future receipts of interest and
approximation of effective interest rate estimation; and

—  Testing the arithmetic accuracy of the calculation of the
impairment provision for a sample of loans and advances to
customers in Stage 3.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ha Hong Yiu, Vico.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2019
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SRa s R
Consolidated Income Statement
HE O~/ H=1—H ILZ4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2018

—O0—N\ —o—t
. w18 2017
A ¥ T W T
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
FLEMA Interest income 5 9,449,499 7,443 887
FLE S H Interest expense 6 (4,684,358) (3,805,721)
A B WA Net interest income 4,765,141 3,638,166
RS 2 S AR A A Fees and commission income 1,041,288 1,023,264
P75 2 B AR 4 5 Fees and commission expense (206,879)  (214,935)
&7 - P EE R PN Net fees and commission income 7 834,409 808,329
PRERE SR Insurance operating income 8 475,569 478,675
FR W Net trading gain 9 100,992 561,329
A LLAPE (R A A4 Net gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
WA i 2 4 Rl E Y A A value through other comprehensive income 47,886 =
- Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
B AT R R R 2 TR AR securities - 300,144
HoAt g ZE A Other operating income 10 249,883 342,509
BERA Operating income 6,473,880 6,129,152
TR B R B Net insurance claims 8 (285,846)  (268,569)
PEHULR B R AE AR 2 2 A Operating income net of insurance claims 6,188,034 5,860,583
M Operating expenses 11 (2,168,859) (1,953,394)
T B34 4 1 T 2 2 2 v A Operating profit before impairment charge 4,019,175 3,907,189
VORI =R Impairment losses 12 (850,405)  (190,708)
CE S Operating profit 3,168,770 3,716,481
BEW 2 A TEE Fair value gains on investment properties 25 44,770 41,747
N g Net gain on disposal of other properties and
A S Ml 2 FlaE equipment 404 97,198
E@@%fﬁﬁij—‘ﬂﬁﬁz_%ﬁﬂ Net loss on redemption of financial instruments
THZFER at amortised cost 13 (30,236) -
Hh B A\ 2 IR Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary 1,292 =
FIEHE BEEE 2 Forfeited deposit arising from assets classified
BAR WCET 4 - as held for sale 118,333 =
JARE A e [ 2 o) B 2 T i Share of net profit of jointly controlled entities 391,372 642,300
JREAL Bk A5 4 ) 22 ¥ 3k ) Share of net profit of associates 77,785 1,342
B Bt i i A Profit before taxation 3,772,490 4,499,068
G Income tax 16 (553,837)  (638,403)
AR BE 6 A Profit for the year 3,218,653 3,860,665
ﬁﬁﬁé‘ : Attributable to:
AT R Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,219,302 3,858,019
FE 1 1 1Y R SRR 2 Non-controlling interests (649) 2,646

=R 50 HE 208 E 2 iE R A It % 47

T B R W0 .

statements.

The notes on pages 50 to 208 form part of these consolidated financial
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RNl & e

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HEO— /T H=1—HILZ4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2018

—“O—N =0=
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
AR AR BE ¥ ] Profit for the year 3,218,653 3,860,665
AR A BE Oy 2 T WL 4R Other comprehensive income for the year
HAZRE B /0 JH 2 Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
WmFEZIHHE the income statement:
DA VA8 (i A At 22 T Financial assets at fair value through other
W g 2 4 RlE comprehensive income
— NEAE v — Changes in fair value (645,157) =
— A R A I 5 — Transfer to income statement on disposal (47,886) =
— A A R A R 5 — Transfer to income statement on impairment 606,210 =
At B R S Available-for-sale securities
— INE(E 5 — Changes in fair value - 206,393
— A R A I 25 — Transfer to income statement on disposal - (300,144)
JREAL Wi 8 W) 2 frti e Share of associates’ reserves (4,632) 102
JARE Ak S ] 2 il B B 2 ot Share of jointly controlled entities’ reserves (5,512) 11,140
ESETIN =RE2 ) 4 Exchange difference on translation of
A o5 > i) 1) B ok 3K financial statements of overseas branches
A= 114 REE 50,5 58] and subsidiaries (216,337) 318,853
At 4 T £ TH E 3 Effect of deferred taxation on other comprehensive
IEIEF TH 7 528 income items 34,392 (9,300)
HEAGERSHE Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
WKmEZIHE the income statement:
DA T B AR 5k A A 4 1 Equity securities at fair value through other
Wi g 2 BERE RS 55 comprehensive income
— NP B s — Changes in fair value (198,288) =
HAGE E 2 B Surplus on revaluation of bank premises 7,194 -
FEARA T A E
(E18) s Actuarial (losses)/gains on defined benefit schemes (87,029) 83,576
HoAth 4 T £ TH H 3 Effect of deferred taxation on other comprehensive
WEFER TH 7 5 28 income items 13,499 (13,790)
AAEPE HAR 40 (1)),  Other comprehensive (expense)/income for the
M year (543,546) 296,830
AR AR B A TR K A AR Total comprehensive income for the year 2,675,107 4,157,495
B Attributable to:
N Equity shareholders of the Bank 2,675,756 4,154,849
FEHE T 1) JBE BRORE 2 Non-controlling interests (649) 2,646

=R 50 HE 208 E 2 iE R A It % 47
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statements.

The notes on pages 50 to 208 form part of these consolidated financial
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LA BRI R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
—O0—/\4E+ - H=+4+—H As at 31 December 2018

ZO0O—N\ —O—5
2018 2017
AR BT BT T
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
E Assets
BBl 4~ [ 2B & Cash, balances and placements with and loans
v and advances to banks 17 86,497,559 77,484,818
fiitE & m T H Derivative financial instruments 18 487,673 1,408,541
e AT EEA Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair
B iRz S RE value through profit or loss 19 2,458,985 -
HERER®BZ &S Trading securities 19 - 1,074,095
HE LAFEEZA Financial assets designated at fair value
HaR R Bl through profit or loss 19 4,200,028 5,943,598
DA 6 A At Financial investments at fair value through
A A 2 4 A& other comprehensive income 20 47,319,415 =
AL BT Available-for-sale securities 20 - 46,390,389
R BEG RUA T IR 2 422 E  Financial investments at amortised cost 20 679,491 -
Fr 2 B E R Held-to-maturity securities 20 - 331,356
Bk N oA BE TE Advances and other accounts 21 165,267,211 159,017,509
L[] 422 il B e E 4 Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 192,144 2,159,614
WA O ) 2 Interests in associates 24 2,625,812 3,592
wEYE Investment properties 25 3,266,150 3,225,920
LS T b A 25 Interests in leasehold land 26 161,427 167,366
HoAth 4 2 Ko 5 Other properties and equipment 27 1,268,427 1,370,474
A [a] Yt IH Tax recoverable 614 2,681
7% STl TE A Deferred tax assets 30 50,917 37,841
HIFE & B Assets classified as held for sale 32 1,980 149,021
HMEE Total assets 314,477,833 298,766,815
1 Liabilities
[A] A7 7K Deposits and balances from banks 35,401,573 33,134,691
Lo HRIA T 2 Ak Trading liabilities - 77,380
fi A4 R T H Derivative financial instruments 18 769,341 794,593
EEEK Deposits from customers 28 221,329,402 210,963,646
AT ZAF A Certificates of deposit issued 7,624,032 4,582,410
BT 2 RAB R IH Subordinated debts issued 29 3,128,160 4,675,302
R TE Current taxation 211,269 174,624
7R SE Bl T B (8 Deferred tax liabilities 30 1,937 67,826
HoAbMRTE K 7 52 Other accounts and accruals 31 5,996,688 6,536,172
N U Total liabilities 274,462,402 261,006,644
A3 Equity
s Share capital 33 1,160,951 1,160,951
G Reserves 34 34,270,559 31,972,180
Total equity attributable to shareholders
S B A AR AT IBOR R A of the Bank 35,431,510 33,133,131
O TH Additional equity instruments 29 4,573,230 4,573,230
FEFE 1l 1 e TR 2 Non-controlling interests 10,691 53,810
HE 35 4R Total equity 40,015,431 37,760,171
W2 S B 1 A Total equity and liabilities 314,477,833 298,766,815

KER_O—NE=H_+—HhESE

A S RERE A March 2019.
Wl PATE S AR XU Shiging
218 AT AR LIU Jun

N ESOEH EE208H 2 308 A I & 45
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statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

Executive Director and General Manager
Executive Director and General Manager

The notes on pages 50 to 208 form part of these consolidated financial
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Ara e s B R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEO— /T H=1—HILZ4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2018

A
11 Ve
Tiff
RE R
Financial
asset
FERM  revaluation HOMER T
Bank reserve/ TH Rk
WA EARME  premises Investment HABREfE  IREGR Additional Non-
Share Capital revaluation revaluation Other  Retained it equity  controlling At
capital reserve reserve reserve  reserves  earnings  Sub-total instruments interests Total
WhEx wWTx R Tx W EWTx R Tx RWTx #WTx Rt W
HKS$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS$000  HK$000
RZO—tF—A—H At 1 January 2017 LI60951 57500 556,046 71348 622047 26823849 29292041 3251990  73Al4 32617445
ZO—LAMER AN - Changes in equity for 2017:
KA A Net profit for the year = = - - ~ 3858019 3858019 - 2646 3,860,665
AR AT/ Other comprehensive income/
(32H) (expense) for the year = = 6,770 (98,590) 318,989 69,661 296,830 = = 296,830
AREFLTIE / (04)  Total comprehensive income/
k) (expense) for the year - - 6,770 (98,590) 318989 3,927,680 4,154,849 - 2,646 4157495
Issue of additional equity
BTRIMER TR instrumens - - - - - - - 1321240 - 1321240
Amount decrease in non-
SR R A A 1 D> controlling interests - - - - - - - - (250 (22050)
WERLAME  Distibution for cquity instumen - - - - (I37%9) _B13759) - - G137%9)
AZO—tAEFZH=+—H At31 December 2017 and
kZ0—N\E—H—H 1 January 2018, as previously
Ul reported 1,160,951 57500 562,916 (27,242) 941,236 30437770 33,133,131 4,573,230 53810 37,760,171
MR R AR5 E)  Effect of initial application of
B HKFRS 9 - - - 23,678 - (143544)  (119,866) - - (119,866)
RZO—/ME—A—H
&5 At | January 2018, as restated 1,160,951 57500 562,916 (3,564) 941,236 30,294,226 33,013,265 4,573,230 53810 37,640,305
ZO—/VEHERABIENE ¢ Changes in equity for 2018:
AR Net profit for the year - - - - - 3219302 3219302 - (649) 3,218,653
REER AT/ Other comprehensive income/
(i) (expense) for the year - - 19502 (274,042)  (168,796)  (120,210)  (543,546) - - (543,546)
KBRS /() Total comprehensive income/
Fib (expense) for the year - - 19502 (274,042)  (168,796) 3,099,092 2,675,756 - (649) 2,675,107
Transfer to retained earnings on
N disposal of equity securities
LA s 2 e at fair value through other
R4 R R A comprehensive income - - - 5,114 - (5,114) - - - -
Amount decrease in non-
JERE A R A 1 D controlling interests - - - - - - - - (470) (2470
ERTENE Distribution for equity instruments - - - - - (sI51) (87510 - - (5150

MZO0—AE+ZA=1—H At31 December 2018

1,160,951

582,418

(272,492)

712,440

33,130,693 35,431,510

4,573,230

10,691

40,015,431

=R 50 E £ 208 H 2 sE R B b & 47
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The notes on pages 50 to 208 form part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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AEBERESR
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
HE O~/ H=1—H ILZ4 ¥ For the year ended 31 December 2018

—O—N\ — 0=
| 0182017
FERE BT Sk o W
Note HKS$°000 HK$°000
BERHZBERAGH Cash generated from operations 38(a) 268,279 22,943,113
AN B U I A B Hong Kong profits tax paid (364,891) (567,288)
A i AN B TE Overseas tax paid (125,374) (139,058)
BEWEHZBE (W)~ Net cash (used in)/generated from
WAF# operating activities (221,986) 22,236,767
BEWD Investing activities
IEA B SR E ‘ Purchase of investment in securities (36,977,955) (52,075,157)
A T ] 56 5 R T R Proceeds from sale and redemption of
ZFKIE investment in securities 35,614,518 50,006,640
ML ] 2 o) B A 2 SRS Acquisition of share capital of an associate (75,000) =
HERLIL[R] #2 ) B e 2 Vs Proceeds from liquidation of a jointly
A IH controlled entity - 2,632
g BB [ 42 o) B Dividends received from jointly controlled
R NP &5 entities and associates 28,285 21,804
Payment for additions of other properties and
138 E H AW S K AR equipment (70,994) (152,381)
H B Ho A W 2E K A S Proceeds from disposal of other properties and
ZAKIE equipment 994 109,290
BREWMBZ B L E 5 Net cash used in investing activities (1,480,152)  (2,087,172)
il i B Financing activities
#HME 4 LR Distribution for additional equity instruments (257,511) (313,759)
BATRSMER LR Issue of additional equity instruments - 1,321,240
AT 7 AR EETE Subordinated debts issued - 3,117,906
1838 B B AT R B E 2 Repayment of subordinated debts issued (1,569,960) =
FE P2 il P 18 SRR £ 114 Y Amount decrease in non-controlling interests (42,470) (22,250)
ALETE B > B4 (ili),  Net cash (used in)/generated from
CwA®®. financing activities (1,869,941) 4,103,137
HEeR%ZRB4EHEE 22T Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
(WA),/ ¥ m equivalents (3,572,079) 24,252,732
B —H—HB&RER Cash and cash equivalents at
B&IEHE 1 January 41,610,185 17,436,188
AN e SR S iy > R 2 Effects of foreign exchange rate changes 673,186 (78,735)
RT_H=1+—H8&Rk Cash and cash equivalents
%R 4 EH at 31 December 38(b) 38,711,292 41,610,185
BETRHBEFREMHR © Cash flows from operating activities include:
HLE A Interest received 8,974,093 7,226,879
FILE Interest paid 4,782,562 3,032,935
i Sl A Dividends received 45,013 75,507

=R 50 E £ 208 H 2 sE R B b & 47
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statements.

The notes on pages 50 to 208 form part of these consolidated financial
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AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEFBOR
1.1 HR B BT

AAR G RS R TR 2 W B
T MR o BT A A St A A
A SItz L7 2 A 7 s B o R B
A g At e - AR SR
At RAR R o AKR G B AR R R A
AR (AR 2 EK -

A R B i 3R DR S AR R A
B AL LA (B RS AR 1 iR 2 4l
HEKAMR (BFEMTEEMTHE) > DA
- (L w A HE At 2 T i A 2 4 A
BeEY R EEE BT -

A S 5 A v T ot YR ) 2 B AR
AR ZHEE 2 Gatfhat > MHEH
& 7E R A 42 ) i BOR 2 R A AR
BT o W BBORAR BE 2 ) B M s 4
Pe ~ BB B KA T B A AR G B Wik
AEREB GG > CRroit e -

AU B AT OO A 2 T A o S R
HAER ZEHT > W —O— NF—H—
H e R 2 Gt BB IR AR 2 - AR
EERA T3 B e A B 2 BB RT 2
s P s e YR B

— T VB R R R SR OSR [ it T
H 1> gl A G @ TR G2
Je sz B W) T A AR 2R
ZOR

SR

Fir A e R Al A AT A s B RS
o e F 265 0 5% 8 T A I oA 2 & R
FE o AR SR AR S B - A
OV (B G A\ HE A 2 T R i R
B RL AR (RS AR 2 AR AH

1 Significant accounting policies
1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements
also comply with the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative financial instruments), financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and investment properties.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 2.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs, which are
effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
The Group adopted the following revised HKFRSs which are relevant to
its operations:

—  HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial instruments, and
recognition of expected credit loss on financial assets:

Classification and measurement

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9
are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost (“AC”),
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”), or at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”).



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

1 FEFFBOR (4)
1.1 RS (M)
e

FHEA B G Rt ERISE395E T 2 C ¥k
e SRR 7 ik A 5 i o 8 JUJ 2R 9
R FOR B MG BRI - TGS
BRI BOR B (E 71 55 UM B4R
R I H BBy > 75 5 AU RD A 2
RHEERZE - |52 > EREEERE
Hil 28BS A

B2 8 EoR B RE S R GERELe S 1T
1.8 o B #s & 51 ¥ R 253995 2 & 5l B
¥ WM O —LFEERERL -

PRAN A S T s I SR OSR B EE AR 2
ZROR O~ NFE—HA—HZRHE
A~ T Al O A BRI G
FE 0 S A TE R S EL At S IR L R A
BIE H RS > TR A H HEE R - i
RO~ bFENHKBENIREFES
FHHERIZE39GE MM & > BUORBEE — O — N\
A BT 251 B B RHEAT L

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss (“ECL”) model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The ECL model requires
an entity to account for ECL and changes in those ECL at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

These new requirements are set out in Notes 1.6, 1.7 and 1.8. For the
accounting policies in relation to HKAS 39, please refer to Note 1 of
2017 Annual Report.

The differences arising from the adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised in
retained earnings, financial asset revaluation reserve, deferred tax assets,
deferred tax liabilities and other relevant items of statement of financial
position as of 1 January 2018, without restating comparative information.
As the 2017 comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39, it
may not be comparable to information presented for 2018.

51



52

Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

1 EEEFFBOR (8)
1.1 4 EERE (78)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

IR IR A B vl BT S R T R 5998 2 Effect of initial application of HKFRS 9

=
B Bl i
Reclassification Remeasurement
AEF B
AT
TR
E403 KEHED
it WP PREES i
From cash, FIN bl AT
balances and e b4'¢ 0
placements From SRR KATM  hATEE
withand A HFFE  financial  AFT{ From KAR%S  RREX WHAEE
loansand ~ EE i asets  HEZEAE KARE  advances WRATZ BEMEHE  WAHR
advancesto  Zii#  designated From Ifi#%  and other A Impairment  From fair
%W banksat From atfair value  available- From held- accounts at From charge  value to fy]|
Audited  amortised  trading through for-sale to-maturity amortised trading under amortised  Restated
311212017 cost securities profitorloss  securities securities cost liabilities ECL model cost 11172018
N TR 5 T4 TR 1 AR L TR T TR L TR 3 TR L TR T
HKS$000  HK$'000 HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS000
i Assets
TERRATIRZ Cash, balances and placements
TR ~ 3R with and loans and advances to
R banks at amortised cost 77484818 (12,704,035) - - - - - - (16,977) - 64,763,806
PIATE AL A Cash, balances and placements
Ala 2 EAS S withand loans and advances to
IR A banks at FVOCI ~ 12704035 - - - - = = = — 12704035
Financial assets mandatorily
BEATEEA measured at fair value
Bk EMARE through profit or loss - - 1,074,095 296,696 308,193 - - - - - 1678984
HFERREZEE  Trading securities 1,074,095 - (1,07409) = = = = = - - -
KR AT Financial assets designated at fair
BRE 2 MR value through profit or loss 5,943,598 - - (296,69) - - - - - - 5646902
AT AL
2l 2 & Financial investments at
8 — s FVOCI — debt securies - - - - 43973495 - - - - - 8973495
DAFEEE AR
2GR Financial investments at
¥ — A FVOCI — equity securities - - - - 1028298 - - = - 1028298
A R Available-for-sale securities 46,390,389 - - ~ (46,390,389) - - - - - -
TEHRAGIEZ 48 Financial investments at
g amortised cost - - - - 1,080403 331,356 - - (2,305) 271 1412175
Rl e Held-to-maturity securities 331,35 - - - - (331356) - - - - -
TSR Z 82 Advances and ofher accounts
&Kl at amortised cost 159,017,509 - - - - - (7357,039) - (69,118) - 151,591,352
DA AL
22 B Advances and other accounts
fRIA at FVOCI - - - - - - 1357039 - - - 1357,039
EERIEG Deferred tax assets 37841 = = = = = = = = (449) 37392
£l Liabilities
Financial liabilities mandatorily
HUEVA TR measured at fair value through
BEEZeHER profit or loss = = = - - - - T13%0 = = 77,380
AT 2 R Trading liabilities 77,380 - - - - - - (77380 - - -
EEHAA & Deferred tax liabilities 67,826 - - - - - = - (28,087) = 39,739
SRR R R Other accounts and accruals 6,536,172 - = - - - - - 61,825 - 6597997
i Equity
Financial asset revaluation
EfheBEERHE/ reserve/Investment
EAREe ] revaluation reserve (27240 - - - (13,203) - = - 34,609 221 (3,564)
PREEA Retained earnings 30437,770 - - - 13,203 - - - (156,747) — 30294226
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1 EEEFHEOR (8)

1.1 RS (M)
BT IK IR B ol B T FR A7 2 f 5 99E 2
LB ()

MR 5 5 Vs B A ME R SR 098 1 [ A i B
KB EMRA ] EBAR > £
BHENE12,704,035,0007C > M Bk K H:
At B TE #5 ¥57,357,039,0007C H #E £5  AS
FHT B A DA AR B b A At 2 T i
7 o HTE I AE B R O U5 134,609,000 7T
L AH R 7 T A 4 il 7 o A A R R s A
s o

A A 48 7 DA TAE (8 56 A 18 25 iR 2 B
75 4 1k 15296,696,0007T S AT it H B 2 75
75 7 15308,193,00078 M0 A 154 7 vk B S
e HE R SR O5% T A5 BE AR S AT AR &
FIE | BRI E B EEREUA
FEEFABGEY SRMEE - Al fth
B2 FE AR O AL A G E e B
B 28 ST 1 i 4 B 0 SiE ol JEURY 2B
13,203,000 L. #5438 42 £ B4 Ui A1 AFERR

R 8 B s BB ik Y RIS 09E I [ 2 ik
EMFFA ] EBHEL BEEHRBK
1,080,403,00075 Hy A] it i 45 50 o B &
B R A > HOR A B A EAG 4 G E f
5 T N 18 (B s 18 % A0 e o T R 2
5 152,272,00070 B AH FES 9] © A — O —
NEFTZA=Z=+—H > ZEEHELEZ
ONTB (8 B v 85483,113,0007T © 45 7% %
EHEHERAAERSH > HRFERNER
ity 2 T YA g HP R R A -1 (B R 4
#129,150,0007C ©
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

As a result of “hold to collect and sell” business model classification
under HKFRS 9, balances and placements with and loans and advances
to banks of HK$12,704,035,000 and advances and other accounts of
HK$7,357,039,000 were reclassified from amortised cost to fair value
through other comprehensive income, and ECLs of HK$34,609,000 were
recognised in financial asset revaluation reserve and retained earnings
accordingly.

Debt securities designated at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$296,696,000 and available-for-sale securities of HK$308,193,000
did not meet the “solely payments of principal and interest” requirement
and were reclassified to financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value gain and deferred tax
impact of the available-for-sale securities of HK$13,203,000 previously
accumulated in the financial asset revaluation reserve were transferred to
retained earnings.

As a result of “hold to collect” business model classification under
HKFRS 9, debt securities of HK$1,080,403,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale to amortised cost and the corresponding fair value
losses and deferred tax impact of HK$2,272,000 previously accumulated
in the financial asset revaluation reserve were reversed accordingly.
As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of these debt securities are
HK$483,113,000 and the fair value loss that would have been recognised
in other comprehensive income during the year if these debt securities
had not been reclassified are HK$129,150,000.

As a result of “hold to collect and sell” business model classification
under HKFRS 9, available-for-sale debt securities of HK$43,973,495,000
were continued to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The Group elected to measure the non-trading available-for-sale
equity securities of HK$1,028,298,000 at fair value through other
comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

application of HKFRS 9:

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial position from the

BEY HKFRS 9 3l
Audited 75 BB R 5 e HI Restated
31/12/2017 S99k 1/1/2018
3 ERTr  #BRTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
J2gi Assets
Cash, balances and placements with and
EAEER 4~ R SEAE RS EEK loans and advances to banks 77,484,818 (16,977) 77,467,841
fid4m T A Derivative financial instruments 1,408,541 - 1,408,541
Financial assets at fair value through profit
DAHEERARGRZ EMERE o loss
—MEUATEESABLGEZ - Financial assets mandatorily measured
Gl at fair value through profit or loss - 1,678,984 1,678,984
—FEHERGR B — Trading securities 1,074,095 (1,074,095) -
—HEUATEESABLEZ - Financial assets designated at fair value
BB E through profit or loss 5,943,598 (296,696) 5,646,902
G Investment in securities
— AN TE(E A A2 H R4 - Financial investments at fair value
ZEMEE through other comprehensive income = 45,001,793 45,001,793
— Ak 2 B — Available-for-sale securities 46,390,389 (46,390,389) -
— R ARG R 2 SR E — Financial investments at amortised cost - 1,412,175 1,412,175
— R E I ER — Held-to-maturity securities 331,356 (331,356) -
B H A HETE Advances and other accounts 159,017,509 (69,118) 158,948,391
L[ P E R AR Interests in jointly controlled entities 2,159,614 ~ 2,159,614
/N Interest in an associate 3,592 = 3,592
F & Investment properties 3,225,920 - 3,225,920
T 1 Hi b 25 Interests in leasehold land 167,366 = 167,366
HoAh )2 Tkt Other properties and equipment 1,370,474 - 1,370,474
a[ [a] i it JE Tax recoverable 2,681 - 2,681
RIEHIEE E Deferred tax assets 37,841 (449) 37,392
e & B Assets classified as held for sale 149,021 = 149,021
B E Total assets 298,766,815 (86,128) 298,680,687
ffig Liabilities
] SE 7K Deposits and balances from banks 33,134,691 - 33,134,691
HE AT EEZABGRZ Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at
SRAE fair value through profit or loss = 77,380 77,380
THWRIET 2 A& Trading liabilities 77,380 (77,380) -
fiEem TR Derivative financial instruments 794,593 - 794,593
% FEE Deposits from customers 210,963,646 - 210,963,646
BT A8 Certificates of deposit issued 4,582,410 - 4,582,410
BT 2 B IEEE Subordinated debt issued 4,675,302 - 4,675,302
I Current taxation 174,624 = 174,624
TRIERTE £ 1 Deferred tax liabilities 67,826 (28,087) 39,739
HoAhHETE K TR Other accounts and accruals 6,536,172 61,825 6,597,997
AR Total liabilities 261,006,644 33,738 261,040,382
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1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

BEY HKFRS 9 |

Audited 7 s A $ 5 S Restated

31/12/2017 H9% 1/1/2018

T wW Tt #WTx

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000

PR Equity
(&N Share capital 1,160,951 - 1,160,951
i Reserves 31,972,180 (119,866) 31,852,314
Total equity attributable to shareholders

i B A AR AT PR A T of the Bank 33,133,131 (119,866) 33,013,265

MR T A Additional equity instruments 4,573,230 - 4,573,230

I e il ) e R £ Non-controlling interests 53,810 = 53,810
beeidgw Towlequty 37760170 (119.866) 37,640,305

HEgs I B R4 Total equity and liabilities 298,766,815 (86,128) 298,680,687
— HWMEHmAENEISHE[HEEZS —  HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, provides a

AT Z A ) R R 4 I e
RUARI I > W5 AR EAT /AR
RAERB WA RIS o 2 HEHIE T8
W M0 A TR G - R
Ay I Ve B 3B A AR ) WO A TR R T 1
7 S F KA o

— HISMBEREENE4EZEET [ -  Amendments to HKFRS 4, Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, address concerns
arising from different effective dates of HKFRS 9 and the
forthcoming insurance contracts standard. Entities whose activities
are predominantly connected with insurance may choose to defer
the application of HKFRS 9 until 2021 (the “deferral approach™).
Entities that defer the application of HKFRS 9 will continue to
apply HKAS 39. The Group applied HKFRS 9 consistently to all
entities in the Group and the deferral approach was not elected.

7 5 e R S4B R B S A
JE ) 7 i B 5 o Y ) SR 9 4
TR & 7E oA 1 5 i
S SR 9558 S RIS 2% A Y £ Bt 15 ] ¥
FU) ER B it 00 A [ 2 2 ) ] RE o
E A R B B Y A 36 AT R R A
15 T 7 s 5 i Y RN 205
F20214F > A A s A i t e
HIZE395% (TR ]) « AEKZ
P A 1 B 240 55— R A A 1 B
HERIZEOGE > I RA BEIRIERIE -

principles-based approach for revenue recognition, and introduces
the concept of recognising revenue for obligations as they are
satisfied. The standard should be applied retrospectively, with
certain practical expedients available. The adoption of this standard
has no significant impacts on the Group’s revenue recognition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

—  Amendments to HKAS 40, Transfers of Investment Property, clarify
that there must be a change in use when a property is transferred to
or from investment properties. A change in use would involve an
assessment of whether a property meets, or has ceased to meet, the
definition of investment property; and supporting evidence that a
change in use has occurred. The requirements of these amendments
are consistent with the Group’s current practice and the adoption
of these amendments have no impacts on the Group’s financial
statements.

— HK(IFRIC)22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration, provides guidance on determining “the date of the
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or
part of it) arising from a transaction in which an entity receives or
pays advance consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation
clarifies that “the date of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability arising from the
payment or receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the related item,
the date of the transaction for each payment or receipt should
be determined in this way. The adoption of this standard has no
significant impacts on the Group’s financial position and financial
result.

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, the
HKICPA has also issued certain new/revised HKFRSs which are not yet
effective for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
is expected to be in the period of initial application. The following new/
revised HKFRSs are relevant to the Group’s operations:

—  HKFRS 16, Leases, which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019.

HKFRS 16 eliminates the current requirements for lessees to distinguish
between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating
leases. They are to be replaced by a single, on-balance sheet accounting
model instead. Lessees will recognize a right of use asset and a
corresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right of use asset
will be amortised over the length of the lease and the lease liability will
be measured at amortised cost. The Group assessed that the right of use
asset of HK$224,739,000 and lease liability of HK$224,739,000 will be
recognised on the balance sheet upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 comprise the Bank and its subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. They include entities in which the Bank, directly
or indirectly, controls the composition of the Board of Directors, controls
more than half of the voting power or holds more than half of the issued
share capital.

Interests in subsidiaries are consolidated into the financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date that control
ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
inter-company transactions are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Group has interests in certain unconsolidated structured entities
which include (i) investment funds established and managed by the
Group to generate fees from managing assets on behalf of investors; and
(i1) third-party managed investment funds purchased by the Group.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s interests in
unconsolidated structured entities is the carrying amount of the assets
held and is included in Notes 19 and 20. As at 31 December 2018, no
financial support was given to the unconsolidated structured entities
(2017: Nil).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.3 Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

A jointly controlled entity is an arrangement whereby the Group and
other parties contractually agree to share control of the arrangement, and
have rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group’s interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity method and are
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entities’ net assets
and any impairment losses relating to the investment. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly controlled entities
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the jointly controlled entities’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

1.4 Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence,
but not control or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy decision. This is
generally accompanied by a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights.

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and are initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the associates’ net assets and any impairment losses
relating to the investment. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associates and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated income statement, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the associates’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Provided it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised in the consolidated income statement as
follows:

(a) Interest income and expense

(b)

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments are
recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accruals
basis using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes all amounts paid or
received between parties to the contract, including cash rebates
granted in relation to residential mortgage loans, that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent increase of such
net present value of impaired assets due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income arises on financial services provided
by the Group and is recognised when the corresponding service
is provided, except where the fee is charged to cover the costs
of a continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as income
in the accounting period in which the cost or risk is incurred and is
accounted for as interest income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.5 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(c) Finance income from finance lease and hire purchase contract

Finance income implicit in finance lease and hire purchase payments
is recognised as interest income over the period of the leases so as
to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of return on the
outstanding net investment in the leases for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are earned. Commission paid to dealers for
acquisition of finance lease loans or hire purchase contracts is
included in the carrying value of the assets and amortised to the
consolidated income statement over the expected life of the lease as
an adjustment to interest income.

(d) Rental income for operating lease

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised
as other operating income in equal instalments over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals receivable are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are
earned.

(e) Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when
the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established. Dividend
income from listed investments is recognised when the share price
of the investment goes ex-dividend.

1.6 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets under the following categories:
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. The classification depends on the business model and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, or the
election of fair value option. Management determines the classification
at initial recognition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at
amortised cost.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Impairment allowances
are recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment
to an allowance account which reduces the carrying amounts of
these assets. If the amount of impairment allowances decreases in
subsequent periods, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss.

This category includes most of the balances and placements with
and loans and advances to banks, advances to customers, certain
trade bills and debt securities.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at fair value.
The subsequent changes in the fair value of these assets (except
those relating to interest income and impairment) are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Impairment allowances are
recognised in profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to other
comprehensive income without reducing the carrying amounts
of these assets. The amounts that are recognised in profit or loss
are the same as the amounts that would have been recognised in
profit or loss if these assets have been measured at amortised cost.
If the amount of impairment allowances decreases in subsequent
periods, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income shall be transferred to profit or loss.

This category includes most of the trade bills, debt securities,
certain balances and placements with and loans and advances to
banks, and advances to customers.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(Continued)

The Group has also elected to designate some equity investments
(that is not held for trading) at fair value through other
comprehensive income. The subsequent changes in the fair value
of these equity investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income recognised in profit or
loss. Unlike the financial assets mentioned above, these equity
investments are not subject to impairment assessment. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income shall not be transferred to profit or
loss, and shall be transferred to retained earnings.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets mandatorily
measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(i) Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets that:

— are held in a business model whose objective is neither
hold to collect contractual cash flows nor hold to collect
contractual cash flows and sell, or

—  have contractual cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest, or

— are not designated at fair value through profit or loss

are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes
in the fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/
loss arising from financial instruments mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss” in the consolidated income
statement. These financial assets are not subject to impairment
assessment.

This category mainly composed of debt and equity investments.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) VULSTFHEEGFABGRZ Z@ EE  (c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
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Financial assets that meet the amortised cost or fair value
through other comprehensive income criteria may be designated
by management to be measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“fair value option”) at inception if they meet the
following criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases;

— A group of financial assets is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
this is the basis on which information about these assets is
provided internally to the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

These financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in the
fair value of these assets are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising from
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss”
in the consolidated income statement. These financial assets are not
subject to impairment assessment.

This category mainly composed of debt securities.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.6 Financial assets (Continued)

Purchases and sales of securities are recognised on trade-date — the date
on which the Group becomes a party to the contractual provision of the
instrument. Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to
the borrowers.

1.7 Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises expected credit loss (“ECL”) on the following
financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss:

— Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks
—  Advances to customers and trade bills

—  Insurance premium receivable

—  Debt securities

—  Certain loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

No impairment loss is recognised on equity investments.

At initial recognition, impairment allowance is required for ECL
resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months
(or less, where the remaining life is less than 12 months) (“12-month
ECL”).

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk, impairment allowance
is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of the financial instrument (“life-time ECL”).

The application of the ECL model will result in three stages of financial
assets:

— A financial asset is classified under Stage 1 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination and there has not been a significant
increase in its credit risk since inception. Recognition for 12-month
ECL is required.

— A financial asset is classified under Stage 2 if it was not
credit-impaired upon origination but has since suffered a significant
increase in credit risk. Recognition for life-time ECL is required.

— A financial asset which has been credit-impaired with objective
evidence of default is classified under Stage 3 and is assessed for
life-time ECL.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default,
loss given default and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate.

For loan commitments, the ECL is the present value of the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the Group if the
holder of the commitment draws down the loan and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive if the loan is drawn down.

For financial guarantee contracts, the ECL is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder of the guarantee contract
less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.

Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired
financial assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets and their interests are
accrued net of the impairment amounts. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes but not limited to the following observable data:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(v) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets) (Continued)

A loan that has been rescheduled due to a deterioration in the borrower’s
financial condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless
there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has occurred when contractual payment
are 90 days past due or more.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset has significantly
increased since origination, both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information is considered.

More details on the determination of a significant increase in credit risk
are set out in Note 4.1.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, unless there is
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise, the
Group presumes that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are 30 days past due or more.

Modification

A financial asset is modified when the contractual terms governing the
cash flows of a financial asset are modified between initial recognition
and maturity of the financial asset.

The modified financial asset is derecognised if the existing agreement
is cancelled and a new agreement is made on substantially different
terms or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the
modified financial asset is a substantially different financial instrument.

In the case where the modified financial asset is derecognised, the ECL
is remeasured at the date of derecognition to determine the net carrying
amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised
carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset will lead to
a gain/loss on derecognition.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Modification (Continued)

The new financial asset will generally has an impairment allowance
measured based on 12-month ECL.

Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Group
calculates the modification gain/loss by comparing the gross carrying
amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance).

The Group determines if the credit risk of the modified financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of a default occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified
contractual terms) and that at initial recognition (based on the original,
unmodified contractual terms).

If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected
at initial recognition, the impairment allowance will continue to be
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The impairment allowance
will only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence
of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following modification
leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.

Write-off

Loans and debt securities are written off with related impairment
allowances (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
Such loans and debt securities are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the impairment charge to income
statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.7 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Impairment allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of
financial position as follows:

— financial assets at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross
carrying amount of the assets;

— financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:
no impairment allowance is presented in the statement of financial
position as the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value.
However, the impairment allowance is recognised in the financial
asset revaluation reserve; and

— loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: generally, as a
provision on the liabilities side.

1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial liabilities
mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss and
financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

(1) Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liability that is incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the short term are mandatorily measured at fair
value through profit or loss. It is carried at fair value and any
changes in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss arising
from financial instruments mandatorily measured at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

(a) VALSTHEEGFAB @RS £ A (a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
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A financial liability is designated as fair value through profit
or loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities
so designated include certain certificates of deposit issued and
certain deposits received from customers that are embedded
with derivatives. A financial liability is typically so designated
if it meets the following criteria:

— The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities
or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases;

— A group of financial liabilities is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
information about these liabilities is provided internally to
the management; or

— It relates to those financial instruments embedded with
derivatives which significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise be required under the contract.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are carried at fair value and any gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value are recognised as “Net gain/loss
arising from financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss” in the consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.8 Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

(b) Deposits, certificates of deposit issued, subordinated debts issued
and other liabilities

Deposits, certificates of deposit issued and subordinated debts
issued, other than those classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, together with other financial liabilities
are carried at amortised cost. Any difference between proceeds net
of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the other financial
liabilities using the effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the
proceeds received from issuance, net of direct issue costs.

1.9 Repos and reverse repos

Securities sold to a counterparty with an obligation to repurchase at
a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a repurchase
agreement are referred to as repos. Securities purchased from a
counterparty with an obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a
pre-determined price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.

Repos are initially recorded as deposits and balances from banks at the
actual amount of cash received from the counterparty. Financial assets
given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment in securities or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss. Reverse repos are initially recorded as
balances and placements with banks at the actual amount of cash paid
to the counterparty. Financial assets received as collateral under reverse
repurchase agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The
difference between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest
income or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.

1.10 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at their fair value. Certain derivatives embedded in other financial
instruments are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in income statement.

Derivative transactions are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.11 Valuation of securities and derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market
prices at the valuation date without any deduction for estimated future
selling costs. Financial assets are priced at current bid prices while
financial liabilities are priced at current ask prices. For unlisted securities
and where the market for a financial instrument is not active, the Group
estimates fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that
are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option
pricing models refined to reflect the issuer’s specific circumstances.

1.12 Investment properties

Land and/or buildings which are owned and/or held under a leasehold
interest for long-term rental yields and/or for capital appreciation, and
that are not occupied by the companies in the Group, are classified as
investment property. When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease, and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties leased under
finance leases.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

When a property is transferred to investment property following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between
the carrying amount of the property immediately prior to the transfer
and its fair value is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the bank premises revaluation
reserve in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”.
However, a revaluation increase is recognised as income only to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised as an expense. Decreases are first set off against increases
on previous valuations of the same asset and thereafter are debited to
the consolidated income statement. Upon disposal of the property, the
relevant portion of the bank premises revaluation reserve is released
and transferred from the bank premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.13 Other properties and equipment

(a)

(b)

Premises

Premises represent those properties held for own use and are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Where
the land and building elements of the leasehold properties held for
own use can be allocated reliably at the inception of the lease, the
land element is accounted for as finance lease if the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to
the leasee. As such, any leasehold land premiums for acquiring the
land leases, or other lease payments, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight line basis over the period of the
lease or where there is impairment, the impairment is charged to
the income statement. Any buildings which are situated on such
land leases are presented as part of premises. Where the land and
building elements of the leasehold properties cannot be allocated
reliably at the inception of the lease, the land and building elements
are treated as a finance lease and classified as premises.

Depreciation of premises is calculated on a straight line basis to
write off the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

—  Leasehold land is depreciated over the unexpired terms of the
leases.

— Building and improvements thereto are depreciated over the
lesser of 40 years or the remaining estimated useful life.

Furniture and equipment

Furniture and equipment is stated at cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated on a reducing balance
basis to write off the assets over their estimated useful lives, at
annual rates ranging from 10% to 30%.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.14 Impairment of other assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

1.15 Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are reported as “Other accounts” under
“Advances and other accounts” and the relevant loans are derecognised.
The repossessed assets are measured at the minimum of the amount of
the related loans and advances, carrying amount and net realisable value.

1.16 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Bank’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was determined.

Translation differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary items such as equity securities at fair
value through other comprehensive income are included in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.16 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Assets and liabilities are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the exchange reserve.

1.17 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in the consolidated income statement
except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of
the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing deductible
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods,
in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.17 Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk. Insurance
contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. As
a general guideline, the Group defines significant insurance risk as the
possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured
event that are at least 10% more than the benefits payable if the insured
event did not occur.

(@)

(b)

Recognition and measurement

The Group issues various classes of insurance contract including
accident and health, motor vehicles, ships, goods in transit, property
damage, employees’ compensation, general liability and pecuniary
loss. Risks under these insurance policies usually cover one year
duration.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned
premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The portion
of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired
risks at the end of the reporting period is reported as the unearned
premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission and are net of duties levied on premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the consolidated
income statement as incurred. They include direct and indirect
claims settlement costs and arise from events that have occurred
up to the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been
reported to the Group. Liabilities for unpaid claims are separately
analysed by class of business. They are estimated using the input
of assessments for individual cases reported to the Group and
statistical techniques for the claims incurred but not reported.

Outstanding claims

Outstanding claims are assessed by reviewing individual claims and
include an estimate for claims incurred but not reported at the end
of reporting date. This provision, although not capable of precise
assessment, has been made in the light of available information
and after taking into account direct claims handling expenses and
possible recoveries from other parties. Indirect expenses relating
to the general administration of claims are not included as part of
outstanding claims.

The provision for claims incurred but not reported at the end of
reporting date is made based on historical experience.

Claims recoverable from reinsurers are included as an asset at the
end of reporting date.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.18 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and discounts that vary with and are related to
securing new contracts and renewing existing contracts are
capitalised as DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
insured. The DAC is subsequently amortised over the terms of the
insurance policies as premium is earned.

Liability adequacy test

At the end of each reporting period, liability adequacy test is
performed to ensure the unearned premium reserves net of related
DAC assets are sufficient to cover the contract liabilities. In
performing this test, current best estimates of future contractual
cash flows and claims handling and maintenance (administration)
expenses, as well as investment income from the assets backing
such liabilities, are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged
to the income statement and a provision for losses arising from
liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision) is established.

Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts held by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued by the
Group and that meet the classification requirements for insurance
contracts are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Insurance
contracts entered into by the Group under which the contract holder
is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with insurance
contracts.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its reinsurance
contracts held are recognised as reinsurers’ share of insurance
contracts. These assets consist of short-term balances due from
reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are dependent on
the expected claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to reinsurers
are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Premiums ceded and claims reimbursed
are presented on a gross basis.

The Group assesses the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts
for impairment on an annual basis. If there is objective evidence
that the reinsurers’ share of insurance contracts is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount of the insurance contracts to
its recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.18 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(f) Receivables and payables related insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due. These include
amounts due to and from agents, brokers and insurance contract
holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the insurance
receivable accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement.

1.19 Provisions

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligation as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

1.20 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee
(“the holder”) for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

The fair value of the guarantee (being the guarantee fees received) is
initially recognised as deferred income in the financial statements on
the date that the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with Note 1.19 and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantees are recognised in
the income statement.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.21 Employee benefits

Employee benefits include short-term leave entitlements and long-term
staff retirement benefits as follows:

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
recognised when the absences occur.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates six staff retirement schemes. The assets of
these schemes are all held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contributions to schemes with defined contribution
arrangements and the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) schemes
are expensed as incurred.

Annual contributions to the retirement benefit schemes with defined
benefit arrangements are determined based on periodic valuations
of the assets and liabilities of such schemes by qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. Under this method, the cost
of providing retirement benefits is charged to the consolidated
income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service
lives of employees in accordance with the advice of qualified
actuaries. The defined benefit obligation is measured as the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of
government securities which have terms to maturity approximating
the terms of the related liabilities.

Actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit schemes are
recognised in other comprehensive income and reflected
immediately in retained earnings.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.22 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Rentals applicable to such operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is a lessor under operating leases, assets leased
out mainly include properties and equipment and are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies except where the
asset is classified as investment property. Rental income (net of any
incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term. Contingent rentals receivable are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

1.23 Hire purchase contracts and finance leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee are classified as finance leases.

Where the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount representing
the net investment in the lease is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “Advances and other accounts”. The net
investment represents the total rentals receivable under hire purchase
contracts and finance leases less unearned finance income. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as
set out in Note 1.7. Finance income implicit in the rental receivable is
credited to the consolidated income statement over the lease period or
hire period so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment outstanding for each accounting period.

1.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations. Information provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management to make decisions about allocating resources and
assessing performance of operating segments is measured in accordance
with HKFRSs.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class
of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.25 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise balances with original maturity within three months from the
date of acquisition including cash, balances with banks, treasury bills and
certificates of deposit that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Balances from banks, which form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management, are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

1.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a related party is a person
or entity that is related to the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii1) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or
of a parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or

an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a).
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1 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
1.26 Related parties (Continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.

1.27 Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale if
it is highly probable that its carrying amount will be recovered through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual assets and liabilities in a disposal
group) is brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting policies
before the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions
to this measurement policy so far as the consolidated financial statements
of the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in Note 1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are recognised in
the consolidated income statement. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.1 Impairment of financial assets

With the implementation of HKFRS 9, the critical accounting
estimates and judgments in relation to impairment of financial assets
and held-to-maturity securities used by the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 are no longer applicable. The key estimates and
judgments under the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9 are as
follows:

The Group reviews its credit portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. The measurement of impairment losses across all
categories of credit asset requires judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

2.2 Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where valuation
techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values,
they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel
independent of the department that created them to ensure that outputs
reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical,
models use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk (both
own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management
to make estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors would
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

2.3 Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis. The valuation has considered a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefit by using the asset or by selling it to another
market participant who will use the asset in its highest and best use. The
fair values are assessed based on the capitalisation of the net income for
the properties using Investment Method of Valuation. The contractual
rental income and the expected future market rental income after
allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements are capitalised
at observed market yields. The principal assumptions underlying the
estimation of market value are those related to: the receipt of contractual
rentals; expected future market rentals; void periods; maintenance
requirements; and observed market yields.

In addition, the valuations are also assessed by reference to comparable
market transactions as reported in the relevant market at similar
locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values of
the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location difference,
building age, time of transaction, shop frontage and pedestrian flow, etc.

Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.

2.4 Income tax

There are certain transactions and activities for which the ultimate tax
destination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially estimated, such difference will impact the current
income tax and deferred income tax in the period during which such a
determination is made.

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future.

In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are less or
more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or
further recognition takes place.
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2 Critical accounting estimates and judgments in applying
accounting policy (Continued)

2.5 Ultimate liability arising from claims made under insurance
contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under
insurance contracts is one of the Group’s critical accounting estimates.
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of loss
events that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) to the Group
at the end of the reporting period. The estimation of IBNR claims is
generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation
of the cost of settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim events is available. IBNR claims may not be
apparent to the insured until many years after the event that gives rise to
the claim has happened.

Estimation of the ultimate cost of certain liability claims can be a
complex process. There are several sources of uncertainty that need
to be considered in the estimating of the liability that the Group will
ultimately pay for such claims. In particular, the claims arising from the
employees’ compensation and other liability policies can be longer in
tail and difficult to estimate. The Group has appointed an independent
actuary to estimate the claim liabilities using established actuarial
methodologies. The methodologies are statistical in nature and can be
affected by various factors. The more significant factors that can affect
the reliability of the liability estimation include jurisprudence that can
broaden the intent and scope coverage of the protections offered in the
insurance contracts issued by the Group, the extent to which actual claim
results differ from historical experience and the time lag between the
occurrence of the event and the report of such claim to the Group.

2.6 Staff retirement scheme

Actuarial assumptions are made in valuing future pension obligations as
set out in Note 15. There is uncertainty that these assumptions will hold
true in the future. They are reviewed periodically and are updated where
necessary.
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3 Bank Level Statement of Financial Position

ZO0O—N\ =0—t
2018 2017
R W T BT T
Note HKS$’000 HK$’000
&R Assets
E‘Eﬁfﬁi [F] SEAF T Cash, balances and placements with
B and loans and advances to banks 85,860,702 77,148,717
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments 487,673 1,408,541
HE I TEEE AR  Financial assets mandatorily measured
Z g E at fair value through profit or loss 2,087,973 =
FHE R B MR 205 Trading securities _ 1,040,934
e U/\$fﬂf s AfHziE  Financial assets designated at fair
A A value through profit or loss 4,200,028 5,646,902
DA B AE b A A 4 T Financial investments at fair value
Wi ts 2 e through other comprehensive income 47,166,430 =
Al 2 Available-for-sale securities - 45,012,059
TEBES RUAY IR 2 4 Bl % Financial investments at amortised cost 148,199 —
F5 2 2 A5 5 Held-to-maturity securities - 331,356
K B HA R TE Advances and other accounts 164,604,243 158,333,202
Bﬁ%i\\ﬁj%fﬁ Interests in subsidiaries 22 823,147 823,147
I_]TA’?FJE‘E@TEES Interests in jointly controlled entities 22,000 1,258,600
5 &N e g Interests in associates 1,236,600 -
# Q%% Investment properties 3,331,634 3,261,765
THE - HfE 25 Interests in leasehold land 116,006 133,516
HoA ) 2 B st Other properties and equipment 1,190,427 1,293,736
Al [a] B IH Tax recoverable 614 2,681
MEIEF TH & Deferred tax assets 40,151 37,721
GIE & & Assets classified as held for sale 1,980 -
MERE Total assets 311,317,807 295,732,877
=L Liabilities
[F] ZEAE 2K Deposits and balances from banks 35,401,573 33,134,691
LG IRIAT Z B AR Trading liabilities - 77,380
fTH= 4 Rl T HL Derivative financial instruments 769,341 794,593
BPIER Deposits from customers 222,436,199 211,919,279
AT Z A7 Certificates of deposit issued 7,624,032 4,582,410
BT 2R EEA Subordinated debts issued 3,128,160 4,675,302
WA A Current taxation 205,360 157,674
PE S A JA B 15 Deferred tax liabilities - 63,767
oAb B TE K T 2 Other accounts and accruals 3,954,052 4,392,279
BB Total liabilities 273,518,717 259,797,375
HE fii Equity
A Share capital 1,160,951 1,160,951
fiti i Reserves 34 32,064,909 30,201,321
Total equity attributable to
S A AT IR AR B R shareholders of the Bank 33,225,860 31,362,272
FHSMER TH Additional equity instruments 4,573,230 4,573,230
i 4 A8 Total equity 37,799,090 35,935,502

2 [ AR

Total equity and liabilities 311,317,807 295,732,877

LER _O—LF=H -+ —HH#EH Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21

B AR A - March 2019.
wl i AT HE R AR XU Shiqing Executive Director and General Manager
B8 BATE F AR AR LIU Jun Executive Director and General Manager
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4 Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of
some degree of risk or combination of risks. The Group recognises that
taking risk is core to its financial business and the operational risks
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group’s aim is
therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group has established policies and procedures for the identification,
measurement, control and monitoring of the inherent risk of the
operations. The most important risks are credit risk, market risk,
liquidity risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risks. The adequacy and effectiveness
of risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed by
the Management Committee of the Board of Directors (the “Management
Committee”). The Internal Audit Department also performs regular audits
to ensure compliance with policies and procedures.

4.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that an
obligor (including guarantor) or a counterparty will cause a financial
loss for the Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Credit
exposures arise principally from loans and advances, debt securities,
derivative financial instruments, treasury bills, and other on-balance
sheet exposures to counterparties in the Group’s asset portfolio. There is
also credit risk in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan
commitments. Significant changes in the economy, or in the health of a
particular industry segment, could result in losses that are different from
those provided for at the end of the reporting period.

The Group has established credit policies that govern credit extension
criteria, credit approval, review and monitoring processes, the internal
credit rating system and impairment assessment processes. The Group’s
credit risk management and control are centralised in Credit Management
Department which reports to the Credit Committee and Management
Committee regularly. The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility
for the effectiveness of credit risk management processes.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Credit risk measurement

(i) Loans and advances

In assessing credit risk of loans and advances to customers and to banks
and other counterparties, effective systems are adopted for measurement
and monitoring of the credit risk as part of the credit assessment process.
The Group’s credit grading system, which in general, takes into account
the underlying credit-worthiness of the counterparties, including the
financial strengths of the guarantors (as the case may be), collateral
pledged and the risk of specific transactions, allows differentiation and
management of credit risk for asset portfolios of respective business
units.

(ii) Debt securities and treasury bills

For debt securities, external ratings from recognised external credit
assessment institutions are used for assessing and managing credit
risk exposures. The investments in these securities allow the Group to
achieve an appropriate level of returns commensurate with the risks and
to maintain a readily available source of funding at the same time.

(ii1) Credit related commitments

The Group has issued credit related commitments including guarantees
and letters of credit. The primary purpose of these instruments is
to ensure that funds are available to a customer as required. These
instruments represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will make
payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties. These instruments carry similar level of the same credit risk as
loans.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorised
facility limits in the form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With
respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is less than the
total unused commitments, as most commitments to extend credit are
contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The
Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because
longer-term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than shorter-term commitments.

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies
The Group manages and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever

they are identified, in particular, to individual counterparties and groups,
and to industries and countries.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)

To avoid concentration risk, credit exposures to individual customers,
counterparties and industry sectors are carefully managed and
monitored by the use of limits. All credit risk limits are approved by the
Management Committee. The Management Committee is also responsible
for the review and approval of the largest credit exposures and portfolio
management of risk concentrations. Approval authorities are delegated
to the Group’s Credit Committee and other lending officers. Actual
credit exposures, including on- and off-balance sheet exposures, limits
and asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by the Credit
Management Department by keeping a central liability record for each
group of related counterparties and are subject to checks by the internal
audit function.

The exposure to any one borrower including banks is further restricted
by sub-limits covering on- and off-balance sheet exposures, and daily
delivery risk limits in relation to trading items such as forward foreign
exchange contracts. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily.

Some specific control and risk mitigation measures are outlined below:

(i) Collateral

The Group seeks to obtain collateral to mitigate credit risk to an
acceptable level. All credit decisions, whether or not secured by
collateral, are based on counterparties’ repayment capacity. The Group
implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of
collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal types of collateral in
credit risk mitigation include:

—  Mortgages over residential properties and other properties;

—  Charges over business assets such as cash deposits, premises,
machineries, inventory and accounts receivable; and

— Charges over financial instruments such as equities and debt
securities.

At 31 December 2018, the lower of gross loan amount and the estimated
fair value of the collateral and other credit enhancements held against it
amounted to HK$66,634,982,000 (2017: HK$64,589,045,000).
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(i) Collateral (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the lower of gross credit-impaired loan
amount and the estimated fair value of the collateral and other credit
enhancements held against it amounted to HK$461,324,000.

The Group has established policies to govern the determination of
eligibility of assets taken as collateral for credit risk mitigation. In order
for an asset to be considered as effective risk mitigation, the market
value of the asset should be readily determinable or can be reasonably
established. The asset is marketable and there exists a readily available
secondary market for disposal of the asset. In addition, the Group is able
to secure control over the asset if necessary. The collateral is revalued
periodically ranging from daily to annually, depending on the type of
collateral. As for those past due exposures, the main types of collateral
held are cash deposits and properties.

(i) Master netting agreements

The Group further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into
master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes
a significant volume of transactions. Master netting arrangements do not
generally result in an offset of the assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position, as transactions are usually settled on a gross basis.
However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced
by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if an event of default
occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a
net basis.

(iii) Derivatives

The principal derivatives used by the Group are interest and foreign
exchange rate related contracts, which are primarily over-the-counter
derivatives. Most of the Group’s derivative positions have been entered
into to meet customer demand and to hedge these and other trading
positions. The Management Committee places trading limits on the level
of exposure that can be taken in relation to both overnight and intra-day
market positions. With the exception of specific hedging arrangements,
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated with these
derivatives are normally offset by entering into counterbalancing
positions, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions. Given the purpose for entering
into such derivative transaction, collateral or other security is not usually
obtained for credit risk exposures on these instruments, except where the
Group requires margin deposits from counterparties.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(b) Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(iii) Derivatives (Continued)

Under the terms of the Group’s current collateral obligations under
derivative contracts, it is estimated the Group would not be required to
post additional collateral in the event of one or two notch downgrade in
the Group’s credit rating based on the positions as at 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

(c) Impairment allowance policies
(i) Impairment allowance policies

ECL for assets are calculated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate. The calculation of ECL takes into account
the stages, the cash flow types and other risk parameters to make it an
unbiased and probability weighted average by evaluating a range of
possible outcomes incorporating forecasted macroeconomic conditions.

The Group defines the impairment assessment rules by segment to
estimate future cash flows individually or by the Rule-based Approach.

Assets are divided into several segment, including Corporate,
Non-Mortgage Retail, Credit Card, Mortgage Loans, Bank, Sovereign
and Specialised Lending. Each segment would have their risk parameters
(i.e. probability of default “PD”, loss given default “LGD”, expected
drawdown, prepayment and period of exposure).

The ECL for corporate segment with stage 3 is determined on an
individual basis using a discounted cashflow methodology. The expected
future cash flows are based on the credit risk estimates as at the reporting
date, reflecting reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of future recoveries and expected future receipts of interest. Collateral
is taken into account if it is likely that the recovery of the outstanding
amount will include realisation of collateral based on its estimated fair
value of collateral at the time of expected realisation, less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral. The cashflows are discounted at a
reasonable approximation of the effective interest rate.
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Internal credit rating

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

Other segments would be assessed by Rule-based Approach by
computing the present value of difference between the contractual
cash flow due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. Except individual card
segment, ECL would be calculated in account level, while accounts
under individual card segment would be grouped based on similar risk
characteristic (i.e. current rating, original rating, day past due). Both the
contractual cash flow and expected cash flow would be discounted by
effective interest rate to present value. For each expected cash flow, the
probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default would
be accessed.

Assets are classified into three stages to reflect the expected credit loss.
Impairment allowance of each stage is calculated based on the product
of probability of default, loss given default and exposure at default. The
Group will account for expected credit losses within the next 12 months
as Stage 1 when those financial instruments are first recognised; and
to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses as Stage 2 when there
have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.
Full lifetime expected credit losses will also be recognised as Stage 3 if
objective evidence of impairment occurred and interest accrual will then
be net of the impairment amount of associated Stage 3 financial assets.

Significant increases in credit risk for stage 2 assets is determined by
segment, credit risk ratings, date of initial recognition, delinquency and
credit asset classification.

The table below shows the relationship between the Group’s internal
credit rating and credit asset classification.

e B 7 2 43

Credit asset classification

il 1-23
Grades 1-23
24
Grade 24
25
Grade 25
26
Grade 26
27
Grade 27

s

Pass

Special Mention
Substandard
SR

Doubtful

s 1

Loss
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c¢) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)
(i) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)

“Pass” represents credit assets where the obligor is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not
in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents credit assets where the obligor is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position.
Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse
conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents credit assets where the obligor displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents credit assets where collection in full is improbable
and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest,
taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents credit assets which are considered uncollectible
after all collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the
institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

The decision rules for stage allocation are as follows:

P A

Decision Rules

BB

Stage 1

PR

Stage 2

=B

Stage 3
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- Current internal credit rating is between 1 to 7; or Current internal credit
rating is between 8 to 23 with less than 3 notches downgrade since
origination; and

- Less than 30 days past due

—  New accounts with Special Mention status

—  CERTR AR RREAL S 24 5 B AT N AR (E BT
IR RE3AR A L 5 5%

- PR30 E89H

- Current internal credit rating is 24; or Current internal credit rating is
between 8 to 23 with 3 or more notches downgrade since origination; or

— 30 to 89 days past due

- EATAERE BRI 252272 H 5 5L

- EEFK90 H B B

—  Current internal credit rating is between 25 to 27; or

- 90 days past due or more

B AR B R 8 223 2 KL H A 41

AR 8 2223 2 [H] H B W1 IR FERR

Based on statistical approaches, the Group has came up with a series
of macroeconomic factors that exhibit significant correlation with the
Group’s internal default rates and collateral value. The Group designs
three scenarios with these macroeconomic factors, namely optimistic,
base and pessimistic. The Risk Management Committee members put
forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence, enabling
the Group to generate forecasts of macroeconomic factors and the
forward-looking PD and LGD. These forward-looking PD and LGD are
then used as input parameters in the expected credit loss model.
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HE > WHERR A ERRS o @5 &7
il 3 7 T8 B A 2 AT G2 IR
T 2 FT RE WA IE] 2 B O > 4 SRR B
MY P BRI B -

SR A RN W(E HE A T B G) M RMR R B 2
SREI SO AR I EE 5 KGi)EEL
B I 1 A Bl AR 1w sR m 4R L > ik
R LS 2 g > KGRI > FEH
T SIf? DA 468 B BV Al 72

(d) FHIEHLIT 4 R F A 5 B B B 2 i
Z 17 5 1 B B

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(c) Impairment allowance policies (Continued)
(i1) Impairment allowance policies for 2017

The Group undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring of its
credit portfolios, and requires the review of individual financial assets
that are above preset thresholds at least annually or more regularly when
individual circumstances require. Impairment allowances are recognised
for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting period
based on objective evidence of impairment as described in Note 1.7 of
2017 Annual Report. The Group’s internal credit rating system assists
management to determine whether objective evidence of impairment
exists.

Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined
by an evaluation of the incurred loss at the end of the reporting period
on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all individually significant
accounts. The assessment normally encompasses commitment of
collateral held and the anticipated cash flows for that individual account
adjusted at the relevant discount rates.

Collectively assessed impairment allowances are provided for (i)
portfolios of homogenous assets that are individually below preset
thresholds; and (ii) losses that have been incurred but have not yet been
individually identified, using available data on historical loss experience,
and economic conditions, statistical analysis and supplemented by
experienced judgment.

(d) Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other
credit enhancements

—O—N\ —0—
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000
Balances and placements with and loans and

[m] ZELE T M Bk advances to banks 85,552,951 76,580,234
A4 T H Derivative financial instruments 487,673 1,408,541

PLAFEE A B RIRZ Financial assets at fair value through profit
R E or loss 6,517,668 6,984,532
ARG Investment in securities 46,987,585 45,385,254
R HA R TH Advances and other accounts 165,267,211 159,017,509
5 BRI Credit commitments 40,743,965 64,000,245
345,557,053 353,376,315




Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited 9 5
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

4 Ll m B PR (%)
4.1 f5 & mBE (4)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) EHEJH il i B 3R 5 WER 5 90E &

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied

() BRI

(i) Gross carrying/notional amount

BREE B R B R B aat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T T i o BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O—N\& 2018
Balances and placements
with and loans and
(7] SEAE TR B B advances to banks
— PRSI A TIEE (3EFE17) - at amortised cost (Note 17) 69,575,202 - - 69,575,202
— AP A2 — at fair value through other
e 45 * comprehensive income* 16,009,397 - - 16,009,397
(v e Debt securities
— R ARSI (GERE20) - at amortised cost (Note 20) 624,271 - 197,624 821,895
— AP A A2 — at fair value through other
i 45 * comprehensive income* 46,352,313 - 746,287 47,098,600
B H A R Advances and other accounts
— R A 51 B — at amortised cost* 148,136,606 7,093,751 917,516 156,147,873
— APEE A2 — at fair value through other
g 25 *# comprehensive income** 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7,837,722
Loan commitments and
financial guarantee
RFORE K B G 4 contracts® 9,383,765 219,863 22,923 9,626,551
295,363,075 9,809,815 1,884,350 307,117,240

*

AU S MR AR S R *
o7 5 (E W g B 28 O 1B ok 2 1E W
W & MO E S O A Rk B

PR RGP R BB A
A o

For the purposes of this disclosure, the gross carrying amounts represent
the amortised cost of financial assets, before adjusting for any impairment
allowances and changes in fair value, and therefore may not agree with
those shown in notes to the financial statements.

f AR SR RAET EE MR
OB (B AR 2 WO IE - [R] L BEL A RS R
AERE21 361 51 7R Y BT BT A ] -

The amounts represent those items that are subject to impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9 and therefore do not agree with those shown
in Notes 21 and 36 to the financial statements.



9 6 Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.1 f5 & mBE (4)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) EHEJH il i B IR 5 WER 5 9E &
T (A AE 19 2 il B L ()

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(i) JRAEHEAHS

(i1) Impairment allowances

i BB PR At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
W Tou W T U W T W% T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZO— N\ 2018
Balances and placements
with and loans and
[F] SEAF R S B advances to banks
— PR A S R
(FERE17) — at amortised cost (Note 17) (31,648) - - (31,648)
— DAAPE B RS A=A — at fair value through other
AT AR A comprehensive income” (1,688) - - (1,688)
(Lt iTe Debt securities
— SRR A S R
(7EF20) — at amortised cost (Note 20) (864) - (141,540)  (142,404)
— DAAPE B RS A=A — at fair value through other
2 T WAL 2 comprehensive income” (15,751) - (580,975) (596,726)
B B HA HRTH Advances and other accounts
— SRR A S R
(FERE21) — at amortised cost (Note 21) (122,171) (55,691) (550,701) (728,563)
— DAAPE B RS A=A — at fair value through other
AT AR A comprehensive income” (118) (42,287) - (42,405)
BOPORE R RIS A K Loan commitments and financial
(FERE31) guarantee contracts (Note 31) (12,906) (6,084) (15,960) (34,950)
(185,146) (104,062)  (1,289,176)  (1,578,384)

N EHFECMEEEMBRRA L AE A
(BB AR o L (0 Y AFS 17 Tl < 8 £
AR 8 TS 8 W 9 56 T A R T

These financial assets are measured at fair value on the statement of
financial position. The corresponding impairment allowances are recognised
in financial asset revaluation reserve without reducing the carrying amounts
of these assets.
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(e) EJEJH il B IR 5 R 90t 2

T (E A AE 19 2 il B L ()

(iii) MR, 4% S A0 K (B YR A A 47

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment

25 H) allowances during the year
— [FSEFBEK —  Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks
13 Ul fr Sl
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
it AR HRe wit
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
et 4451 LT i A e A
Gross  BfAMER Gross WML Gross  WIAYER Gross TR
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
EhFr #WTx ERTx #RTx W #WTx #WTx #WTn
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS"000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Hell 8 R TG At amortised cost
R0 /\E—H—H >  At1 January 2018, as
AR previously reported 76,580,234 -
AR Effect of initial application
REEAIFOEZHE  of HKFRSY (12,704,035) (16,977)
RZ0—AE—=A—H>  At1January 2018,
&) as restated 03,876,199 (16977) - - - - 63,876,199 (16977)
G Transfers between Stages:
— hAf— PR R ~ Transfers from Stage | - - - - - - - -
— hA R - Transfers from Stage 2 - - - - - - - -
— i = B ~ Transfers from Stage 3 - - - - - - - -
FERRES Changes in credit risk - 4,174 - - - - - 4174
FhERL/ Net assets recognised/
(1 HERR) (derecognised) 5,949,399 (2,148 - - - - 5,949,399 (2,148)
Changes in models/risk
BH/ ARS4ES parameters - (16,697) - - - - - (16,697)
Bz Exchange difference (250,396) - - - - - (250,396) -
RZO—-NF+ZA
Sy At 31 December 2018 09,575,202 (31,648) - - - - 09,575,202 (31,648)
Jia R Net charge to
(AafEm income statement
EHFRIER) (excluding recoveries) (14,671) - - (14,671)
eI E PR ARTE Recoveries - - . -
Net charge to
g R R income statement
(1) (Note 12) (14,67 - - (14,671)
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 f B kE () 4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) E@W?%ﬁfjﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ9%2 (e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
T (B 1 5 19 <2 fl 7 2 () of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)
(iii) Eﬁ@/@ FAH OB E MR EIN (ili) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment
ZBE () allowances during the year (Continued)
— [RIZELE R B () — Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks
(Continued)
3 Wl fr BEWRE
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
R HRE PR i
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
el 441 I 41 i 4 et 441
Gross WML Gross  WfLHER Gross WML Gross WML
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances

et KT #WTx #WFx @Rt #WTx #Wfn #WTx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS'000

WAFEEEALE At fair value through other
Ee comprehensive income

RZO—/\E—H—H > At1 January 2018, as

TR previously reported - -
PRI AR RE  Effect of initial application
b a2 of HKFRS 9 12,704,035 (1,634)

RZ0—/\E—H—H> At January 2018,
&7 as restated 12,704,035 (1,634) - - - - 12,704,035 (1,634)
FEGL Transfers between Stages:
- b TR — Transfers from Stage | - - - - - _ _ _
- IR MR ~ Transfers from Stage 2 - - - - _ - _ .

- =R ~ Transfers from Stage 3 - - - . - - . -
fEERRES Changes in credit risk - 3 - - - - - 3%
PR/ Net assets recognised/

(&R (derecognised) 3,615,462 (535) - - - S| 3615462 (535)

Changes in models/risk
B/ RRs4EE parameters - 446 - - - - - 446
s £H Exchange difference (310,100) - - - - - (310,100) -
RZO—AE+ZA
== At 31 December 2018 16,009,397 (1,688) - - - - 16,009,397 (1,688)
Net charge to income
RIRERIFEA (A2 statement (excluding
R E R AE) recoveries) (54) - i} (54

Yo E SR IR Recoveries - - - _

T g R Net charge to income
(;R1) statement (Note 12) (54) i} } (54
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4 < imhJEUks A B (4)
4.1 fa BEkE (4)
(e) L JHEJH il B 75 # 5 HE R 5 90E &

(A AE 19 2 il B E WL ()

(iii) WRTAT 4% 36 A8 8 o 9 (B M 485 1A 47 1

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(iii)) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment

ZBE () allowances during the year (Continued)
— fEBES —  Debt securities
Hfs Sl fr WL
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
Hme B BB Rl fiit
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
T I 17T ST T .
Gross  BfAHER Gross  WfLHER Gross  WRIEHER Gross  BifAtER
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount  allowances _amount  allowances _amount  allowances amount  allowances
EWFr #WTx #Rfx #WTx W #WTx #WTx ERTn
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS"000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Hel AR At amortised cost
R0~ /\E—H—H > At January 2018, as
AT previously reported - -
VR RRE  Effect of initial application
L% a7 of HKFRS 9 1,414,480 (2,305)
RZ0—/\E—H—H > At January 2018, as
&) restated 1,336,430 (2,183) 78,050 (122) - - 1,414,480 (2,303)
B g Transfers between Stages:
— hA— T ~ Transfers from Stage | (152,378) 09 - - 152,378 (229) - -
— o P - Transfers from Stage 2 - - (78,050) 1 78,050 (122) - -
— = B ~ Transfers from Stage 3 - - - : - - - -
FERRED Changes in credit risk @ - (156,570) (156,574)
FEERD/ Net assets recognised/
(# 1 1ERR) (derecognised) (556,801) 1,048 - - (33467) 15,381 (590,268) 16,429
Changes in models/risk
BH/BRSEESH  parameters 46 } B "
Amortisation of
L GHE DU discount/premium (1,012) - - - 1,633 - 621 -
B £ Exchange difference (1,968) - - - (970) - (2,938) -
RZO—AEFZA
=r=F At 31 December 2018 624271 (864) - - 197,624 (141,540 821,895 (142,404
YR TFRE /() Net reversal/(charge) to
(AL income statement
CHTRIRR) (excluding recoveries) 1,090 - (141,189) (140,099)
W E R R Recoveries - - 10,892 10,892
HE R TR R /() Net reversal/(charge) to
(3:90) income statement (Note 12) 1,090 - (130,297) (129,207)
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 f B kE () 4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(e) E@W?%ﬁfjﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ9%2 (e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
T (B 1 5 19 <2 fl 7 2 () of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)
(iii) Eﬁ@/@ FAH OB E MR EIN (ili) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment
ZBE () allowances during the year (Continued)
—  fE%ESE () —  Debt securities (Continued)
Hfa Sl fr WAL
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
Lt Bk H=RER At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
et 4451 It 451 el A Wi A
Gross TR Gross WM Gross  WRIHER Gross WML
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances

T dWEx #WTx o BRTx EWEx #REx BRTx EWTR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000

DAFEEEAIL At fair value through other

2TlE comprehensive income
RZ0—/\F—H—H> Atl January 2018, as

AT previously reported - -
MR E SRS Effect of initial application

IR B of HKFRS 9 44070958 (31,643)
RZ0—/\E—R—H> At1 January 2018, as

Y restated 42,191,027 (15,080) 1,173,731 (16,503) - - 44,070,958 (31,643)
g Transfers between Stages:

-l TR ~ Transfers from Stage | (773,668) 3l - - 773,668 (311) - -

— o B ~ Transfers from Stage 2 1,273,731 (L151) (1,273,731 1,151 - - - -

— WA= R - Transfers from Stage 3 - - - - - - - -
FEEREH Changes in credit risk 7,991 15412 (580,672) (557,269)
Wl Net assets recognised/

(811 HD) (derecognised) 3,618,602 8,17) - S em) 8| 3,589,400 (8,165)

Changes in models/risk
B/ RS HED parameters 31 - - 31
Amortisation of

T B discount/premium 71,887 - - - (66) - 71,821 -
EiER Exchange difference (641,466) - - - 1,387 - (639,579) -
BZ0—-NEFZA

==f At 31 December 2018 46,352,313 (15,751) - - 746,287 (580,975) 47,098,600 (596,726)
B R R/ (Bf)  Net reversal/(charge) to

(MaffEE income statement

MBI (excluding recoveries) 169 15412 (580,664) (565,083)

Yo E SR IR Recoveries - - _ _

Net reversal/(charge) to
lE SRR/ income statement
(Bf) (GERE12) (Note 12) 169 15412 (580,664) (565,083)
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4 &b )E B B (48)
4.1 f5EEBE ()

(e) CIEJH 2 1B 7 T5 1R 75 Y R 599 2
6 (E A 19 <5 il W2 ()

(iii) MR 4% 3% A8 AR K ol (B e 45 R 4F 1Y
25 (4f)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(iii) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment
allowances during the year (Continued)

— B ABHRIE — Advances and other accounts
3 Ul fr S
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
5 RE BoRE HERER i
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
7T I T 77 I 1T B
Gross W[ (s Gross  WfLHER Gross  BRMAYER Gross  BRMAYER
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
W #WTx #NTx #BTx  #WTx BN #WTx #W T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS’000 HKS’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Hell B R T At amortised cost
RZO—=AF—=A—H At January 2018, as
AR R previously reported” 157,660,286 (631,936)
VR, Bffect of iitial application
BTz w8 of HKFRS 9 (7,357,039) (69,118)
R=0—AF—HA—H> At1January 2018, as
L] restated 139,391,873 (3L122) 9,987,201 (131,896) 924,173 (338,036) 150,303,247 (701,054)
B Transfers between Stages:
- bR — Transfers from Stage |~ (5,393,114) 41,597 4,972,629 (33,133) 420,485 (8,464) - -
— R — Transfers from Stage 2 4,089,119 (1,104)  (4,096,415) 1,668 7,296 (564) - -
— hA R ~ Transfers from Stage 3 1,134 (12) 32,296 (767) (33,430) 79 - -
[FERREH Changes in credit risk - 9,076 (5,389) (390,387) (386,700)
FEEMRR/ Net assets recognised/
(1 7ERR) (derecognised) 10,990,142 08,526 | (3,745,967) 110,362 (284,576) 09,415 6,959,599 248,303
Changes in models/risk
B/ B EES parameters - (9,132) - 3464 - (6,111) - (11,779)
LA Amounts written off - - - - (110395) 110,395 (110,395) 110,395
Unwind of discount on
WEEMHOFEERE  impaiment allowances
(ERS) (Note 5) - - - - - 12 - 12m
Bz Exchange difference (942,548) - (55,993) - (6,037) - (1,004,578) -
RZO—AE+ZA
=i=F At 31 December 2018 148,136,606 (122,071 7,093,751 (55,691) 917,516 (550,701) 156,147,873 (728,563)
i E R/ (BfE)  Net reversal/(charge) to
(R B income statement
1) (excluding recoveries) 08,470 108,437 (327,083) (150,176)
ol E bR AR Recoveries - - 22,984 22,984
Net reversal/(charge) to
Rl REER / income statement
({5 GERe12) (Note 12) 08,470 108,437 (304,099) (127,192)

o OABRSE AR T R R A
OB (B AR 2 WO JE - [ L B A RS R
AERE21 RS 1 B AT BT A

in Note 21 to the financial statements.

The amounts represent those items that are subjected to impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9 and therefore do not agree with those shown
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4 <ol B A PR (A
4.1 f5 ®)abg (4)

(e) LI 7 il FI T 4R 7 R 595 2
60 (ET A 1 1Y <2 ol B W ()

(iii) MR 4% S8 A0 A S (B AR S 4R T
258 ()

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(iii)) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment
allowances during the year (Continued)

—  BEHABRRIE (4]) — Advances and other accounts (Continued)
Hfa Sl fr B
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
5 MRE BoRE R fiit
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
el 441 I 445 el 4 et 4451
Gross MR Gross TR Gross  WMHER Gross WML
carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment carrying  Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
hFn  #WTx #RTx #BTx  #WTx W #WTx #W T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$°000
WAFREEALE At fair value through other
ELe comprehensive income
RZ0—=A$—A—H> At1January 2018, s
AT previously reported - -
PRI E R RE  Bffect of initial application
BRI B2 of HKFRS 9 7,357,039 (133)
RZ0—/\E—H—H>  At1 January 2018, as
) restated 7,357,039 (1,332) - - - - 1357,03 (1,332)
B g - Transfers between Stages:
- A Th R ~ Transfers from Stage |~ (2,577,500) 1,164 2,571,500 (1,164) - - - -
— BB ~ Transfers from Stage 2 - - - - . - - i}
- B =R ~ Transfers from Stage 3 - - - . - - . -
FERRES Changes in credit risk - (16) - (21,407) - - - (21423)
PR/ Net assets recognised/
(1 HER) (derecognised) 476,10 50 (26,512) 186 - - 449,698 236
Changes in models/risk
B/ BRSHES parameters - 16 - (19.902) - - - (19,886)
Bz Exchange difference 25,1M - 513 - - - 30,985 -
RZO—AE+ZA
== At 31 December 2018 5,281,521 (118) 2,556,201 (2,287 - - 7,837,722 (42,405)
U EFBE /(B Net reversal/(charge) to
(Mafme income statement
MR RE) (excluding recoveries) 50 (41,123) - (41,073)
(et Y Recoveries - - - -
Net reversal/(charge) to
Rl EERE income statement
(Bf) (GERE12) (Note 12) 50 (41,123) - (41,073)
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4.1 f5 & mBE (4)

(e)

] 75 7 1 B R HE R A 9E &
T (A AE 19 2l B L ()

(iii) WRTAT " 4% 36 A8 R o 9 (B e 485 1A 47 1

Z 5 E) (#%1)

—  BFURH M EmIE RS H

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

allowances during the year (Continued)

Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts

(e) Summary of financial assets to which the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9 are applied (Continued)

(iii)) Movements of gross carrying/notional amount and impairment

Hf5 Sl fr WL
Non credit-impaired Credit-impaired
SR BoRKE H=RER At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
RREE O WERG 0 LREE O WERR  AREE  WIRH 0 RRNE WG
Notional ~ Impairment Notional  Impairment Notional ~ Impairment Notional ~ Impairment
amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances amount  allowances
hFn #RTx #WTx #BTx #WTx W #WTx #W T
HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
R=0—/E—A—H - At January 2018, as
WAEF R previously reported® 24,946,278 -
PRI A RE  Bffect of initial application
Ao of HKFRS 9 - (61,825)
RZ0=AF—A—H> AtlJanuary 2018, s
&) restated 24,525,863 (44,253) 399,047 (4,734) 21,368 (12,838) 24,946,278 (61,825)
B g Transfers between Stages:
— hF— R - Transfers from Stage | (128,631) 1730 105,918 (1,558) 013 (15,763) - -
— {5 P B - Transfers from Stage 2 246,604 (2,540) (246,604) 2,540 - - - -
— = B ~ Transfers from Stage 3 3459 2,051) 15512 (9,331) (18971) 11,382 - -
FERREH Changes in credit risk - 9,444 - 2,060 - 3,144 - 14,648
FhERL/ Net assets recognised/
(1 HERR) (derecognised) (15,046,329) 546 (50,046) 1,908 (1,904) 212 | (15,098,279) 2,696
Changes in models/risk
BR/ RRS4ES parameters - 8,67 - 3,031 - 2,127) - 9,531
B ER Exchange difference (217,201) - (3,964) - (283) - (221,448) -
RZ0—-MEHZA
=i=H At 31 December 2018 9,383,765 (12,906) 219,863 (6,084) nMm (15,960) 9,626,551 (34,950)
i E R/ (Bf)  Net reversal/(charge) to
(AMafEpme income statement
A (excluding recoveries) 18,617 6,999 1,259 26,875
(EfRE TR Recoveries - - - -
Net reversal/(charge) to
Rl FRE income statement
() (GR1) (Note 12) 18,617 6,999 1,259 26875

f R R AR U ST A U U A B2
OB (EL AR 2 WO JH - [R] L B IS i ok

sERE36 R M HA T[] o

The amounts represent those items that are subject to impairment
requirements under HKFRS 9 and therefore do not agree with those shown

in Note 36 to the financial statements.
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4 b E kg EHE () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 f5 8ABE (%) 4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(D A SETFL R B3R 5 B & (f) Gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to

banks by credit quality

] SEA7 T e B MR IR A5 R S AFIl 4> The gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks

Hranr - are analysed by credit asset classification as follows:
i B R B =R B At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000

ZO— N\ 2018
5 4 85 W A B iR At amortised cost
ey S Pass 69,575,202 - - 69,575,202
e 2 B U Special Mention - - _ _
W ER Substandard - - — _
P Doubtful - - _ _
I ZEiE] Loss - - _ _
i T A8 Gross carrying amount 69,575,202 - - 69,575,202
DA 1 B 4R 6 A\ il At fair value through other

2 AR comprehensive income
A% Pass 16,009,397 - - 16,009,397
e B B U Special Mention - - _ _
W ER Substandard - - _ _
SR Doubtful - - _ _
518 Loss - - _ _

T ThT 44 %A Gross carrying amount 16,009,397 - - 16,009,397
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(g) EBHEHMHIFEEHE

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(g) Gross debt securities by credit quality

TG BUAS MR B LA P E(EFE A HA  The gross debt securities at amortised cost and at fair value through
A TH R gt 2 B RE I ARG A S other comprehensive income are analysed by credit asset classification as

AT follows:
i BB PR At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
W Tou W T U W T W% T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZO— N\ 2018
e B 8 RS ) W At amortised cost
A Pass 624,271 - - 624,271
o hEs Special Mention - - - -
WAk Substandard - - 44,915 44,915
P Doubtful - - 152,709 152,709
518 Loss - - - _
% THI 48 A Gross carrying amount 624,271 - 197,624 821,895
DA 1 B 4R 6 A\ il At fair value through other
2 AR comprehensive income
B Pass 46,352,313 - - 46,352,313
e B B U Special Mention - - _ _
WAk Substandard - - - -
P Doubtful - - 746,287 746,287
18 Loss - - - _
1R T 408 Gross carrying amount 46,352,313 - 746,287 47,098,600
BUPS A R TR M (S B N Z WP 0 The debt securities are analysed by external credit assessment
Hranr - institutions’ ratings as follows:
—O—N
2018
BT oo
HK$°000
AA-EAAA AA-to AAA 24,259,602
A-Z A+ A-to A+ 21,043,938
BBB-%BBB+ BBB- to BBB+ 4,177,622
KR BBB- Lower than BBB- 53,821
MEFT 4% Unrated 3,970,270

53,505,253
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 f5 8ABE (%) 4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(h) HHRHMAIHAR G EE (h) Gross advances and other accounts by credit quality
B H A R TA A5 & A 53/ The gross advances and other accounts are analysed by credit asset
s - classification as follows:
FREB BB PR At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

T T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000

“O—N\& 2018
e B 38 AR ) W At amortised cost
EH Pass 148,136,600 6,130,085 - 154,266,685
T E Special Mention 6 963,666 6,943 970,615
WAk Substandard - - 27,922 27,922
P Doubtful - - 677,628 677,628
18 Loss - - 205,023 205,023
T THT 44 %A Gross carrying amount 148,136,606 7,093,751 917,516 156,147,873
DA 1 B 4R 6 A\ il At fair value through other
2 AR comprehensive income
ok Pass 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7837722
e B B U Special Mention - - _ _
W ER Substandard - - - -
P Doubtful - - _ _
518 Loss - - - _
T ThT 44 %A Gross carrying amount 5,281,521 2,556,201 - 7,837,722
BEEEHSHWE The advances to customers are analysed as follows:
g 5B B BEREB aat
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BT i ST wHT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
—O—)\& 2018
R 1] 4R %E Gross carrying amount 147,293,443 9,618,181 847,955 157,759,579
AR YEA Impairment allowances (118,746) (55,690) (549,333) (723,769)

M T Carrying amount 147,174,697 9,562,491 298,622 157,035,810




Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

4 Ll m B PR (%)
4.1 f5 & mBE (4)

(i) BHRFREMIEREAIHEHGE (i) Gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts by credit

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

B quality
BHOKH B RIER A A MBI GEHEE  The gross loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts are
B AT analysed by credit asset classification as follows:
i BB =R B At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
W Tou W T U W T W% T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
ZO— N\ 2018
B Pass 9,383,765 216,135 - 9,599,900
T E Special Mention - 3,728 - 3,728
WAk Substandard - - 22,923 22,923
SR Doubtful - - - -
518 Loss - - — _
2 FHE Gross notional amount 9,383,765 219,863 22,923 9,626,551
G) EBHsMEE (j) Modified financial assets
EEsm AR IR SREEW T ¢ The modified financial assets not derecognised are as follows:
—O—N
2018
#¥ T oo
HK$°000
W AE NS 2 %8 RS BEEX  Stage 2 or Stage 3 financial assets modified
BERREME R during the year
16 A1 i i 4R Gross carrying amount after modification 81,774
A6 BRI R T AR Gross carrying amount before modification 80,660
B IS A 2 B Ui
(FERE13) Net modification gain (Note 13) 1,114
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4 &b )E B B (48)

4.1 f5 & mBE (4)

(k) ZO—LFEZIFEEBEIE

A . O — LA B {5 B L e B 25 A e B
O — N AT A U S R T R SR o9k
Hf5 B i R R B i s —o—+
SER P RS R AR

() BEEBFEEER

IR I ARYRNME (5 B A AR A 2 A
B3 M A B B s R o 2 A R

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(k) Credit risk disclosures for 2017

As the credit risk disclosures for 2017 are not directly comparable to
that for 2018 which are on a HKFRS 9 basis, the 2017 disclosures are
separately shown below:

(i) Debt securities by credit quality

The tables below present an analysis of debt securities by rating agency

designation based on the external credit assessment institutions’ ratings
that the Group has used in relation to credit risk exposures:

I JE 25 Hofte At
Treasury bills Others Total

BETE  WETT  WETC
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000

—O—Lt 2017

I3 1A Ko 48 ok (L Neither past due nor impaired
AA- EAAA AA- to AAA 14,257,725 11,199,030 25,456,755
A- BA+ A-to A+ - 17,705,837 17,705,837
BBB-%ZBBB+ BBB- to BBB+ - 4,269,714 4,269,714
KA BBB- Lower than BBB- = 619,698 619,698
T AR Unrated — 4,317,782 4,317,782

14,257,725 38,112,061 52,369,786

Hor 8 A of which classified by:

—FHEEE BB 5 — trading securities = 1,040,934 1,040,934

— financial assets designated

— DIAHEERE AR IR

at fair value through profit

4 Rl or loss — 5,943,598 5,943,598
— Ak e S — available-for-sale securities 14,257,725 30,796,173 45,053,898
— FrERRES — held-to-maturity securities = 331,356 331,356

14,257,725 38,112,061 52,369,786

BRZOo—LtEFA=+T—H » AEH
37 48 2 A 2 AT AR 2 RS R o o

There were no impaired available-for-sale debt securities of the Group as
at 31 December 2017.
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k) —O—LFEZIFEMBIEE ()

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(k) Credit risk disclosures for 2017 (Continued)

(i) FEMAHMREXFEEER (i1)) Gross balances and placements with and loans and advances to
banks by credit quality
—o—t
2017
BT
HK$’000
oA 28 1A S SRk (R Neither past due nor
B — impaired Grade 1 76,580,234

RoZo—tHETZA=Zt—H  F¥EHF
T K Sl e A K 2 Bl R K

(i) FFERAHEGEEE

banks.

At 31 December 2017, there were no overdue or impaired balances with

(iii) Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality

HAth
LE X0 Others
Real estate 13 (PN &5k
mortgage Corporate Individual Total
T T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—+t# 2017
A% A 1) e A Dok (L Neither past due nor impaired
S — Grade 1 15,157,895 117,517,499 14,010,655 146,686,049
il Grade 2 73,088 300,274 33,410 406,772
15,230,983 117,817,773 14,044,065 147,092,821
s 300 1 0 0 (L Past due but not impaired
=l H LT Three months or less 752,389 1,543,657 592,683 2,888,729
Six months or less but
—fAAHLL EZNMHA over three months 9,287 1,114 3,185 13,586
7SR A LR Over six months 4,920 - 3,749 8,669
766,596 1,544,771 599,617 2,910,984
BwE Impaired . o Loor 832961 727 834,695
15,998,586 120,195,505 14,644,409 150,838,500
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4 b E kg EHE ()

4.1 f5 B EbE (4)

(k) ZO—LHEZIFREBEHE ()
(iii) ZFERAEFEEER ()

NN LR o M 2

B — 5 [ ) > AURME N RER I
B Ae LAE e -

B — 2 TR Bt | > RN
VRIS > W] BB RS AR SR O AR o

A =M TRERE] ARMERAR
% 9 B T AR W] RE Al S HOEBREE T 5 B
WAIFHEAT fh 2 5 R REI B R B
W fa] o

QLR AT A o AL AR R
B BRI > A —E 51 Bz Sk B
{EE 1R o BERZ 5 B ABINE R [ R AR
e | Z 8RR o (H R AE BRI A B R B
{E BT B4R I LA R AR A o

(iv) B S At B TE el (E R A A — O —
LEFERZEE)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(k) Credit risk disclosures for 2017 (Continued)

(iii) Gross loans and advances to customers by credit quality (Continued)

The following definitions have been adopted for the purpose of the above
analysis:

Grade 1 “satisfactory” represents loans for which borrowers are currently
meeting commitments and for which full repayment of interest and
principal is not in doubt.

Grade 2 “special monitoring” represents loans with which borrowers are
experiencing difficulties and which may threaten the Group’s position.

Grade 3 “substandard” represents loans in which borrowers are
displaying a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment; or
collection in full is improbable without realisation of available collateral.

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment
loss where the loans are fully collateralised. While such loans are of
“substandard” grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have
been included in the above table.

(iv) Movements of impairment allowances of advances and other
accounts during the year of 2017

8 53 Rl gra At
Individual Collective =
assessment assessment Total
T T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MR_O0—+tHFE—H—H At 1 January 2017 102,184 349,317 451,501
[ifE 3% 5] Exchange adjustments = 3,271 3,271
A A R Amounts written off (9,827) (5,118) (14,945)
Recoveries of advances written
Wi [B] 13 4F EL iR 2 Bk off in previous years 1,387 1,647 3,034
Net charge to income statement
TEU R RFHIBR (GEREL2) (Note 12) 244,151 (53,443) 190,708
Unwind of discount on allowance
R T BLE R (GERES) (Note 5) (1,633) - (1,633)
RZO—tFE+=H=+—H At 31 December 2017 336,262 295,674 631,936
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T AR B A R i [ AR AR K AT
wr

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.1 Credit risk (Continued)
(I) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security, as follows:

ZO—N —o—+t

2018 2017

BT BT

HKS$°000 HK$°000

1EEY Residential properties - 2,735
ENGHEYE S Commercial and industrial properties - =
HAth Others - 1,200
- 3,935

WZo—N\NFE+_HA=+—H  KXEH
A [ & (O —b4E : fE)

W lml Wy S e AE AT AT IS DL R Rt A
JIr WSO R VL DA AR 5 4 K

4.2 i 35 A B

A SR [ B AR A 2 T R B - T3 R T
Sy E s S B 5 e m TR 2 A EE
lORARCHR 4 U B A Y R e o i 3 LB
T B HE B - AN R R E S
W R R S — R R E 2
T 35 58 O I T 355 S8 R BB AR AR 36 - B
AR L% e SR ABAR S W B ok B T R o AR
S F 2 i o B R R 1 AR E
& R AESRATHR N Z SN REHF A - #8975 KAl
HTH -

There were no repossessed assets of the Group as at 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil).

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable with the proceeds
used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.

4.2 Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise from open
positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest rates, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices. The Group’s market risk primarily
arises from its positions in foreign exchange, securities and derivatives
in its trading and banking books.
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4 Ll m B PR (%)
4.2 Wi bR (4)
(a) 5 BEEE

BT B AR ) E A THAC 5 R LR
H AR B T A R [R]85 B T T 3 2 T 35 R
B o Jag ) LA ) 8045 28 B(E SR MER
Gtk FLUEM R I B o 2 AE IRAE A
B A SRR > LARE S R R i
W AR RAE - SRR IRE - A
B (0 PR R % Ik i PR T S5 o I TV
5% 8 BB A BRLTT 35 Je\ B A B 2 5 o
g BRI A g H T E M E
Je e R 22 oy ¥4 ol HLAt g8 57 FR AT o T
A [ 2 RE A% R 1 I 8 2 B AT T AL
WA > DURECR BE R B € 2 Jl gy BR AR 2
112585 - P A s R A 22 TH E 76 i AR B
PR R B B R B AL LU
E B R R R B R B e A -

A S [ 7 2 B 22 JRE O et DA A s b
Z SR A A T 3 L o A 4 I B K
W2 R o B IRl 5 2R o L o 7 B
ZEEHEY -

(b) 11755 )& i T 1
(i) & E b

A A 1 2 B e Ja P T U 1 A B R
P SESRAT A AP RE R -

R Oo— /)\FE+_H=+—H > Wit
i 6 TUAE [ B B TR E A Mk b
F+0.64% (O —-L4 : 0.64%) > F£ HAth
HEANET > AREE 2 BRBE A
S 3 18 0D ¥521,409,0000C (—
O —-L4F : #%19,117,00078) - BE— O
—LAEE > REM O — /ERBLE
A 2 AT > FEFERNEET
Fea g A e m -

i ot i Eu UMY H A B Rk b
1% (ZO0—L 4 1 1%) » TEHAME R
REETR > AL H 2 BRBLAR it A 519 A 3 1
198 D HE #55,598,0009C (— O —
LA #E#53,425,00008) - A O~k
AR AR O — \AFBRBLR Vi A
B ARG EE R RN (B
FIoHh) FERIREA PTn -

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(a) Market risk measurement

The Group’s market risk exposures in different activities are managed
by way of limits established by the Management Committee. Exposures
are measured and monitored on the basis of contractual or notional
amount and outstanding balances. Limits are set by portfolio, product
and risk type, using a combination of risk measurement techniques,
including position limits, sensitivity limits, VaR limits as well as stop
loss limits. All market risk trading positions are monitored and managed
by the Treasury Department. Independent monitoring, checking, daily
mark-to-market valuation and trade confirmation are undertaken by
departments independent of the Treasury Department. Regular checking
and reviews are also conducted by the Group’s internal audit function
to ensure compliance with risk limits. All exceptions are reviewed and
approved by the appropriate level of management and the Management
Committee. Regular reports are reviewed by the Risk Management
Committee.

The Group also applies a wide range of stress testing to assess the
financial impact of more extreme events on the market risk exposure
of the Group. The results of the stress testing are reviewed by the Risk
Management Committee.

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis
(i) Currency risk

The Group’s currency risk positions mainly arise from foreign exchange
dealing, commercial banking operations and structural foreign currency
exposures.

At 31 December 2018, if HKD had weakened/strengthened within
the pegged range of 0.64% (2017: 0.64%) against USD with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year
would have been HK$21,409,000 (2017: HK$19,117,000) higher/lower.
The impact on the Group’s profit after taxation in 2018 was higher than
that in 2017 due to the increase of net USD positions.

If HKD had weakened/strengthened 1% (2017: 1%) against other
currencies except USD with all other variables held constant, the Group’s
profit after taxation for the year would have been HK$55,598,000 (2017:
HK$53,425,000) higher/lower. The impact on the Group’s profit after
taxation in 2018 was higher than that in 2017 due to the increase of net
foreign currencies (excluding USD) positions.
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4 il E b B (A1)

4.2 i G b (4)

(b) TS5 SR AR T ()
(i) A= JE B

A AR ) 2 M) 2 Ja B R A R A RS
HE - AEAEERAMERUSNEA R
AT B IR A R ) 22 1 5 R o AR AT Y 2
s g B U A HERABRGERSZ &
Al e < B AR 2 (R o AR SR i
F 23 4 H) DU E B S E L&
il B R o

WR_o—NE+_HAH=+—H:
Bl R B L FH1008 7 (-0 — &
010085 F) > EHAME R A& T
A B ) 2 BB AR T A AR B D i
#48,677,0007C (= O — L 4F : # ¥
25,385,0007C) » & E B DL T 1B (H 5
AR & REE XA RGH 2 AT
EAE AL BT 51 3 o A2 [ iR HoAth A Tk
% 1 A 35 Hb a0 5 174 18,154,00000 (-
O —-L 4 : ¥ %389,651,0007C) » +
A At DA P (B 56 A H A 2 T i 45 2
SRAE (AR A Tt & 25
5% -

W_o—NE+_H=+—H> WwH
R E HOR B1oo®s 7o (o0 — &
1008 F) TEHAME R RNET
A B ) 2 BB AR Ui A AR B b 3 0 v
#51,490,0007C (= O — & 4F : #: ¥
26,480,0007T) » & H DL T8 (H 56
AB IR S REE XA ZRGH 2 AT
B E EEAG BT 51 35 o A 4R [ i HoAth 4 T i
T 6 A 3T Hb 24 0 5 H7423,148,0000T (—
O — L 4F : ¥ %396,331,00000) > £ &
B ity DA -1 (5% A HE Al 2 T i 35 22
SEE (MR A Tt &2 s
51 -

ALEMMIFEE  EREEREMARZ
B B A R R GURIE I A E K o

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from the timing differences
in the repricing of interest bearing assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
positions. Any changes in interest rates would affect the value of those
financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The Group enters into
interest rate swaps to mitigate the interest rate risk associated with the
fixed-rate financial assets and financial liabilities.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) higher with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would have
been HK$48,677,000 (2017: HK$25,385,000) lower, mainly as a result
of revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and interest rate contracts. The Group’s other comprehensive income
would have been HK$418,154,000 (2017: HK$389,651,000) lower due
to the revaluation of those financial investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (previously known as “available-for-sale
securities”).

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates at that date had been 100 basis
points (2017: 100 basis points) lower with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit after taxation for the year would have been
HK$51,490,000 (2017: HK$26,480,000) higher, mainly as a result of
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
interest rate contracts. The Group’s other comprehensive income would
have been HKS$423,148,000 (2017: HK$396,331,000) higher due to
the revaluation of those financial investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (previously known as “available-for-sale
securities”).

The Group’s exposures to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
variable-rate financial assets and liabilities is insignificant.
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4 b E kg EHE ()

4.2 W EbE (4)

(b) 11755 )& B IR T (A
(iii) FeHE J i

A I 2 S Ja B 2R B A T AR
W BT e RS g o K AR IR
RIABE M

WRoOo—/NFE+_H=+—H sk
BESEE R EH TE EFH10% (Z0
— L AE 1 10%) > 7E H A KR A 8 K
A A T HLAR 95 BEL 3G 8 B o 404 B 1R
BT > AL 2 BRBLE 8 A
0k H6888,0007C (O —-L4F : K
2,088,0007T) o 7 £ [ Z Ho A 4> T UK 4
5 W A 88 0 528,107,000 (- O
—-L 4 - ##13,059,00000) ¢ Bl O —
LA > b AREH 0 — N\
A R BLAR Yk 1 ek 2D B L At 2 T AL 43 1Y) R
AT RTHEIN > 2 R A AT R LA B R
e A T8 1 IR 2 78 5 IR e 2D B DA A
B 56 A HoAth 2 T I 25 (RO AS 4 [ o] fit s
) 2R o

(iv) T35 B A A H 20 1 L

A B K R N B g A F i — o — N\
AEIN > A S BT B R A B 3 ) i e B
ZHHTPHEA (BRHEEA R G
B E A B H A e A) A 1,538,000
gL (= O — £ 4 # %2.306,000
JG) o EEMHTHIRAZERE S
# %8219,0007T (T O — £ 4E : ¥
29,221,0007C) ©

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(iii) Equity risk

The Group’s equity risk position mainly arises from the holdings of
certain equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The majority of this
position is held for long term investment purposes.

At 31 December 2018, if the Global equity index at that date had been
10% (2017:10%) lower/higher with all other variables held constant
and all the equity instruments had moved according to their historical
correlation with the index, the Group’s profit after taxation for the
year would have been HK$888,000 (2017: HK$2,088,000) lower/
higher, and the Group’s other comprehensive income would have been
HK$28,107,000 (2017: HK$13,059,000) lower/higher. The lower impact
on the Group’s profit after tax and higher impact on other comprehensive
income in 2018 compared with 2017 was mainly attributable to the
decrease in holdings of Group’s fair value through profit or loss
portfolios and increase in fair value through other comprehensive income
portfolios (previously known as “available-for-sale portfolios”.

(iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue

The average daily revenue in 2018 earned from market risk-related
activities by the Bank and certain subsidiaries, including trading-related
net interest income and other revenue was HK$1,538,000 (2017:
HK$2,306,000). The standard deviation of this daily revenue was
HK$8,219,000 (2017: HK$29,221,000).
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 TG EBE (4)

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(b) 75 R /RS 770 (#E) (b) Market risk sensitivity analysis (Continued)
(iv) T E BRI A S H a0 (%) (iv) Daily distribution of market risk revenue (Continued)
:O gl\ifi HE{ Number of days
i 355 L B e A 50
45 H st
Daily 40
distribution
of market risk
revenue for 2018 30
20
10

<90 90 -80 -70 -60 -50 -40 -3.0 -20 -1.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 7.0 8.0 >9.0
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
-80 -70 -60 -50 -40 -30 -20 -1.0 0.0 1.0 2.0 3.0 4.0 5.0 6.0 7.0 8.0 9.0

FHWA Daily revenue GBEMEEEITETHKS Million)

—O—L4

i 355 Ja g A
5 H 2 i 0L
Daily
distribution

of market risk
revenue for 2017

H# Number of days
50

40

30

20

0
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows.
The Group’s exposures mainly comprise foreign exchange dealing
by the Treasury Department and currency exposures originated by its
commercial banking businesses.

The Management Committee sets limits on the level of exposure by
currency and in total for both overnight and intra-day positions. All
exposures are centrally managed by the Treasury Department and
independently monitored by a separate department on a daily basis.

Foreign currency exposures arising from customer transactions,
including currency options embedded in certain customer deposits, are
normally offset against other customer transactions or transactions with
the market. Foreign currency funding used to fund Hong Kong dollar
assets is hedged using currency swaps or forward exchange contracts to
mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in
the tables are the Group’s assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency. The off-balance sheet gap represents the net
notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to manage the Group’s exposure to currency
movements.
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4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(c) Currency risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

i Fit T NI Hl fit
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
gWTr  w%Tx  #WTx #WTx #WTx  #%Tx
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RZO—N\E At 31 December 2018
+2AZ 4R
(3 Assets
B FERRR Cash, balances and placements with
B and loans and advances to banks 16,534,164 51,127,918 971,614 16,256,368 1,607,495 86,497,559
fitamMIE Derivative financial instruments 487,673 - - - - 487,673
MAFEEARGRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 299,898 3,788,297 110,749 1,567,024 893,045 6,659,013
BHE Investment in securities 20,796,416 16,299,095 4,070,663 4,266,111 2,566,621 47,998,906
B R AR Advances and other accounts 99,735,541 41,116,293 19,764 23,380,773 1,014,840 165,267,211
SIfEEERE Assets classified as held for sale 1,980 - - - - 1,980
Hib e Other assets 5,081,082 53,068 - 2,430,909 432 7565491
MR Total assets 142,936,754 112,384,671 5172,790 47,901,185 6,082,433 314,477,833
ffd Liabilities
EEY:E: Deposits and balances from banks 4,291,594 12,665,504 2,216 18,203,600 238,659 35,401,573
ik amMTR Derivative financial instruments 769,341 - - - - 769,341
KPR Deposits from customers 126,833,636 45,872,734 8,299,338 32,192,462 8,131,232 221,329,402
Bz ik Certificates of deposit issued 2,956,781 4,667,251 - - - 7,624,032
Bz REER Subordinated debts issued - 3,128,160 - - - 3,128,160
Hi A & Other liabilities 4,172,424 983,091 34,058 979,519 40,802 6,209,894
e Total liabilities 139,023,776 67,316,740 8,335,612 51,375,581 8,410,693 274,462,402
BEAERNFETH Net on-balance sheet position 3912978 45,067,931  (3,162,822)  (3,474,396)  (2,328,260) 40,015,431
BEAERIME Off-balance sheet net notional
RRTE position 25,044,952 (41,061,747) 3,183,111 9,909,762 2,531,020 (392,902)
fRERE Credit commitments 27420434 8,445,649 243439 4,522,820 111,623 40,743,965
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(c) BEMmpr (#) (c) Currency risk (Continued)

HE - BEAERERERINER

Concentration of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items

(78) (Continued)
i %7t Wt AR 1 At
HKD USD AUD RMB Others Total
BT W% #BTx BWTx  #%Tx  #¥Tx
HKS$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$000  HK$000
RO~ At 31 December 2017
+ZA=+—H
493 Assets
Cash, balances and placements with
B4~ B ER and loans and advances to banks 27,560,055 23,196,747 52914 25660349 1014753 77484818
fitaMTAE Derivative financial instruments 1,408,541 = = = - 1,408,541
AT-EEFEARRIRZ Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 10 5,363,858 212,956 396,753 1,044,116 7,017,693
BALE Tnvestment in securities 20,706,283 18423645 4580153 1,842,024 1,160,640 46,721,745
SR EARIA Advances and other accounts 95,357,565 37,263,232 22,540 25,186,072 1,188,100 159,017,509
FifE & ERE Assets classified as held for sale 149,021 - - - - 149,021
Hih B Other assets 4911,829 63,443 — 1,991,644 572 6,967,488
Mg Total assets 150,093,304 84,310,925 4,877,563 55,076,842 4,408,181 298,766,815
ffk Liabilities
EEexs Deposits and balances from banks 2,639,859 6,595,171 — 23,790,576 109,085 33,134,691
TARET 2 AR Trading liabilities - 77,380 - - - 77,380
fitamMTH Derivative financial instruments 794,593 = = = = 794,593
KF Deposits from customers 119271962 47229678 7893106 29,782,927  6,785973 210,963,646
B2 o Certificates of deposit issued 1,812,088 2,770,322 = = - 4582410
B2 REREE Subordinated debts issued - 4675302 - - — 4675302
i g Other liabilities 4763987 1,021,748 37,688 936,236 18963 6,778,622
e Total liabilities 129282489 62,369,601 7,930,794 54,509,739 6,914,021 261,006,644
BREABRENRER T Net on-balance sheet position 20810815 21941324 (3,053231) 567,103 (2,505,840) 37,760,171
BEABENE Off-balance sheet net
R notional position 7,581,791 (18364,127) 2,982,102 5,559,160 2,848,850 607,785
ek Credit commitments 40,643,957 12,082,999 - 11,137,367 135,922 64,000,245
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)
(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates in respect of its fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

Interest margin may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Group has established policies and systems to monitor its
interest-sensitive positions and net repricing gap to ensure that they are
all properly managed under the limits approved by the Management
Committee. Actual positions are compared with the approved limits and
independently monitored by a risk management department.

While the primary objective of interest rate risk management is to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income, interest rate positions may be taken for yield enhancement
within the risk limits.

The tables on the following pages summarise the Group’s exposure
to interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amount categorised by the earlier of contractual
repricing or maturity dates.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) FIZmE B () (d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

HEKRAEZ P RGEURE — F2 B % Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis
iy
—~fA —@ANE =ZEANUE _
gZNT  2=MA 2% YL nENE Kt & ‘
Up to 1-3 3-12 ZHAE Over Non-interest ait
1 month months months  1-5 years § years bearing Total
wHTr  #WTx  #WTx  EWTx  EWTx  #RTx  #RTx
HK$’000  HK$°000  HK$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$’000  HKS$°000  HKS$’000
RO~ N\E At 31 December 2018
+ZHZ+—H
i Assets
Cash, balances and placements
BB - MERR with and loans and advances
REH to banks 50,483,465 12,027,646 12,673,834 234,932 - 11,077,682 86,497,559
Derivative financial
Mk eMTH instruments - - - - - 487,673 487,673
ATEEEABLGEZ  Financial assets at fair value
SHEE through profit or loss 371,820 77,998 767,833 5,270,042 - 165,320 6,659,013
BHEE Investment in securities 0,566,886 14,746,696 13,285,443 12,256,972 - 1,142,909 47,998,906
B A ERIA Advances and other accounts 99,824,800 51,997,954 8,541,046 1,510,056 3,397 3,389,958 165,267,211
Assets classified as held
SIfE R E for sale - - - - - 1,980 1,980
Hiv & Other assets - - - - - 7565491 7,565,491
AL Total assets 157,252,971 78,850,294 35,268,156 19,272,002 3,397 23,831,013 314,477,833
ffg Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
FESiE banks 18,602,556 3493995 7,398,277 - - 5906745 35401573
Derivative financial
fiE4mIR instruments - - - - - 769341 769,341
EPHR Deposits from customers 123,299,860 46,756,246 36,036,248 3,424,342 - 11,812,706 221,329,402
Blrzfiaas Certificates of deposit issued - 5624434 1,999,598 - - - 7,624,032
Bz REEE Subordinated debts issued - - - 3,128,160 - - 3,128,160
i & & Other liabilities 60,222 - - - - 6,149,672 6,209,804
e Total liabilities 141,962,638 55,874,675 45,434,123 6,552,502 - 24,638,464 274,462,402
LR 2 JE A0 Total interest sensitivity gap
(REHE) (unadjusted) 15,290,333 22,975,619  (10,165,967) 12,719,500 3,397
FlEfE TRANZ Effect of interest rate
P derivatives (4,200,733) 5,226,718 4,197,260  (5,123,630) 118,978
R £ A Total interest sensitivity gap
(A (adjusted) 11,089,600 28,202,337  (5,968,707) 7,595,870 122,375




Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

4 <l e B A PR ()
4.2 W5 ARE (%)
(d) FIZmE B ()

BE R EEZ P RHERE — B2 S %5 Interest sensitivity of assets and liabilities — repricing analysis

4.2 Market risk (Continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (Continued)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

B (48) (Continued)
—fA —WANLE =MAUEL
gUT Z2=MA 24 —HEPE O REYL S
Up to 1-3 3-12 ZHAE Over Non-interest At
1 month months months  1-5 years § years bearing Total
BT wWTr  wWTx  w¥Tx  wlTkn  w¥Tx w¥% T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$000
RZOo—t# At 31 December 2017
+-H=+—H
B Assets
Cash, balances and placements
EFFB 4 [T with and loans and advances
&% to banks 29,805,195 7,764,469 18,327,983 1,007,857 - 20,579,314 77,484,818
Derivative financial
ke TR instruments = = = = 1,408,541 1,408,541
DATEEFARGREZ Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 75,025 199,671 1,593,115 5,116,721 33,161 7,017,693
BHE [nvestment in securities 3,814,945 19,805,380 11,324,328 10,440,595 - 1,336,491 46,721,745
FHR B IR Advances and other accounts 106,545,753 36,469,116 11,084,415 989.960 438,197 3,490,059 159,017,509
Assets classified as held
SIfE &R E for sale - - - - - 149,021 149,021
&R Other assets = = = = 6,967488 6,967,488
MR Total assets 140,240,918 64,238,642 42,329,841 17,555,142 438,197 33,964,075 298,766,815
ffR Liabilities
Deposits and balances
EEexs from banks 3391852 7,075,071 18,511,053 - 4,156,715 33,134,691
LHIRET 2 B fE Trading liabilities - - - 77,380 - 77,380
Derivative financial
fiEEmMTE instruments = = = = - 794593 794,593
REHS Deposits from customers 120,649,757 41,261,693 32,169,821 4,949,023 - 11,933,352 210,963,646
B2 Certificates of deposit issued 551,564 3,560,910 469,936 - - - 4582410
Bz rEER Subordinated debts issued = = - 4675302 — 4675302
Hin & Other liabilities 82,738 - - - 0,695,884 6,778,622
RN Total liabilities 124675911 51,897,674 51,150,810 9,701,705 23,580,544 261,006,644
P BB £ A Total interest sensitivity gap
(AT ) (unadjusted) 15,565,007 12,340,968  (8,820,969) 7,853,437 438,197
MZMETAAHZ Effect of interest rate
pa derivatives 4359,852 7,280,685  (3,318,853) (5,719,687) (269,344)
LR 2 JE 03 Total interest sensitivity
(4% gap (adjusted) 19924859 19,621,653 (12,139,822) 2,133,750 168,853
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its payment
obligations associated with its financial liabilities when they fall due and
to replace funds when they are withdrawn. The consequence may be the
failure to meet obligations to repay depositors and fulfill commitments
to lend. The Group is exposed to daily calls on its available cash
resources from overnight deposits, current accounts, matured deposits,
loan drawdowns and guarantees, and from margin and other calls on
cash-settled derivatives.

(a) Liquidity risk management process

The management of the Group’s liquidity risk is governed by the
liquidity risk management policies and principles as approved by the
Board of Directors. The Asset and Liability Management Committee,
which is delegated by the Management Committee on behalf of the
Board of Directors, is responsible to monitor the Group’s overall
liquidity management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
sets the strategy, policy and limits for managing liquidity risk for
approval by the Board of Directors or the Management Committee, and
the means for ensuring that such strategy and policy are implemented
effectively. Regular meeting is held to review the compliance status
of the monitoring matrix established and the needs of change in
strategy and policy. Daily liquidity management is managed by the
Treasury Department. The limits, triggers or alerts are monitored by
the Financial Accounting Department and reported to the Asset and
Liability Management Committee on a regular basis. The Internal Audit
Department performs periodic reviews to make sure that the liquidity
risk management functions are carried out effectively.

The primary responsibility for managing liquidity and funding within
the Group’s framework and risk appetite resides with the mainland
and overseas branches, which is monitored by the Asset and Liability
Management Committee. Internally, intra-group funding transactions are
transacted at arm’s length and treated in a manner in line with other third
party transactions, with regular monitoring and appropriate control.

The objective of liquidity management is to meet the obligations payable
under normal and emergency circumstances, to fund asset growth and to
comply with the statutory liquidity coverage ratio. To achieve this, the
following liquidity management processes are in place:
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(@)
(@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

Projecting cash flows under normal and various stress scenarios
regularly, using the net mismatch gap between assets and liabilities
to estimate the prospective net funding requirement and formulate
the corresponding actions.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
next day, seven days and one month, which are key periods for
liquidity management. The starting point for those projections
is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial assets
and liabilities and off-balance sheet items as well as the expected
maturity of these items based on historical observations and cash
flow models.

Liquidity stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating
risk exposure under stressed conditions arising from extreme but
plausible market or macroeconomic movements.

Different stress testing scenarios, namely an institution specific
crisis, a general market crisis and combined crisis, are performed
on a regular basis in accordance with the principles stated in
Supervisory Policy Manual “Sound Systems and Controls for
Liquidity Risk Management” (LM-2).

The stress testing result is also one of the most important early
warning indicators under contingency funding plan. With reference
to the stress testing results, the Group identifies potential
vulnerabilities on its liquidity position under stressed market
conditions. If the impact is severe enough and triggers the plan, the
Bank will deal with such liquidity problems in accordance with the
formulated contingency funding plan that sets out remedial actions;

Monitoring the liquidity coverage ratio, net stable funding ratio,
loan to deposit ratio and maturity mismatch ratio against internal
and/or regulatory requirements;

Ensuring a sound and diversified range of funding sources, through
monitoring the structure, the stability and the core level of the
deposit portfolio;

Projecting a high-level funding requirement and funding structure
during the annual budget process to ensure sufficient funding and an
appropriate funding mix;

Conducting liquidity risk assessment before launching a new
product;
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(a) Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

(vi) Maintaining high-quality liquid assets (“HQLA”) which can be sold

or pledged as collateral to provide liquidity even under periods of
stress. The Group invests in good credit quality investments with
deep and liquid market to ensure short term funding requirements
are covered within prudent limits. Level 1 assets comprise cash,
balances with central bank and high quality central government and
central bank securities, while Level 2 assets comprise corporate
securities of investment grade.

The table below shows the balances (before assumed haircuts) of
HQLA of the Group:

Evl

Restated

—O—N —0—t

2018 2017

W T T o

HKS$°000 HK$’000

H—5Rk Level 1 28,598,742 36,905,086
- Level 2 7,290,668 11,987,794
35,889,410 48,892,880
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All assets held as HQLA are unencumbered;

(vii) Maintaining access to the interbank money market to activate

facilities;

(viii) Maintaining a contingency funding plan. The Group will utilise

early warning indicators (including both internal and market
indicators), and integrate with the results of the scenarios and
assumptions used in the stress test to monitor both internal and
external factors. Should there be any signs of significant impact on
the Group’s liquidity position, the Crisis Management Team, which
is chaired by the Group’s Chief Executive Officer, will take charge
to handle the crisis. Corresponding actions as laid down in the
policy will be taken in the event of a stress crisis, So as to minimise
adverse long-term implications for business. The plan is also subject
to review and update on a regular basis.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis

The tables on the following pages analyse the Group’s assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The
analysis in respect of insurance liabilities is based on the estimated
timing of net cash outflows resulting from recognised insurance
liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

—fA
MR ST —EANLE  ZEANE —ERE
Repayable Upto  E=fA o EhE REDE  ERWRY it
on demand I'month  I-3months  3-12 months 1-Syears  Qver 5 years Undated Total
whPr #WTx #RTx #WTx TR #WTx #WTx #RTx
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HKS'000

R0~k
SES
i

iR IR

At 31 December 2018

Assets
(Cash, balances and placements with

& and loans and advances to banks 286,156 29809090 11799503 13369522 1,331,304 - 011982 86,497,559
i AN Derivative financial instruments 487,673 - - - - - - 487,673
DATEEEABERZ  Financial assets at fair value through

SREE profit or loss - 299,808 - 767833 542596 - 165320 6,659,013
AL Investment in securities S 4800 SH08T2 14274280 22,1159 - 1142909 47,998,906
SRR Advances and other accounts 3197474 1393620 13,095825 36,049,199 75448850 21,952,678 096,965 165,267,211
Fifed & B Assets classified as held for sale - 1,980 - - - - - 1,980
gz Other assets - - - 614 - 0917 7513960 7,565,491
BEE Total assets B3 48994192 30504049 64661450 104322008  22,003595 10421136 314477833
filg Liabilities
EEiE Deposits and balances from banks 0,780,732 17,728,569 3,420,393 1471879 - - - 354015M3
fikeR TR Derivative financial instruments 769,341 - - - - - - 769,341
p4aVi s Deposits from customers 86,960,119 47,994,396 46,756,246 36,194,299 344,342 - - 21329402
Btk Certificates of deposit issued - - SEMAM 1999598 - - - TAMR
B2 GEEE Subordinated debts issued - - - - - 3,128,160 - 318,160
Hibaf Other labilities 131,678 1,101,014 168 1863223 1059434 12,296 315086 6,209,894
BafE Total liabiliies 0581870 66823979 §6348236 471528999 4483776 3140456 315086 274462402
RlgLENBH Net liquidity gap (62250567)  (17,829787) (15844187 17132451 99838332 18863139 10,106,050  40,015431
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4 <ol B A PR (A
4.3 VBT BE ()

(b) FHIAHT (4H)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

—fiA
B R gUT —fAMLE =AML —4PLE
Repayable Upto  ZE=MA A ERE O RENE HEEHIH at
on demand I month  1-3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years  Over 5 years Undated Total
BT W T W WM T WM T wWTx wBTx BB
g Restated HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
RZO—L4 At 31 December 2017
+2AZ+—H
o073 Assets
BB 4 [WZEAH  Cash, balances and placements with
B and loans and advances to banks 22474870 26,796,682 7,764,469 18,327,983 1,007,857 - 1,112,957 77,484,818
fESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,408,541 = = = = = = 1,408,541
PVATEEGEABLRIE  Financial assets at fair value
ZERERE through profit or loss - - - 1,393,125 5,391,407 - 33,161 7,017,693
[ovizis Investment in securities ~ 1,469,684 10,290,182 10,805,755 22,819,633 ~ 1336491 46,721,745
BH R HAMETE Advances and other accounts 3,348,946 9,722,609 13,668,501 39,964,622 72,744,519 18,998,696 569,616 159,017,509
Bl M o o Assets classified as held for sale - - - - - - 149,021 149,021
Hihg Other assets - - - 2,681 - 37,840 6,926,967 6,967,488
B Total assets 27,232,357 37988975 31,723,152 70,694,166 101,963,416 19,036,536 10,128,213 298,766,815
fE Liabilities
GEY=¢ Deposits and balances from banks 4,366,312 3,182,255 6,533,666 19,052,458 - - - 33,134,691
THEET 2 Al Trading liabilities - - - - 77,380 - - 77,380
it ERTA Derivative financial instruments 794,593 = = = = = = 794,593
EF Deposits from customers 85,399,350 47,161,206 41,261,693 32,169,827 4,949,030 - 22,540 210,963,646
BATZ A5 Certificates of deposit issued - 551,564 3,560,910 469,936 - - ~ 4582410
BT HIEER Subordinated debts issued = - - - 1,554,865 3,120,437 - 4675302
A Other liabilities 2,018,194 481,573 383,085 2,222,736 1,176,630 67,826 428,578 6,778,622
MEfE Total liabilities 92,578,449 51,376,598 51,739,354 53,914,957 17,757,905 3,188,263 451,118 261,006,644
TE) & & 2% Net liquidity gap (65,346,092) (13,387,623) (20,016,202) 16,779,209 94,205,511 15,848,273 9,677,095 37,760,171
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(b) Maturity analysis (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest
rates of assets and liabilities are fundamental to the management of the
Group. It is unusual for banks to be completely matched, as transacted
business is often of uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched
position potentially enhances profitability, but also increases the risk of
losses.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an
acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature are important
factors in assessing the liquidity of the Group and its exposure to
changes in interest rates and currency risks.

Liquidity requirements to support calls under guarantees and standby
letters of credit are generally less than the amount of the commitment. In
this regard, the Group does not expect the third party would fully draw
funds under the agreement. The total outstanding contractual amount of
commitments to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash
requirements, as many of these commitments will expire or terminate
without being funded.

(c¢) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The tables on the following pages analyse the cash flow payable by the
Group in respect of non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments by remaining contractual maturities, and by
estimated timing of net cash outflow for insurance liabilities at the end
of the reporting period. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows, whereas the Group manages the
inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounted cash flows.
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(c) GRIEHHZ ARG BB A ()

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c¢) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities (Continued)

—fiA
F e £ 3 gUT —MANLE Z@ANLE —FNE HEDE JEzE W]
Repayable Upto  Z=MA i A Over Hl At
on demand 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years § years Undated Total
BT WwBTr WWTx  w%Ta Wkt WWTx w%Tx  wWTx
HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
RZO— )\ At 31 December 2018
+2A=4—R
JHAEF4HE  Non-derivative cash
=L flow liabilities
REHER Deposits from customers 86,961,251 48,290,480 47,168,996 37,082,979 3,637,066 - - 223,140,772
Deposits and balances
HEY:2¢ from banks 6,780,735 17,858,533 3,508,705 7,749,683 - - - 35,897,656
Certificates of deposit
B2 At issued - - 5,658,720 2,050,086 - - - 7,708,806
T2 AMEMEIE  Subordinated debts issued - - - 117,468 469,872 3,602,352 - 4,189,692
Hie R Other liabilities 1,311,678 1,101,014 547,163 1,863,223 1,059,434 12,296 315,086 6,209,894
kS AR Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
EEMTH instruments - 34,033,599 18,883,726 40,233,660 175,826 3,336 - 93,330,147
95,053,664 101,283,626 75,767,310 89,097,099 5,342,198 3,617,984 315,086 370,476,967
—fiA
Il e gUT —MWAME =AML —FME  HEME sk
Repayable Upto  Z={H/] 1 ZHE Over B &%
on demand I month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years § years Undated Total
wiETr wBTr  wETr BT wBTr WETo BT wBTr
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
RZO—L4
+ZH=+—H At31 December 2017
JRiAEH4HE  Non-derivative cash
A1 flow liabilities
K Deposits from customers 85,400,698 47,385,143 41,576,475 32,954,346 5294279 - 22,545 212,633,486
Deposits and balances
GEZE from banks 4,366,315 3,253,505 6,706,510 19,927,478 - - - 34253808
LHIRET 2 G  Trading liabilities = = = 1,563 84,379 - - 85,942
Certificates of deposit
BT issued = 555,057 3,571,463 475,541 = = — 4,602,061
Bl AMEMEYE  Subordinated debts issued - - - 192,087 2,330,917 3,711,104 - 6,234,108
HAh e Other liabilities 2,018,194 481,573 383,085 2,222,736 1,176,630 67,826 428,578 6,778,622
ik BenE Derivative cash flow
Derivative financial
T EmMTA instruments - 41,553,791 18,856,785 21,706,460 1,996,622 43,658 - 84,157,316
91,785,207 93,229,069 71,094,318 77,480,211 10,882,827 3,822,588 451,123 348,745,343
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.3 WEh Rk () 4.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
(d) BEAEFELUIIEA (d) Off-balance sheet items
—ERUT —EU Lk
Not later FHAE E ) b
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
BT BT BT i T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B O— )\ 4 At 31 December 2018
+=p=+—H
TR Loan commitments 33,985,166 - - 33,985,166
7 W YR A 0K Forward forward deposit placed 243,439 - - 243,439

Guarantees and other financial

B AR oAb 4 R facilities

— ERE LA — Guarantees and standby
fa Ik letters of credit 6,008,505 - - 6,008,505
— IR R — Documentary and commercial
fa Ik letters of credit 506,855 - - 506,855
A R Operating lease commitments 113,968 161,805 21,472 297,245
BRI Capital commitments 82,431 - - 82,431
40,940,364 161,805 21,472 41,123,641
—AEEHLT —4E Dk
Not later FEHE AR B &t
than 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years Total
BT BHTT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R_O—t4 At 31 December 2017
+ZA=+—H
TR A Loan commitments 56,764,000 = = 56,764,000
7 HH LA K Forward forward deposit placed 1,015,671 = = 1,015,671
Guarantees and other financial
WRERIMEMBL  facilities
— PERE R A — Guarantees and standby
Z Rk letters of credit 5,635,011 — = 5,635,011
— R R — Documentary and commercial
15 Filk letters of credit 585,563 — — 585,563
B AR Operating lease commitments 93,788 165,877 = 259,665
BARYE Capital commitments 68,458 - - 68,458

64,162,491 165,877 = 64,328,368
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.4 Operational risk management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people or systems, or from external events.

The Group has established an operational risk management framework
to identify, measure, monitor and control operational risk. The Policy
on Operational Risk Management, approved by the Management
Committee, defines responsibilities of various committees, business units
and supporting departments and encompasses various tools including
control self-assessment, operational incident management and key risk
indicators to facilitate measurement and assessment of operational risk.
The Group also relies on internal control mechanisms within the business
lines, supplemented by the internal audit function to manage and control
operational risk.

The internal control system of the Group comprises a well-established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards. The
Board’s expectations regarding duty, responsibility and integrity are
clearly spelled out in formal policy statements. The lines of authority and
responsibilities of each business and operational unit have been clearly
defined to ensure adequate checks and balances. Procedures including
risk assessments, segregation of duties, use of limits, training and regular
verification and reconciliation of transactions and accounts are used in
the internal control mechanism.

Risk assessment will be conducted on the outsourcing services, new
products and new systems implementation. Business continuity plans are
in place to mitigate the impact and interruptions to business activities
caused by system failure, social disorder or natural disaster. Adequate
insurance is acquired to cover a reasonable extent of operational
risk. The Group benchmarks practices against peers, and regulatory
requirements.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for regular review of
the operational risk profile and the Group’s internal audit function plays
an important role in the Group’s operational risk framework. It provides
an objective assurance to the Board that a sound internal control system
is maintained and operated in compliance with the established processes
and standards through regular and comprehensive audits on all business
and operational functions.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.5 Capital management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are as follows:

—  To comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules;

—  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders;

—  To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

— To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its
business.

The Hong Kong Banking Ordinance requires each bank or banking group
to maintain a prescribed ratio of regulatory capital to total risk-weighted
assets. Subsidiaries of the Group are also subject to statutory capital
requirements from other regulatory authorities, including the Securities
and Futures Commission and Insurance Authority.

The risk-weighted assets are measured by means of a hierarchy of risk
weights as defined in the Banking (Capital) Rules according to the nature
of and reflecting an estimate of credit, market and other risks associated
with each asset and counterparty, taking into account any eligible
collateral or guarantees. A similar treatment is adopted for off-balance
sheet exposures, with some adjustments to reflect the more contingent
nature of the potential losses.

Capital adequacy and the use of capital are monitored on a regular basis
by the Group’s management. The Group applies an internal trigger capital
adequacy ratio which is well above the minimum statutory requirement
as an indicator for managing the capital adequacy. In addition, the Group
will assess the impact on its capital adequacy ratio when there are new
products, new investments or any significant transactions.

The Group and its individually regulated operations have complied with
all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 and are well above the minimum required
ratios set by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is
based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial
liabilities is the current ask price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. They include net
present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to similar
instruments for which market prices exist, Black-Scholes option pricing
models and other valuation models. Inputs used in valuation techniques
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, credit spreads and other
risk premiums used in estimating discount rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, bond and equity prices, price volatilities and correlations.

The Group uses valuation models that use only observable market data
for determining the fair value of debt securities and derivatives for
which there is no active market. Observable prices and model inputs are
usually available in the market for listed debt securities, exchange traded
derivatives and over-the-counter derivatives. Availability of observable
prices and model inputs is prone to changes as a result of specific events
and general conditions in the financial markets.

When observable prices and model inputs are not available, the Group
uses valuation models of which the inputs may not be observable in
the market but are derived from market prices or rates or are estimated
based on assumptions. Examples of instruments involving significant
unobservable inputs include unlisted equity securities and investment
fund for which there is no active market. Management judgement and
estimation are usually required for selection of the appropriate valuation
model to be used, determination of expected future cash flows on the
financial instrument being valued and selection of appropriate discount
rates.
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at fair
value in the Group’s statement of financial position are estimated as
follows:

(@)

Balances and placements with and loans and advances to banks

The fair value of floating rate placements and overnight deposits
is their carrying amounts. The estimated fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits, which is normally less than one year, is based on
discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore
the fair value is approximately equal to its carrying value.

(b) Advances and other accounts

(c)

(d)

Advances and other accounts are net of allowances for impairment.
All except a very insignificant portion of loans and advances to
customers bear interest at a floating rate. The Group has assessed
the fair value of advances to customers and trade bills, after taking
into account the relevant market interest rates and noted that the
total fair value is not materially different from the total carrying
value.

Deposits and balances from banks and customers

The estimated fair value of deposits and balances with no stated
maturity, which include non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances bearing
interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.

The estimated fair value of fixed interest-bearing deposits from
banks and deposits from customers without quoted market price is
based on discounted cash flows using interest rates for new debts
with similar remaining maturity. As they are normally less than
one year, their fair values are approximately equal to their carrying
values.

Certificates of deposit and capital instruments

The fair value of certificates of deposit and capital instruments
issued is based on quoted market prices. For those where quoted
market prices are not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity. The Group has assessed the fair value of
certificates of deposit and capital instruments issued after taking
into account the relevant yield curve and noted that the total fair
value is not materially different from the total carrying value.
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 axRbEE R AEZ A FEME (8) 4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(e) HAMHARIAK HE (e) Other accounts and accruals
L A B TE S TEAR — A RN FILE The estimated fair value of other accounts and accruals, which are
%gﬁfﬁ o BRI > HASFEME A HIR normally non-interest bearing balances, is their carrying value.

bR b5 & W ESIR LR IEH 4b > F3RME  Except for the above consolidated statement of financial position items,
il R A AL [ 45 A BB IR R N AP the following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values
BEZIN ARG EEMAMEMIRE  of other financial assets and liabilities not presented on the Group’s

{HABEL) A ME - consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.
W T 1] 2 FEME
Carrying value Fair value
—O—N\ — 0=k —O—N\ —0—k
2018 2017 2018 2017

T T i T oo
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

LA Financial assets
FEHES RS BR 2 Financial investments at

& RE amortised cost 679,491 680,467 —
Fr 2 2|55 Held-to-maturity securities - 331,356 - 326,782

T AN FRAEE AR IE LA FEESIMER S The tables below analyse financial instruments not carried at fair value
Rt TR e G EATEMERNEIRMEE at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value hierarchy

GIHT into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
4 il
Financial assets

92 4 89 A B MR 2 4 il % SRR P e
Financial investments Held-to-maturity
at amortised cost securities
—O—N\ —o—+t
2018 2017
W T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
E—E Level 1 490,783 233,774
o JE Level 2 167,106 97,582
o= JE Level 3 21,602 =

679,491 331,356
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T s BB o E LU 2B 135 KR E TG (BT
5 14 T A5 ) P52 R AR A (B 7 1 2 BEA B
02 P B B SR BB - AT BLEE Y
B B Sk T 35 L G 28 S Y 2R TR
5 A AT B B S T A
BTG EY  EMERAREELE T
NIVAEER FE AR

o HIE - 2%F - THRIERTS
BAGRI TG A OREEFREE) -

o 2 —RRAT BN HE (R
i) S (b HAE P HER) HA
R 2 A (E AR o MR RAG (M) T
HAFUT I ws TRAEE
T 5 BT A B T S R A 5 R —
SR LA 9 B i 45 U A9 i
SR 5 s A A AR o T A% S
FEERE T BB - R H
e T R T S B P A R -

o HR3JE — MR PR E AR A B AE F
UEPN (€ Pl =L S ]
EHI TR > HAGER A Z 8
PR30 TR AR B8 T B MR o MERZ S
JE w85 B B mT DL R A
R - WWRERAGEW TH > a
175 7 15 38 T 355 iy BUAS: PR AR < i T
H2Z WG E > s & e E
TR IR A B 2 TR R R > AR
WA < TR 2 R 22 )

78 8 UK i BE ZE I T B R8BS A i 35 B
P o AR AE T AT A LN B B A B
AT LA A T G A A (E L

BEZO—LETHA=tT—HILZH
BUAF S8 o SN0 8 -5 (L R A% A0 o — i B
5 JE ] 2 WA > IR A S =
WL o AR A PR (R R ] 2 T RS
BEIE B R T LARERS, -

BE_Oo—NE+_H=+—HILZ8
B > R G A R A =R
B 28k v B 5 JE AT ISR o A
156,976,000 7T B 4 il T ELAE A 1
(EN RS EPE 1 YN

4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group’s market
assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the following fair
value hierarchy:

* Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). This
category includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in
active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in markets that are considered less than
active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable
inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation
technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market prices in
its valuations where possible.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 within
the fair value hierarchy. The Group recognises transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a financial instrument of
HKS$156,976,000 was transferred out from Level 2 to Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy when significant inputs used in its fair value
measurement, which was previously observable became unobservable.
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MR E BN R E TSRS > 7
TG P L A B 52 B R 0 A B R
8 - (HRBEABEN TGS A0
A5 B AR B IS BB R A FE(H - A
FEHB O~ /NE+_H=+—Hi4k
3,534,136,000 7T 75 75 1€ 2~ V- 1B (H & 5]
55— B A SE g -

B A B DA TR AT 0
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

December 2018.

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Due to changes in market conditions for certain securities, quoted prices
in active markets were not available to reflect all appropriate risks for
these securities. However, there was sufficient information available to
measure the fair values of these securities based on observable market
inputs. Therefore, these securities were transferred from Level 1 to Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy and amounted to HK$3,534,136,000 at 31

The tables below analyse financial instruments, measured at fair value
on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting period, by the level in the

JE WA 2 Hr fair value hierarchy into which the fair value treatment is categorised:
ke BE B0 it
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT ®WTx ®BWTx ®B%Tx
HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
RO — )\ At 31 December 2018
+ZH=+—H
293 Assets
MidsmTE Derivative financial instruments - 487,673 - 487,673
BlE A B AE Financial assets mandatorily measured
WmIEZ S REE at fair value through profit or loss:
— (&5 a5 55 — Debt securities 1,462,901 854,739 - 2,317,640
— Equity securities and investment
— IR R A E fund 38,666 47,132 55,547 141,345
8 A EEZ AR Financial assets designated at fair
i M2 A B E value through profit or loss:
— (85 a5 55 — Debt securities 3,545,375 607,833 46,820 4,200,028
PAZA B (B 56 A oAt Financial assets at fair value through
2T A 2 4l other comprehensive income
— Balances and placements with
— [A] ZEAE S B K and loans and advances to banks - 16,009,397 - 16,009,397
— B R HoAth R TE — Advances and others accounts - 17,837,722 - 17,837,722
— &G — Financial investments
— B ES — Debt securities 41,744,931 4,563,163 - 46,308,094
— B LA — Equity securities and investment
4 fund 280,682 - 730,639 1,011,321
47,072,555 30,407,659 833,006 78,313,220
fifi Liabilities
4R T A Derivative financial instruments - 769,341 - 769,341
- 769,341 - 769,341
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Rl K fUfEZ AP (8)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

5B HE B St
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BWTT T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
B_O—t4 At 31 December 2017
+ZA=+—H
2973 Assets
itk 4R T A Derivative financial instruments - 1,408,541 — 1,408,541
FHEEERZZH 5 Trading securities:
— fEHs 57 — Debt securities 1,040,934 - ~ 1,040,934
— Equity securities and investment
— MR S GRS fund 33,161 - - 33,161
8 A EEZ AR Financial assets designated at
i B2 Mg E fair value through profit or loss:
— [EHRE S — Debt securities 5,494,269 449,329 — 5,943,598
ik B2 B Available-for-sale securities:
— S — Debt securities 40,766,450 4,287,448 — 45,053,898
— Equity securities and investment
— IRHERS 5 A B fund 128,235 76,684 1,131,572 1,336,491
47,463,049 6,222,002 1,131,572 54,816,623
& Liabilities
LHRE T 2 BfE Trading liabilities 77,380 = = 77,380
A 4 T E Derivative financial instruments - 794,593 = 794,593
77,380 794,593 - 871,973
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Rl K fUfEZ AP (8)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

59 A T B LR R 4 P 2 58

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value

BUE measurements is as follows:
B
Assets
BURE DA F
VRO F AR G A wAHmke e A HEE
Foft 2 W 4ix il b A\ JR i e 2
Z&MERE  Financial assets AR
Financial assets mandatorily Financial assets
at fair value measured at designated at
through other fair value fair value
comprehensive through through
income profit or loss profit or loss
BB E
Financial
investments
JBE B 7 B 4% W e o 7
Equity securities and investment fund Debt securities
T T W% T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B=O0—/N\%E—H—H>  Atl January 2018,
WAEAESR as previously reported 1,131,572 - -
PR AT 40 7 s A 75 Effect of initial applications
HERISE R 2 B of HKFRS 9 (198,598) 198,598 -
R_O—N\E—H—H"
Rl At 1 January 2018, as restated 932,974 198,598 -
Tl TH AR AR HE AR Total losses recognised in
— Al A T U R — Other comprehensive income (202,335) - -
— Bk — Profit or loss - (127,278) (41,138)
L YN Transfer in to Level 3 - - 156,976
4 Settlements - (15,773) (69,018)
A= O— 4
+-H=+—H At 31 December 2018 730,639 55,547 46,820
O — /4 Total losses for the year
+ o H=+—HE included in other
WMEE > HEFHER comprehensive income
AF B oAt 2 T U 45 T for assets held at
Z R A 31 December 2018 (202,335) - -
WO —/\4F Total losses for the year
+oHA=+—HIFE included in profit or
W& HEREER loss for assets held at
EFEBIENZ EEA% 31 December 2018 - (127,278) (39,543)
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.6 axRbEE R AEZ A FEME (8) 4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

&

Assets

LI ke
Available-for-sale securities
— eI R A S

— Equity securities and
investment fund

BT
HK$’000
R—o—tFE—H—H At 1 January 2017 393,482
e 25 A AE T SRR Total gains recognised in
— HCAth 4 T A £ — Other comprehensive income 27,957
HhE Additions 710,133
HRZo—t#+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2017 1,131,572
w_o—tHFE+_H=+—H Total gains for the year included in other
e EE » HEFEER comprehensive income for assets held at

EEHM AR A Z W54 31 December 2017 27,957
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4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.6 axRbEE R AEZ A FEME (8) 4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

DU R A& 5 R F R I DARH 95380 The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
BT EMERERFEIEMIE LR ZE  inputs used at year end in measuring financial instruments categorised as
KAFBENBRABIRE R - Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

AV B
YN (¢
A F A
HRAH 2 BURE
BlgEm Fair value
YN E measurement
45 Significant INEF- 15 sensitivity to
Valuation  unobservable #il# Weighted unobservable
techniques  inputs Range average inputs

DAVAFEMRE A Financial investments — {f& J o 8 4.58%-14.17% 10.75% T i o
HM2MHesE  atfair value through  Bl&JiR 478X (2017: 8.74%-11.10%)  (2017: 10.39%) # %4
ZEmE / other comprehensive  Discounted ~ Risk-adjusted TR LA
AL EZ RS 0 income/Available- cash flow  discount rate 1515
I 5 5 T for-sale securities: N
REHEE Equity securities and W RE

investment fund Significant
increase in
risk-adjusted
discount rate
would result
in a lower
fair value

TG TREAE 0.79-0.81 0.81 TR A
ik P/B ratio (2017: 0.85-1.21) (2017: 1.13) ERETF
Market 315
comparable NEE
approach i k7
Significant
increase in
P/B ratio
would result
in a higher
fair value
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.6 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Effect of changes in significant non-observable assumptions to

reasonably possibly alternatives

The fair value of financial instruments are, in certain circumstances,
measured using valuation models that incorporate assumptions that are
not supported by prices from observable current market transactions in
the same instrument and are not based on observable market data. The
following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonable possible
alternative assumptions due to parallel movement of plus or minus 10%

of the fair value.

At 2 i WL i 2 L 5 At 2 T Wi 4 Y 3
Effect on other comprehensive  Effect on other comprehensive
income and income statement income
HAE) A A B A |5 ) A )
Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable
ZO0—M\ —ZO0—NA\ —0—k —0—E
2018 2018 2017 2017
W T W T U BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
% Assets
AR B EES Financial investments at fair value
FAh A T £ through other comprehensive
ZEmMBEE income 73,064 (73,064) = =
Ak 2 R R Available-for-sale securities - - 113,157 (113,157)
B AAFEE Financial assets mandatorily
i AR measured at fair value through
SRE profit or loss 5,555 (5,555) = =
8 7€ A TE (A Financial assets designated at
i AR IR fair value through profit
G B E or loss 4,682 (4,682) = =
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

O G R E SR R AT A
S22 PR S e RO AR

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar agreements.

R A R 35 o 4580
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

T BN %
iRy
SMAREE EMHRREZR
Gross amounts of &% EF 5
o recognised Net amounts of
SMEEMS  financial liabilities  financial assets W ity
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in SHITH BB
recognised statement of  the statement of Financial Cash collateral i
financial assets  financial position  financial position instruments received Net amount
W% W%t T T T T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ZO—ME 2018
Derivative
financial
ik e assets 339,447 - 339,447 (265,511) (17,528) (3,592)
AERAHS IR TR AR M B
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
TERBAR L%
R ERER
SHAREE THBERIRER
Gross amounts of &l 7 14
CHER recognised  Net amounts of
SHEEAH  financial liabilities financial assets A
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in SHLA R iR
recognised statement of  the statement of Financial Cash collateral i
financial assets  financial position  financial position instruments received Net amount
BT EHT T BT T WL EHT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
ZO0—t# 2017
Derivative
financial
it eMEE assets 1,082,715 - 1,082,715 (368,608) (262,540) 451,567
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4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.7 Offsetting financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting arrangements or similar agreements.

R A R 35 o 4580
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position

I S
iRy
SMAREE EMHERREZR
Gross amounts of  F & £ 41
o recognised Net amounts of
SMAGAE  financial liabilities financial liabilities fefkny
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in SHITH BB
recognised statement of  the statement of Financial Cash collateral i
financial liabilities  financial position financial position instruments pledged Net amount
W% T T T #W% T #W T
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
ZO—ME 2018
Derivative
financial
it SRR liabilities 578,618 - 578,618 (265,511) (259,749) 53,358
Repurchase
Je] i ¥4 e agreements 294,891 - 294,891 (294,891) - -
AERIH IR TR AR M B
Related amounts not set off in the
statement of financial position
TERHRIE
R ERER
SHAREE THERIRER
Gross amounts of & A 14
CHER recognised  Net amounts of
SHAGAE  financial liabilities financial liabilities Pk
Gross amounts of set off in the presented in SHLA B
recognised statement of  the statement of Financial Cash collateral HH
financial liabilities  financial position  financial position instruments pledged Net amount
EHT T EHT T BHT T EHT T T EHT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
ZO0—t# 2017
Derivative
financial
ik &mMa & liabilities 562,099 - 562,099 (368,608) (150,94) 43,197

143



1 44 Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4 <l e B A PR () 4 Financial risk management (Continued)
4.8 & RhE AR 4.8 Transfers of financial assets

PIF B AL BT A 4 IEERR A2 E  The transferred financial assets of the Group below that do not qualify
R ERERE > UGS EFRFAIES  for derecognition are debt securities held by counterparties as collateral

B 15 (0] B T R KA o 10 (S 6 0 o under sale and repurchase agreements.
Cig% HHBA £ £ B MR B 1A
7 MR 1 L WRwAH  EAE AR AR TH (L
Carrying Carrying Carrying Carrying
amount of amount of amount of amount of
transferred associated transferred associated
assets liabilities assets liabilities
—O—N\ —O—N\ —o—t —0—1
2018 2018 2017 2017
T #W T T T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

[5] J5 1 o Repurchase agreements 322,808 294,891 = =
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5 FlEHA 5 Interest income
—O0O—N —o—+t
2018 2017
i3 T
HKS$°000 HK$’000

Balances and placements with and loans and
[R] ZELE T M Bk advances to banks 2,499,635 1,516,672
fE v 55 Debt securities

— bEHiaHE — listed 717,588 605,772
— FEHAH — unlisted 491,427 477,666
EEEH Advances to customers 5,299,473 4,584,437
HoAthy Others 441,376 259,340
9,449,499 7,443,887

FLB WA % 4 il B R BT AT R

Interest income is analysed by types of financial assets as follows:

—ZO—N\ —0—t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
KUE DL HEEREA Financial assets mandatorily measured at
16 i MR 2 4 il fair value through profit or loss 46,043 -
FEEE Mgz s Trading securities - 52,609
55 VA FEETA Financial assets designated at fair value
B iRz S RE E through profit or loss 149,126 181,469
PAZ S (B 3 A H A Financial assets at fair value through other
AT W fi 2 4 VA comprehensive income 1,728,951 =
KA TEEREA Financial assets that are not at fair value
BHREZ S MEE through profit or loss - 6,968,505
e A IR 2
4 & = Financial assets at amortised cost 7,093,135 =
) 2 45 HH G 4 Interest rate swaps 432,244 241,304
9,449,499 7,443,887

ALFE FE A B WA IR 5T 8 (2 P
[m] 1S e A 5 12,272,0000C (—O—+&

A EEE1,633,0000T) ©

Included in interest income is unwinding of discount on impaired assets
of HK$12,272,000 (2017: HK$1,633,000).
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6 Fl &7 6 Interest expense
—O0O—N =0—
2018 2017
W T BTt
HK$°000 HK$’000

Deposits and balances from banks and

[F] A7 K B F A deposits from customers 3,969,057 3,353,283
AT 2 A7 Certificates of deposit issued 142,119 93,758
BT 2 B AEAETE Subordinated debts issued 138,514 69,005
FAth Others 434,668 289,675
4,684,358 3,805,721

AR ST th 1% B B AT

Interest expense is analysed by types of financial liabilities as follows:

—O—N —0=1%
2018 2017
BT i i BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000

FE LAAFEERSA Financial liabilities mandatorily measured at
B iRz AR fair value through profit or loss 53 -
o IRE T 2 A fE Trading liabilities _ 155
TS ARSI IR 2 & Rl E ff  Financial liabilities at amortised cost 4,290,260 -

RUAN BB EE Financial liabilities that are not at fair

18 i W 2 45 Pl 1 15 value through profit or loss - 3,543,265
F 45 5 4 Interest rate swaps 394,045 262,301
4,684,358 3,805,721
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7 MR 5 Kl B 7 Net fees and commission income
ZO—N —o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
e 55 2 AR < e A Fees and commission income
A 48 A0 R P RS Securities brokerage and investment services 468,622 447,047
EIRSE TS Credit cards 143,862 136,635
A B B R 2 w5 2
14 Credit related fees and commission 222,657 266,740
B o g Trade finance 106,134 85,326
HoAth T R4 T Other retail banking services 22,531 14,333
HCAth R 5 2 e A Other fee income 77,482 73,183
1,041,288 1,023,264
P25 2 A 4 5 Fees and commission expenses
EIRSE S Credit cards (113,462) (119,109)
8 I KL AL R BRE IR Securities brokerage and investment services (58,052) (54,376)
Al AR S e S Other fee expenses (35,365) (41,450)
R ... (206,879) (214,935)
A% 2 KA & R A Net fees and commission income 834,409 808,329
Hor Of which:
B IR E E A iR sds e
DA TFEEZEAE L EZ  Net fees and commission income, other than
SRS ESABTELEZ amounts included in determining the effective
MR 2 AR 4 i A interest rate, arising from financial assets or
(R L35 AR R E B financial liabilities that are not held for trading
MR EH) nor designated at fair value through profit or loss
— MR AR A A — fees and commission income 352,661 376,202
— PR B s S — fees and commission expenses (104,508) (112,042)
REHRREFHFARKE
Z R B H A 2 RT3 Net fees and commission income on trust and
v AR 22 R s e S M 4 other fiduciary activities where the Group holds
FUCA or invests on behalf of its customers
8- Y ET N ON — fees and commission income 24,489 16,035
— R 2 R A 4 S — fees and commission expenses (4,078) (2,251)
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8 PRI S B DR K H R 1 A

8 Insurance operating income and charge for insurance

claims
—O0O—N —0o—+t
2018 2017
i3 BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
REEEEBRA Insurance operating income
A Gross
TRAR 2 A Gross insurance premium written 606,981 537,295
A 313 R A Y A 2 i s Change in unearned premium provision (32,701) 8,155
CEAT 2 IRB & 4 T AR Premium revenue arising from insurance
ZAREA contracts issued 574,280 545,450
AR Reinsurance
it 2 AR E Reinsurance premium outward (108,259) (89,953)
R HA T A a2 s Change in unearned premium provision 5,547 (5,082)
EEITZREBEEHZ Premium revenue ceded to reinsurers arising
 WREBAMTAEBRA  from insurance contracts issued | (102,712)  (95,035)
N SE T N Net premium earned 471,568 450,415
A ON Commission income 85,056 109,011
HAf e A Other income 558 708
14 S H Commission expenses (81,613) (81,459)
475,569 478,675
PR B e & UE (RERE) Charge for insurance claims (Note)
Rk Gross
O AT R E Gross claims paid (317,612) (331,043)
CEMmZRE o84 Change in reported claims,
B 2z R H A IBNR and other insurance
PR B HEAR 2 ol provision (18,758) 31,209
(336,370) (299,834)
THEREI Reinsurance
Wi o] PR 2 R Claims recovered from reinsurers 31,726 24,631
CEHRZRE  C#E Change in reported claims,
B 2z R I H A IBNR and other insurance
PRI UEM 2 ok provision 18,798 6,634
. . . 50524 31,265
FiRMRE  Netinsuranceclaims (285,846)  (268,569)
PRBg S £ T Net insurance operating income 189,723 210,106

Note: Charge for insurance claims represents net claims incurred on the Group’s
insurance business and the related claims settlement expenses.

RERE - LR B H AR EAR T A SR I 2 R B E TS
R IR AR TR
HIBESZ -
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9 Net trading gain

—O—N\ =0—%
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
HE AN TEEGE AR Net loss arising from financial instruments mandatorily
Z & T HFEE measured at fair value through profit or loss (147,168) =
FREEE & 2S5t Net gain from trading securities - 9,203
HEUANTEEGEAE IR Net loss arising from financial instruments designated
2 A T B R at fair value through profit or loss (117,719) (470)
fiitE i T H s Net gain arising from derivative financial instruments 33,171 22,876
A== e Net gain from foreign exchange trading 332,708 529,720
100,992 561,329
10 H At BB A 10 Other operating income
—O—N —O0—1t
2018 2017
BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B WA Dividend income
— bR S — Listed equity securities 10,645 11,653
— Ik B IRHERE 55 — Unlisted equity securities 34,368 63,854
WEYEZHEWA
TR B B S Rental income from
#5128,015,00070 investment properties less
(ZO—+L4 : direct outgoings of HK$28,015,000
WEW26,916,0007%) (2017: HK$26,916,000) 143,428 167,226
PRAE FFAH 45 13 U A Net rental income on safe deposit boxes 34,053 30,652
B R B AT IR 2 Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
SRVERE 2 TRt GERR) amortised cost (Note) 15,526 30,053
HoAt Others 11,863 39,071
249,883 342,509

RERE AR SR R AR 1A H 6 A0 42 8 AR S
MR EMERE - FEAEREZETE -

Note: During the year, the Group sold some of the financial assets at amortised
cost mainly as risk monitoring and control measures.

149



Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

11 BEXH 11 Operating expenses
—O—N\ —o0—+t
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
NF2H Staff costs
— Hie N HAD A A — Salaries and other costs 1,104,338 1,052,096
— B RAE A S HY — Retirement benefit costs 59,884 57,820
J75 e e S o Premises and equipment expenses,
AT excluding depreciation
— YEM A& — Rental of premises 110,571 103,856
— HoAt — Others 135,963 107,636
reg Depreciation
— HA ) 3 Skt — Other properties and
(FERE27) equipment (Note 27) 183,246 170,613
— HE L (EFE26) — Leasehold land (Note 26) 4,027 4,104
JE 45 T ZE S Advertising and business promotion 17,170 15,274
TE B i B Electronic data processing 78,179 76,715
TS 4 % 48 Rt Postage and communications 62,024 59,289
CEL R B Printing and stationery 12,454 12,474
T2 B T 5 Auditors’ remuneration 5,130 4,348
7K Water and electricity 19,723 19,265
EREYE EX g Legal and professional fee 153,858 141,606
w2 BB A B B 2 Business, withholding tax and surcharges 43,315 27,534
5 b 2 Insurance 23,008 21,398
W 75 FH BH 2 Securities related expenses 6,802 7,339
Hofts Others 149,167 72,027
2,168,859 1,953,394
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12 Pk AA IR 2K 12 Impairment losses
—O—N\ —o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$°000
Balances and placements with and loans and
[F] SEAF R S B advances to banks
— PN A B — at amortised cost 14,671 -
— DAAPE B R A HAh — at fair value through other
2 THI U 4 comprehensive income 54 =
B 5 Debt securities
— YRS A A B — at amortised cost 129,207 =
— DAAPE B R A=A — at fair value through other
ERLER comprehensive income 565,083 -
B B A HRTH Advances and other accounts
— FRHR S LA S R — at amortised cost 127,192 190,708
— DAAPE B R A=A — at fair value through other
ERLER comprehensive income 41,073 -
BPORGE RaRIE IR E 4 Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts (26,875) -
A A 2R A Net charge to income statement 850,405 190,708

13 V5 1o % 4k 8 AR A 9 ke 2 < ik T

13 Net loss on redemption of financial instruments at

-l il amortised cost
—O—N\ —0=1%
2018 2017
BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
4 Pl A R B IR AR T Net modification gain on financial assets not
R E I FERR 2 W IR A derecognised 1,114 -
B PR B A S R 2 Net loss on disposal of financial assets at
4l A 2 T TR amortised cost (15,179) -
W o] 8841 2 R AE(ETH 2 Net loss on redemption of subordinated
518 debts issued (16,171) =

(30,236)
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14 EHME

Fe B W (O m R BI) H5383(1)M K& (A
A (4 6% A 4 R BLB) SE2F K

14 Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

FE TP R 2 EEM T Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
—O—N\ —0—t
2018 2017
BT BTt
HK$’000 HK$’000
M4 Directors’ fees 2,230 2,198

Fra o~ feEL > HERE K Salaries, bonus, allowances and

HRHEF benefits in kind 22,923 17,787
ARAREH R LK Retirement scheme contributions 1,154 1,307
26,307 21,292

SEAEBEA > AT I ) AR AT AT
SCAT AR A o RAETE R AT AR
LA BT S 1Y IR B 18 56 = 5 ST AT
FIH o

SN R B A R > A TECE
GRONYFACTIES ¥ E S d o) A
B2 e 2 ) SIf AT S7 AT ] B AR AT 25
AR T S 4 ) 4 A KO 4
S A B E M b E L)
LG o

15 3 B 2B phc e A1t 31

SR [ Iy AR AT 2 W B R A TUIH I B AR AR
KA EHE o 53 B AT — ] BB A ) 2
B —HEH e H o o IHK AR
RAE A # > Hop ER g E (A5 5
[Zwl &) LA — 8 5 % 18 A 5t 35 4
Fe— M 57 7€ A akwt B Ay o HoAh A —
JE 7 € AR AR ARET B - W IE 2 1 SME
BT i 2 558 ket ) B —TH A iR A 4
FE# o LA A 2 78 ik 52 B8 8 20T A
—RPER LR > 20wt B A E R
AR BRI A et o

During the year, no termination benefits were paid by the Bank to any
of the Bank’s directors. During the year, the Bank did not incur any
payment to third parties for making available directors’ services.

No transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to
the Bank’s business to which the Bank, or any of its subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a director
of the Bank or an entity connected with a director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

15 Staff retirement schemes

The Group operates five staff retirement schemes for the staff of the
Bank and an MPF scheme for the staff of a subsidiary of the Bank.
The five staff retirement schemes comprise a principal scheme (the
“Scheme”) which includes a defined benefit (“DB”) section and a
defined contribution (“DC”) section, a defined benefit pension scheme,
two defined contribution schemes for overseas employees and an MPF
scheme. All new Hong Kong employed staff members who join the Bank
are offered a one-off choice between the DC section of the Scheme and
the MPF scheme.
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15 Bk H A8 o At 3 ()

TEaZ 5T 3 A 3R rh > AR LM
H T Ho st 8 2 %8 19 H 310%1E
W HEEK o AN A BB A% T E A E ARG
Z Bt AT BE R B R 1S A it K
T Al BH 5% w1 0 5 L RE AR g5 T e
oo AAEFE A 2 i FE L KA A
e 914,452,000 (— O — L 4F ¢ ki
14,231,0007T) » A4EFH > KREHZ
T A3 2K AT AR A A 2R 2 ik 2k 4R AR
By s 2.724,0000C (O —-L4F :
1,880,0007%) o WA 4E &5 H » 3l 46 fE £ fit
H(ZO—bL4E M) o

A 45 ) 3 5 B 4 w1 2 AR i RS U
o ) M A < wh EVR ) > AR 35 R K
BEHAZAEBARZ%EE - MABRA
BRI PLHE 30,0000 4 FR -

A A TR B 52 55 8 A RO 2 5T K
5 FE 4 w1 2 At O A v 150,634,000
gt (—O—L4F : #¥46,568,0007T) °

% wt @ B 5 A A ARy b T — R E AR
AR AR EE ] (FE R 2 W8y [% 55 1B AR5t
#)) 2 M 2l B A R
7E W R Al % S R R A 2 A
E o SRR BRI B 2 R B &
Ve Ry nt BAR A 2 JEHE >l A 4R R 98 P
A A -

% S IR R E 4 IR Rk SR IR # )
HEAT AT o 3l R P A B B
Rz WA EE R o AR FHE R
AW B AR A RO R A E > EE
b R R e AR T SR AN R % A AR AR
il o

% S IR G # DU FE R PRAOE - fRREA
(9 3 2 BAT /5 e OR % S5 AR AR Rl 4% IR A
RERAVE B > WA IE - FHME S
ERM AT -

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

Under the DC section of the Scheme, the Group is required to contribute
10% of the monthly salary of the members who opted for the DC
arrangement. The Group’s contributions to the DC section of this Scheme
may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees who
leave the Scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totaling HK$14,452,000 (2017: HK$14,231,000) were
utilised during the year. The unutilised forfeited contributions at the
year end amounted to HK$2,724,000 (2017: HK$1,880,000) which are
available to reduce future contributions. No contributions were payable
at the year end (2017: Nil).

The Group’s contributions to the MPF schemes are based on 5% of the
monthly relevant income of each employee up to a maximum monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The contributions to schemes with defined contribution arrangements and
the MPF schemes during the year amounted to HK$50,634,000 (2017:
HK$46,568,000) in aggregate.

For the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme (collectively referred to as the “Plan”), the contributions are
determined based on periodic valuations by independent qualified
actuaries of the assets and liabilities of the Plan. The Plan provides
benefits based on members’ final salary. The costs are solely funded by
the Group.

The Plan is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance, and has been granted with MPF Exemption by the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority. The Group has an unconditional
right to the surplus of the Plan. Asset ceiling and minimum funding
requirements do not apply to the Plan.

The Plan was established under a trust arrangement. The key
responsibilities of the trustees are to ensure that the Plan is administered
in accordance with the trust deed and to act on behalf of all members
impartially, prudently and in good faith.
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15 Bk H A8 o At 3 ()

AL J i S B ARG BRI LY £
Ja B

B I B

AE 38 (1] 0% i S AR R B
SR (E - 20 % S B IR E B B IR
> BB B AR D o

2R U 2 T 9 AL
&> WIRIHEE S - R B KB
G016 1 1R 9 A o AL
%5 5 AL W T 2% 480 10 L
s

EFN T
AL 52 A P S0 R 1) 22 T 5 2 2
HRIHTBRE G G528 T e
JES 25

%t I JL, B

Al (LB R 2 50 A 3B M P W A e
A P 5 -

78 ke

P AR AR ARG BT 2 AR AR A AT [
JE 7 10 A 0 KPSl % R 4R R
] o MR A i Y 2B PR B I i B E AR
HFHs -

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The Plan exposes the Group to the following key risks:

Investment risk

Positive investment returns tend to increase the fair value of the Plan
assets and therefore improve the Plan’s financial position, whilst
negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The assets of the Plan are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities,
bonds and cash, covering major geographical locations around the world.
The diversification of asset classes and geographical location reduces the
concentration of risk associated with the Plan’s investments.

Interest rate risk

The defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate based
on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond yields will increase the
amount of obligation.

Salary risk

Salary increases that are higher than assumed at the valuation will
increase the defined benefit obligation.

Inflation risk

Pension in payment under the defined benefit pension scheme may be
increased, at the discretion of the Group, to reflect all or part of the
cost-of-living increase in Hong Kong. The higher-than-assumed increases
in pensions will increase the defined benefit obligation.
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15 Bk H A8 o At 3 ()
Ly 0L B

PR = 1) L300 35 o T B SRR AR 4
T FRLHE 386 0 5 7 A A 25 o

7% IR IR T B R T — YR 2 A A (B R
O~ /4T ZA=Z+—H > HBLH
ERBEMEEENFBARAA > HiE
BEREFHEBEREG LR R
& AT A € BT AR A 2 A s e T HE IS
195801 DIEFEAl > 3% SRR 8 2
T A ) FE S 1) BUAE B IR A 35 DL L R T
WA RFLIERTA o IMEEB > ZEIRIK
whH#l 2 B K E#109% (O — L4 -
138%) °

BRZO—NF+ZA=+t—HILZ4#
JE 5 5 B 5 0K UL 2R A 1l RR 2 & 0
LU

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)
Mortality risk

A prolonged pension in payment due to longer life expectancy of the
pensioners will increase the defined benefit obligation.

The latest actuarial valuation of the Plan was performed in accordance
with HKAS 19 (2011) issued by the HKICPA at 31 December 2018
by Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, an independent professional
actuarial firm, who have among their staff Fellows of the Actuarial
Society of Hong Kong. The present values of the defined benefit
obligation and current service cost of the Plan are calculated based on
the projected unit credit method. At the valuation date, the Plan had a
funding level of 109% (2017: 138%).

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018 are analysed as follows:

—O—N\ —0o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
EASELINGE () -Vl

NAEE Fair value of the Plan assets 406,938 473,178
E 2R EMmAFEH 2 BH  Present value of the funded defined benefit obligation (372,347) (342,308)

TSR BB IR D3R A R Net asset recognised in the consolidated
ZEE R statement of financial position 34,591 130,870

LA _EHR 2 B I AE 2 1 — 4R AR A i
(] o b0 I < B AN 7 B BELOR AR L A
A IE WSO R 2 S A B B o R R A
Z A B B R A ) s £ 3t LA B R AR
O Al wE AT S &ML - T — O
— JUAE R & F St 2 B AR AE A B AR

fK

BE_O—-/N\FEE_O0O—LtHE+_H=
—H 1k Z 4B R AKEEE S 4 A2
o HI kA E 2 R -

A portion of the above asset is expected to be recovered after more than
one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts receivable in the next twelve months, as future contributions
will also relate to future services rendered and future changes in
actuarial assumptions and market conditions. No contribution to the Plan
is expected to be paid in 2019.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment or settlement impact for the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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15 Bk H A8 o At 3 ()

TR Wi At 3R N RS 2 S REAN T

15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as
follows:

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

B LA Current service cost (11,433) (12,232)
5 A Bl A Net interest income 2,183 980

AL F5 75 A T AR AR 1) AR Net expense for the year included
Z SRR in retirement benefit costs (9,250) (11,252)

HE_O—NFE+ _H=+—HI4
B ZERARE B EE 2 BB EIR A
#45,599,0007C (O —-b4E « [ 5 i
#90,079,0007C) ©

AN SRR PR B U

The actual loss on Plan assets for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
HK$45,599,000 (2017: return of HK$90,079,000).

The movements in the defined benefit obligation during the year are as
follows:

—O—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
#WTou T
HKS$°000 HK3$°000

r—H—HZ R EmF Present value of obligation

FHBUE at 1 January 342,308 357,362
lii&7 3% Current service cost 11,433 12,232
FE A Interest cost 5,466 6,041
B REAR A 2 Actual benefits paid (20,641) (32,809)
BE &8 B B S S AL e 1R Actuarial losses due to liability experience 12,252 2,597
W55 PR st 52 ) BT S50 RS B Actuarial losses/(gains) due to financial assumption

a8 (B F]) changes 13,093 (3,136)
UNEEE S X Gk e Actuarial losses due to demographic assumption

JE5 18 changes 8,436 21
WrZH=+—HZ

B E AR 28T Actual obligation at 31 December 372,347 342,308

HRoo—NE+A=+—H > %zt
2 57 AR R EB Ay T e A AR ARET F) (1Y)
T8 A R 385 2 I REST- 35 47 4803 [ 40 Rl
F65% (.0 — L4 @ 5.64F) K1.74F
(ZO—L4 : 1.94F) -

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31
December 2018 is 6.5 years (2017: 5.6 years) and 1.7 years (2017: 1.9
years) for the DB section of the Scheme and the defined benefit pension
scheme respectively.
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15 Bk BB Ok Al st 30 (4) 15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

FENZERKGI G E A TEMEZ2E  The movements in the fair value of the Plan assets during the year are as
mr follows:

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

Rt — A — H SR KGR E Fair value of the Plan assets
BE 2 N FEE at 1 January 473,178 415,908
FLE WA Interest income 7,649 7,021
TA A% R AKEH B FLE (Loss)/return on the Plan assets
WA LIS (F5iE) 18] #Ht other than interest income (53,248) 83,058
B AR ) S Actual benefits paid (20,641) (32,809)
Wt —H=+—H&% Fair value of the Plan assets
BREBIEE 2 AN FEE at 31 December 406,938 473,178
SRR BB E B The major categories of the Plan assets are as follows:
—O—N\ —0—t
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
JBCHE 5 55 Equities 246,729 60.6 320,456 67.7
(EEiaess Bonds 71,434 17.6 77,318 16.4
B4 Cash 88,775 21.8 75,404 15.9
AR Total 406,938 100.0 473,178 100.0

HoOo— /NFE+H=+—H > #Z%%E At 31 December 2018, the amount of the Plan assets includes deposits
PRt # 2 & B AR FE U A T 2 e 24 with the Bank of HK$63,590,000 (2017: HK$63,391,000).

B %:63,590,0007C (—O—L4F : H¥

63,391,0007C) ©

TERPAL R I 8% A 2 FER B T : The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the valuation are as
follows:
—O0—N\ —o—t
2018 2017
% %
ER Discount rate
— a2 FEMEAERG  — DB section of the Scheme 1.9 1.7
— FEEAR ARG S — Defined benefit pension scheme 1.8 1.3
wZat & 2 FE A 2 Long-term average rate of salary increase
R 31249 57 M - for the DB section of the Scheme 5.0 4.3
FE fE AR 8 2 Long-term pension increase rate for the defined

12 HA AR IR 6 3 = i benefit pension scheme - -
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15 Bk BB Ok Al st 30 (4) 15 Staff retirement schemes (Continued)

DIF A FERE/REM A BTG HH  The below analysis shows the effect on the defined benefit obligation
RTZA=1T—HMWAREWAFERE  as at 31 December as a result of reasonably possible changes in the

BT - significant actuarial assumptions:
B4 25l 2k B T 258l 1
Increase of Decrease of
25 basis points 25 basis points
—O0—-N\ ZOo—t ZO—AN ZOo—t
2018 2017 2018 2017

WwWToU W ToL  WWTo W TOC
HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$’000

aER Discount rate
— ZatE A — DB section of
A A EB A the Scheme (5,989) (4,865) 6,165 4,998
— REmEARARGEE] - Defined benefit pension scheme 7 (10) 7 10

Long-term average rate of
%t 8 2 FE AR AR A salary increase for the

ZREF¥HMTIE DB section of the Scheme 6,167 5,071 (6,024) (4,962)
Long-term pension increase rate
S E AR FPRARGT #) 2 for the defined benefit
RHBRAKREHMEE  pension scheme 6 8 - =

bl g R BE A BT AR B RS A (B sk %5 The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that changes
Bl 4 45 54 B AR > IR R % 3% 45 B i 4 in actuarial assumptions are not correlated and therefore it does not take
BIZ o into account the correlations between the actuarial assumptions.

TG AR R E ks The following table sets out the expected benefit payments (including
1B 3 48 () JE 5148 R 52 4 4 %8 (fudE 44 benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary)

SRk B T RS M i i 8 2 AE A1) - from the Plan based on the adopted actuarial assumptions:
TR A AT

Expected benefit payments
—O—N\ —0—k
2018 2017
W T BT T
(B H 4% # 4F B Number of years after valuation date HK$°000 HK$’000
14 1 year 26,738 40,789
24F 2 years 42,809 39,427
34F 3 years 45,585 43,808
44F 4 years 44,095 42,273
S4F 5 years 39,171 37,621
62 104F 6 to 10 years 132,635 122,003

R 1047 Over 10 years 210,438 147,370
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16 i3 B
(a) REEAIGE R ZBIEL R ¢

16 Income tax

(a) Taxation charged in the consolidated income statement represents:

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

A BRI - Current taxation:
— F B — Hong Kong profits tax 413,599 517,498
— TEAF B MR R B — Over-provision of taxation in respect of prior years (1,920) (2,044)
411,679 515,454
— WFHIBLIA — Overseas taxation 145,594 105,337
ARIERLIH - Deferred taxation:
- A EEZ — Relating to the origination and reversal
JEE AE T ] of temporary differences (3,436) 17,612
553,837 638,403

T it RSB O 4% A AE B Al 51 8 7 B 165 )
PLFE #216.5% (= O —-LE4F : 16.5%) 7t
B o Vg AMBLIE B H AR AF BE A FE SR B W
I A A S ) 2 05 BT A B A 0 ) 22 B R

(b) 7S 45 [ A5 B 3 A i v 1) 22 o T LAY
B AW 2 BRI R 2 R A
B ZREWT

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for the year is calculated at
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

(b) The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong
Kong as follows:

ZO—N —o—t

2018 2017
oL T
HK$’000 HK$°000

IR o i Ve A1) Profit before taxation 3,772,490 4,499,068
PIFE#16.5% Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

(O—t4F : 16.5%) 5IH  (2017: 16.5%) 622,461 742,346
AR F0FL 2 32 EBLIE Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

2B taxation purposes 14,677 51,834
ST AR 2 WA B BLTH Tax effect of income not subject

2R to taxation (143,813) (175,852)
B A B0 5% N [) ol Effect of different taxation rates in

-7 other tax jurisdictions 60,543 24,189
T3 4F B YRR 0 Over-provision of taxation in respect of prior years (1,920) (2,044)
KRR 18 2 R Effect of unrecognised tax losses 211) (462)
HoAth Others 2,100 (1,608)
P15 Income tax 553,837 638,403
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16 Frfa Bt (%)

16 Income tax (Continued)

(c) HAthA Tk zs 9 LA KIS () The income tax effects relating to components of other
Bisp 2 comprehensive income are as follows:
ZO0—N —o0—t
2018 2017
B 45 BEEH iR BifR &
Before- i f B Net-of- Before- P31 Net-of-
tax Income tax tax Income tax
amount tax amount amount tax amount
WL WwWTr W%tk B¥To B% T %
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
AATEER Financial assets at fair value
HA 2T 2 through other comprehensive
SREE income
— N EEE — Changes in fair value (645,157) 34,392 (610,765) = = =
— st R A — Transfer to income statement
W as % on disposal (47,886) - (47,886) = = =
— PN A — Transfer to income statement
Wi i 2% on impairment 606,210 - 606,210 = = =
AT R Available-for-sale securities
— INFE(E — Changes in fair value - - - 206,393 (9,300) 197,093
S YN — Transfer to income statement
It & on disposal - - - (300,144) —  (300,144)
JEAL G &N F 2 fifi  Share of associates’ reserves (4,632) - (4,632) 102 = 102
MENG LR P B 2 Share of jointly controlled
ik entities’ reserves (5,512) - (5,512) 11,140 - 11,140
Exchange difference on translation
FAT R 1T R of financial statements of
W > ] 4 A overseas branches and
WREEME LSS subsidiaries (216,337) - (216,337) 318,853 — 318,853
DAVAFEERA Equity securities at fair value
HAh 2 s 2 through other comprehensive
i Sie income
— NTEERE — Changes in fair value (198,288) (861)  (199,149) = = =
Surplus on revaluation of
B E 2 B bank premises 7,194 - 7,194 - _ _
FRERAGI B ZHEE  Actuarial (losses)/gains on
(EHR) /s defined benefit scheme 87,029) 14360  (72,669) 83,576  (13,790) 69,786
AF P A A T Other comprehensive (expense)/
(L) / Wids income for the year (591,437) 47,891  (543,546) 319,920  (23,090) 296,830




Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

17 Fifr Bl ~ [l 36 A7 i B Bk

advances to banks

17 Cash, balances and placements with and loans and

—O—N\ —o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
i i 8 AR 0 e At amortised cost
JR A B i Cash 944,608 904,584
e ALIES Balances with banks 9,417,804 3,103,330
A7 LR AT Balances with central banks 3,663,881 19,579,954
[F] 2& 7€ B 47 7 Placements with banks
— A A R E — maturing within one month 38,649,080 25,757,079
— R —ZF+ M HREY - maturing between one and twelve months 17,546,024 22,058,011
56,195,104 47,815,090
[F] ZE B K Gross loans and advances to banks 298,413 6,081,860
T AE YA Impairment allowances
. S B (31645)
70,488,162 77,484,818
LA FEAEREA At fair value through other
Ll 2 7 W A comprehensive income
A SE B Gross loans and advances to banks 16,009,397 =
16,009,397 -
86,497,559 77,484,818

W_Oo—/NFE+_H=+—H > &REMH
Z A B B A R i a2 BRI Y A AR AR o R

AT 547 1 #E611,982,0000C (= O —-&  December 2018 (2017: HK$1,112,957,000).

A R 1,112,957,0000C) ©

The Group’s balances with central banks that are subject to exchange
control and regulatory restrictions amounted to HK$611,982,000 at 31
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18 i 4&m T H

TSR IHERATE M TR RECH
BEHEALHIABRNEHEH - 2
B (E R £ B gt LU B

18 Derivative financial instruments

The following is a summary of the notional or contractual amounts,
fair values and credit risk weighted amounts of each significant type of
derivatives, without taking into account the effects of bilateral netting
arrangements:

Py AT 4%,/ ATEE
UL Fair values U A Fair values
Notional/ Notional/

contractual B ffE  contractual B AR

amount Assets  Liabilities amount Assets  Liabilities
~O0—-\N ZO—AN ZO—AN Z0o—t Zo—t Z0—t
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017

wHTT  EWTx  #%Tx BWTr W T #WTx
HK$’000  HK$’000  HKS’000  HK$°000  HK$°000  HKS000

HMESH) Exchange rate contracts
U AH Forward contracts 20,989,028 186,000 155,318 10,445,963 335,642 332,080
jeg -0 Currency swaps 74,190,151 152,632 534,553 70,530,456 903,702 373,385
R R e ] Cross currency interest rate swaps - - - 405,386 33,586 33,505
T Options written 275,119 - 1,696 432,935 - 841
A Options purchased 319,688 1,649 - 458672 738 —
95,773,986 340,281 691,567 82,273,412 1,273,668 739,811
FIRE 4 Interest rate contracts
kSt Tnterest rate swaps 2874102 146989 77371 23602200 134873 54782
RS Equity contracts
Tt R Options written 67,092 - 403 - - -
YNl Options purchased 67,092 403 - - - -
134,184 403 403 - - _

120,782,272 487,673 769,341 105,875,612 1,408,541 794,593

WETHZ GHEHABRRER AR
TN & > WANRGEEB KR/ - B
T TS5 I 2~ [ 4 B AR M fE A% e By > AT
ETHEARERAH (BE) SAF (8
) - i emMERE AR A THEE
RERER] BB IR A EOR Y D) -

The contractual amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of
transactions outstanding as at the end of the reporting period and they
do not represent amounts at risks. The derivative instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity prices relative
to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets
and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.
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18 fii et TR (4)

18 Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

5 B El by L B 440 Credit risk weighted amount
A5 &) Exchange rate contracts 538,310 943,264
F R A #) Interest rate contracts 86,079 80,893
HES % Equity contracts 3,881 =

628,270 1,024,157

{5 £ By b B < U AR AR A T CERAT
(EA) B MFtE o 5 IR
FRGEFZHULZE M THZE
JRR B S o BT BRI 2 AR ELEE 0%
2£150% °

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount depends on
the status of the counterparties and the maturity characteristics of the
instruments. The risk weights used range from 0% to 150%.
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19 UANFHEMAG ABEKRZSEM 19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

& E
Bk
Financial assets
B E DA FH 5% DA A F
A 55 A\ 45 23 R fH w5 A 18 15 R
Mandatorily Designated at
measured at fair fair value
value through through aat
profit or loss profit or loss Total
T W T #¥ T
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O— N\ 2018
BT Debt securities
— & b — Listed in Hong Kong 155,102 2,604,104 2,759,206
— s BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 1,604,931 1,254,752 2,859,683
— ki — Unlisted 557,607 341,172 898,779
2,317,640 4,200,028 6,517,668
JRCRE RS 5 Equity securities
— kT — Unlisted 5,823 - 5,823
— s b — Listed in Hong Kong 11,629 - 11,629
17,452 - 17,452
R RER A Equity investment fund
.25 ~Unlisted 123893 - 123,893
2,458,985 4,200,028 6,659,013
HBIT AL : Of which issued by:
— R K — Central governments
LR AT and central banks 528,037 - 528,037
— SRAT S FHoAth — Banks and other financial
< R institutions 1,466,419 367,530 1,833,949
— {3 — Corporate entities 464,529 3,832,498 4,297,027

2,458,985 4,200,028 6,659,013
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19 LA PHEMEGEEAFGENRZ &M 19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
&rE () (Continued)
8 A TEE
AR IRZ
4 Pl
Financial assets
FFEE®  designated at fair
%2 #52 value through S5k
Trading securities profit or loss Total
T T T BT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
—O—t& 2017
(v e Debt securities
— &k b — Listed in Hong Kong 447,445 3,856,752 4,304,197
— yAh BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 490,522 1,330,402 1,820,924
— ki — Unlisted 102,967 756,444 859,411
7777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,040,934 5,943,598 6,984,532
JECHE R 55 Equity securities
_ CAE L —Listed in Hong Kong 361 - 33161
1,074,095 5,943,598 7,017,693
HBITAL - Of which issued by:
— FRBURF K& — Central governments and
SR AT central banks 10 _ 10
— $RAT KA — Banks and other financial
A PR institutions 704,600 380,056 1,084,656
— % — Corporate entities 369,485 5,563,542 5,933,027
1,074,095 5,943,598 7,017,693
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20 HHILE

20 Investment in securities

ZO—N =0—
2018 2017
BT BTt
HK$°000 HK$’000
DL B 56 A At 22 T Financial investments at fair value through other
Wit 2 4 R G comprehensive income
B HE 5 Debt securities 46,308,094 -
JBCRE A5 75 Equity securities 1,011,321 =
47,319,415 —
At 2 WSS Available-for-sale securities
B 76 7 Debt securities - 45,053,898
JREHHE 78 2 Equity securities - 1,066,948
JREAES & Equity investment fund - 269,543

- 46,390,389

RS A YR 2 4 Bld% & Financial investments at amortised cost

Debt securities

821,895

I AE A Impairment allowances
— SR REB — Stage 1 (864) -
— =B — Stage 3 (141,540) =
. 679491 | =
Fr 2 2 s o5 Held-to-maturity securities
L Debt securities = 331,356
47,998,906 46,721,745

RO —tEFA=+—H » AEH
Z A R 2 O AR 2 B e 2 A

W -

There were no impairment allowances on available-for-sale securities
and held-to-maturity securities of the Group as at 31 December 2017.
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20 WHHFIRE () 20 Investment in securities (Continued)

FEAZES R I > AR EAGSE LU HE  The Group has designated some equity investments at fair value through
WERE AT EMEZE AL AT other comprehensive income for business strategic reasons subjected
FhE > MEAD T A SE NS LB RSB to internal stop loss limit control mechanism. The dividend income

il o HE MR EWAIT recognised from these equity investments are as follows:
ZO—N
2018
BT
HKS$°000
CLHERR B B A Dividend income recognised
INERA A 2 IR 55 Equity securities held at year end
— & b — Listed in Hong Kong 9,147
— JE b — Unlisted 31,394
RERNT 8 E Z IS5 Equity securities sold during the year
— B b — Listed in Hong Kong 400
— b — Unlisted -
40,941

AL B AE A B B AR BERCE > During the year, the Group sold some of these equity investments as they

R 2 2023 N LR R AR - sEE T have reached the internal stop loss limits. The details are as follows:
—O—N\
2018
BT
HK$°000
A R PR Fair value at disposal 19,229
A LR B TR E A 4B A A Loss on disposal transferred from financial asset

PR i A 2 B T 1R revaluation reserve to retained earnings (5,324)




1 68 Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

AP R LR

Notes to the Financial Statements

20 EHHE ()

20 Investment in securities (Continued)

AR E
Financial investments
NS = Lich
s A At
EIIL &
At fair value 5 8 AR
through other 2]
comprehensive At amortised Hat
income cost Total
BT W T T oo
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
ZO— N\ 2018
fEH 5 Debt securities
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 10,410,859 616,921 11,027,780
— A b — Listed outside Hong Kong 11,933,197 21,390 11,954,587
— JE kT — Unlisted 23,964,038 41,180 24,005,218
46,308,094 679,491 46,987,585
JRCRE RS 5 Equity securities
— & bl — Listed in Hong Kong 280,682 - 280,682
— JE kT — Unlisted 730,639 - 730,639
. o322 e 1,011,321
47,319,415 679,491 47,998,906
F RS AR S B 2 Fair value of listed securities
iR A EE at amortised cost - 637,479 637,479
HBT AL : Of which issued by:
— R BUR & — Central governments and
FR L SR AT central banks 17,535,157 105,870 17,641,027
— 17 L H — Banks and other financial
b <55 il 4 A institutions 18,619,802 19,578 18,639,380
— % — Corporate entities 11,164,456 554,043 11,718,499
47,319,415 679,491 47,998,906
Included within debt securities
EH g are:
— R g 2 A7 ks — Certificates of deposit held 5,621,405 19,578 5,640,983
— B E S
(B4 41 e — Treasury bills (including
HE ) Exchange Fund Bills) 13,792,152 - 13,792,152
— HAtfE — Other debt securities 26,894,537 659,913 27,554,450
46,308,094 679,491 46,987,585
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20 EHHE ()

20 Investment in securities (Continued)

At
Eioe Fr 2 2 W76 5
Available-for- Held-to-maturity Gl
sale securities securities Total
i BPTH T T ik T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—t& 2017
fEH 3 5 Debt securities
— &Fis bl — Listed in Hong Kong 10,416,793 233,774 10,650,567
— YA BT — Listed outside Hong Kong 10,478,624 = 10,478,624
— Ik kT — Unlisted 24,158,481 97,582 24,256,063
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 45,053,898 331,356 45,385,254
JECHE R 55 Equity securities
— Fis b — Listed in Hong Kong 128,133 = 128,133
— ki — Unlisted 938,815 - 938,815
777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,066,948 - 1,066,948
JERER: G A2 Equity investment fund
o kEw “Unlisted 260543 - 269,543
46,390,389 331,356 46,721,745
FrR RS 2 Fair value of listed
A A EE held-to-maturity securities = 230,933 230,933
HBT AL : Of which issued by:
— HRBURN K& — Central governments and
YL gR AT central banks 18,006,699 111,544 18,118,243
— $RAT K HA — Banks and other financial
4 R I institutions 16,849,503 19,532 16,869,035
— {2 — Corporate entities 11,534,187 200,280 11,734,467
46,390,389 331,356 46,721,745
Included within debt securities
BB are:
— Rl 2 17k — Certificates of deposit held 6,145,557 19,532 6,165,089
— B
(BLHE 51 b — Treasury bills (including
HE T Exchange Fund Bills) 14,257,725 = 14,257,725
— HApthfEA — Other debt securities 24,650,616 311,824 24,962,440
45,053,898 331,356 45,385,254
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21 Bk K A IR IR

(a) Bk S HAbIRIE

21 Advances and other accounts

(a) Advances and other accounts

ZO—N —o0—+t
2018 2017
i3 BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
e B 8 RS ) W At amortised cost
EFEH Advances to customers 154,404,596 150,838,500
[E 257 Trade bills 223,563 5,409,111
JEwHFILE Accrued interest 1,361,372 940,816
HoAth AR IH Other accounts
— MR — Insurance premium receivable 128,237 106,198
— AR A [H]
(FERE31) — Recoverable from reinsurers (Note 31) 270,775 246,430
— JE S R Ho A R TH — Accounts and other receivable 1,769,509 2,108,390
. 2,168,521 2,461,018
TAEYEA Impairment allowances
— PR — Stage 1 (122,171) -
— PR B — Stage 2 (55,691) =
— B FEB — Stage 3 (550,701) =
— &R — Collectively assessed - (295,674)
— {18 7 EEAk — Individually assessed - (336,262)
. . (728,563)  (631,936)
157,429,489 159,017,509
DAY PR RS A oAl At fair value through other
2 AR comprehensive income
EFE R Advances to customers 3,354,983
[HE 28 Trade bills 4,482,739
R ... 7,837,722 =
165,267,211 159,017,509




Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited
TR K BESRAT A PR B — O — /\AF4FEHR

21 Sk KA IRIE (4)
(b) i L % LI 5 4

EFRERACFEMERELHBEHZ
BE > ot

21 Advances and other accounts (Continued)
(b) Finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Advances to customers include investments in finance lease receivables
and hire purchase contracts, analysed as follows:

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T
HKS$°000 HK$°000

JRE WA 5% e A A Gross investment, receivable
— —4ER — Within one year 39,310 54,735
— —4Pl BB A — After one year but within five years 26,406 50,341
— AP E — After five years 2,259 2,647
67,975 107,723
R 2 BB A Unearned finance income (2,601) (5,245)
BEFH Net investment 65,374 102,478

REE KA A 2 G FE ST
L/(T N

The net investment in finance lease receivables and hire purchase
contracts is analysed as follows:

—O0—N —o—t

2018 2017
wHTT W TC
HKS$°000 HK$°000

—4E A Within one year 37,490 51,491
—4EDL & A After one year but within five years 25,625 48,340
FAEDLE After five years 2,259 2,647

65,374 102,478

AEHZMEHERHBGLHZHER
AL AR 2R 2 FIEREME (Z 0
—LA 0 E) o

M_Oo—/NE+_H=+—H > A&EH
ZAS AT i ] gl A e AL I A A 2 E
MEMS 4 HAH A 15 116,0007T °

RZo—tHE+H=1—H  &4£LH
ZAE e ECE L RS A A 2 A
U6 YA A AR ) {8 A < MR o0 Tl
#12,296,0007C K i 57,000 G °

No unguaranteed residual values were included in the gross investment
in finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group
(2017: Nil).

As at 31 December 2018, the impairment allowances for uncollectible
finance lease receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group
included in the impairment allowances for the receivables amounted to
HKS$116,000.

As at 31 December 2017, the collective impairment allowances and
individual impairment allowances for uncollectible finance lease
receivables and hire purchase contracts of the Group included in the
impairment allowances for the receivables amounted to HK$2,296,000
and HK$57,000 respectively.
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22 PR 2 ) HE 2

THB/AGR_O—/NE+_H=+—

22 Interests in subsidiaries

The following is a list of the subsidiaries owned by the Bank at 31

H . #HZHBAR - December 2018:
CH#iT R
CARZ A
Issued and paid up
share capital
A Place of i % TR
%#%3%  incorporation  Number of Nominal value
4 Name L and operation shares per share FEEH Principal activities
TR PR B PR A CMB Wing Lung Insurance Hik Hong Kong 29,000,000 N/ R Insurance underwriting
Company Limited” n.a.
KRR A A R AR CMB Wing Lung Capital Limited® 7 Hong Kong 7,000,000 NER /B Financial consultancy
na. MRH services
TR KA TR A7) CMB Wing Lung Finance Limited” 7 Hong Kong 2,500,000 NER /B Provision of financial
na MR# services
TR kR CMB Wing Lung Asset Fies Hong Kong 2,565,450 AN/ BEEM  Asset management
HIRA A Management Limited* 6
Bk (S LA R Rl CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) ik Hong Kong 300,000 NER / (EaEs Trustee services
Limited” n.a.
IR 78 7 e B i CMB Wing Lung Insurance s Hong Kong 250,000 AR/ bR Insurance broking
HIRA A Brokers Limited” A
AR K e (R R ) CMB Wing Lung Agency Limited* 7 Hong Kong 50,000 NEm/ Rt Insurance agency
n.a.
BB AE CMB Wing Lung (Nominges) Fiais Hong Kong 1,000 NER / %ZFEE  Nominee services
AR R Limited* na. MR
R K e S R ) CMB Wing Lung Property B Hong Kong 1,000 T/ WEEM  Property management
Management Limited* na.
FRAH R/ Hongnet Limited” Bk Hong Kong 1,000 A/ H&EE  Investment holding
na.
Wingspan Incorporated* Wingspan Incorporated” £ USA. 1,500,000 USSI #%#F4  Property holding
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22 WG 2 vl RE 2R (#E)

22 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

BH#ITR
CaRZ A
Issued and paid up
share capital
Akt Place of it % =3 A
K#3%  incorporation  Number of Nominal value
48 Name L and operation shares per share FEEH Principal activities
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities Fund FiEREE  Cayman Islands 36,696 USS1,000 £&%%  Investment holding
Fund Limited® Limited®
Wing Lung Opportunities Wing Lung Opportunities Master BIEMS  Cayman Islands 27,612 USS1,000 HEEH Investment holding
Master Fund Limited® Fund Limited®
Wing Lung Growth Fund Il Wing Lung Growth Fund III FiEREE  Cayman Islands 433,200 HKS1,000 #&%¥#  Investment holding
Segregated Portfolio® Segregated Portfolio”
5k B & A BRA ) Sea Wing Investments Limited" i Hong Kong 1,000 NER/ WERH Property holding
na.
P A B R CMB Wing Lung Equity Investment H# A& People’s (Fif¥a) (;tf%a) HEBE  Equity investment
L (EY) AR Management (Shenzhen) Limited”  4£71 Republic of (Note a) (Note a) EH management
YNGR China
ZEARRAF Antopex Limited” i British Virgin 1 USS1 f5#t%H  Trustee services
JRaE  Islands
R A R E) Bulleria Limited" BB British Virgin 1 USS1 fEatH Trustee services
s Islands
SRAE A PRAF] Cameland Limited" g British Virgin 1 USS1 f5#t%H  Trustee services
JRUE  Islands
A A PR 7 Deeright Limited" BB British Virgin 1 USS1 53t Trustee services
s Islands
BWEA RA =) Eaglearn Limited" P British Virgin 1 USS1 fEit2H Trustee services
JRaE  Islands

AT REEERAZWE AR -

b MAITREMESEA Z WA -

®

RZO—/NMEFZHA=1—H » RITHEA

Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited

([5z %% &)

AT B B 296.65%

(O — L % : 85.29%)  Wing Lung
Opportunities Master Fund Limited i 5%
HGEEHENA

FERE ¢ (a)akffEAS 25 AR ¥E13,000,00000

# Wholly and directly held by the Bank.

: Wholly and indirectly held by the Bank.

®

At 31 December 2018, the Bank directly holds 96.65% (2017: 85.29%) of
the shares issued by Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited (the “Fund” ).
Wing Lung Opportunities Master Fund Limited is wholly and directly held
by the Fund.

Note: (a) Registered capital was RMB13,000,000.
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23 I [l J52 ol 6 2

23 Interests in jointly controlled entities

—O—N =0=-¢

2018 2017
T T ki com oI
HKS$°000 HKS$’000

JRE A 7 R

Share of net assets 192,144 2,159,614

w_o—N\F+_A=+—HEK _-0—
LESZH =1 — 1z FEALE ST
RN

The following is a list of the principal jointly controlled entities at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

AL Place of WAES BEEZESKL

K#3%  incorporation Ownership Proportion
F2 Name U and operation interest of voting power FEEH Principal activities
SR Bank Consortium Fits Hong Kong 13.33% 14.29% F{E/KEHE]  Provision of trustee,
R Aw] Holding Limited* ZIEst > 78 administration and

B R custodian services
for retirement schemes

R Joint Electronic Teller Hong Kong (7f%a) (i) SRCEABMEEH  Provision of ATM
FIRA ] * Services Limited* (Note a) (Note a) 2 AAA& IR network services
SRR B BC Reinsurance Ei Hong Kong 21.00% 21.00% PR ER Reinsurance business
ARAH Limited
&4 EA Merchants Union ik People’s Republic A /n.a AR /na WEEMRE  Consumer finance
PR/ ] Consumer Finance AR of China (2017:34.97%)  (2017: 34.97%) service

Company Limited** LAl

DA I 3 (7] 42 ) B R AR B P SR S8 £
LA i) A 4 B4R 36 2 5 A MR s R

* AT B A 2 SR

RO /NET T AMER > AEEZ
Fr I HE 25 H134.97%380 ) 5525.85% (2017:
H50%35 0 £34.97%) » HN R E &
A BRZA 7 2 25 E B A A [ A 7
HE S | o 33T 40 AT 2 Vi A A R T E A
S 7] 2 1] B Ve o

R () AEEEMARREZ — - it
A % ) 2 HE il A o ARSEE
FEA 5% Al B AT T H A R B
BeTAL B 220% o 5% 2 7l A HAth
L AR o AEA A E R > A
JRCHE A 20 T 2 ) I P 22 o R
—O0O—NEt+ZH=+—H,> %
EEWEAZA A E RS 22.67%
(ZO—L4F : 2.67%) ML -

o

The above jointly controlled entities are strategic partners for the Group
to widen the service types to be provided to the Group’s customers.

& Directly held by the Bank

There was a capital injection in December 2018 which caused the Group’s

ownership interest decreased from 34.97% to 25.85% (2017: from 50% to
34.97%) and the interests in Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company
Limited was reclassified as “Interests in associates”. The profit prior to
reclassification was included in “Share of net profit of jointly controlled
entities”.

Note: (a)

The Group is one of the five founding members which together
have a controlling interest in the company. The Group holds 20%
of the ‘A’ ordinary shares issued by the company to its founding
members. The company also has other class of ordinary shares.
Class A ordinary shares have the right to vote on the allocation of
the company’s asset upon the winding up of the company. As at 31
December 2018, the Group is entitled to 2.67% (2017: 2.67%) of
dividends declared by the company.
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23 R EHERELS (4)
S [e] 42 ) B R M A A RO o

SR AR A EOR Y B S [ 2 R A
WA BRI T

AT 19 B4 85 R 1 I R o A 5 ko
e JU)) A A (] 42 o) B S R
FI7R BB FH o

HRBH 2 AT LA

23 Interests in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The jointly controlled entities are accounted for using equity method.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

jointly controlled entity is set out below:

The summarised financial information below represents amounts
shown in the jointly controlled entity’s financial statements prepared in

accordance with HKFRSs.

Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company Limited:

—o—t
2017
BT
HK$°000
e [w] 4 i) B 8 1) 4 7 Gross amounts of jointly controlled entity
HE Assets 56,394,256
AR Liabilities 50,781,451
it Equity 5,612,805
Ak A Gross income 7,135,382
T i ) Net profit 1,426,080
el e Total comprehensive income 1,426,080
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in jointly
B A A5 [ L ] e o) ‘B SRR 4 1 IR controlled entity
] 422 7 B B e A Gross amounts of net assets of jointly controlled entity 5,612,805
7S A [ B L[] 2 ) B B VR A 2 B R MEZS Group’s share of net assets of jointly controlled entity 1,962,986

A P AN TR ] 42 o e AN )

Aggregate information of jointly controlled entities that are not

individually material:

ZO0—A —o—t

2018 2017
T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000

AN 4 9] 4 5% 45 3 [n] 422 i Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share

B A of those jointly controlled entities
TR B 5 48 4 s ) Profit from continuing operations 28,037 43,857
IR 8 A L8 RBiLE Post-tax profit from discontinued

Tt ] operations - 15
Hith 2w () s Other comprehensive (expense)/income (5,512) 205

2 TH] Ut AR A Total comprehensive income 22,525 44,077
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24 Wi o vl RE i 24 Interests in associates
—O0—N —o0o—+k
2018 2017
T T T
HK$°000 HK$’000
JREALG 5 7 VAR Share of net assets 2,625,812 3,592

H_o—NFE+ _HA=+—HkKk _-0—
tHEF+H=+—H » RNEMEIFZH
BONTE BRI

The particulars of the Group’s interests in associates as at 31 December
2018 and 31 December 2017 are as follows:

Place of Particulars Interest
#tft%  incorporation Principal ~ fHZCH of issued fi] B held

A Name BEWE and operation FEEH activities TR shares held AR indirectly
HELTRE Professional His Hong Kong  fREgftHE Insurance  # [7liZ  Unlisted ordinary 27% 21%
fRIARAR  Liability agency il shares

Underwriting

Services Limited
&k Nkl Hong Kong Life & HongKong  AFREEER Life LTz Unlisted ordinary 16.67% (2017: 16.67% (2017:

HR/ARF"  Insurance Limited

HBHELH Merchants Union  F1ZEAR  People’s

HIR/AF*  Consumer Finance i Republic
Company Limited** of China

\

KER/na) NEA/ na)

insurance SR shares
business
HELSMMRE  Consumer  FLTiZ  Unlisted ordinary 25.85% (2017: 25.85% (2017:

Lk shares K /na) AR/ na)

finance
service

o MATEENA BB AT

" ORZO—EFE=EHZA AREESE=
75 R SL B A B B R A ) A R
AT o B > R SR BA R
Onw) 2 Mg [ (6] 2 o R A AR | AR
RS IR EEE] -

MRoOo—/NE+HA—H > ZHEXHEH
Kb - REFMBEFEEBASREAR
N E BT 2. 16.67% » Hik ik AE
TR B B 2 HE 22 A S8 A TSR
B | W E A E L [ A FIRERR | o

RZOo—/E+ZH > REHNFENFE
P B A5 R =) 3 s 575,000,000 0C > 7%
T T NR IR R A s N R R A PR
TR L s 0

RO~ NEFT T HEER > AEH
2 B HE 25 H134.97% 38 2> %£25.85% o
S p [ (A 8 BB E 25 E O B A
[N FIRE RS | o B0 SR 2 e A1
T T A (] 428 1) B 8 22 1 s A o

DA_E B8 1 )R A A I G SR S B o

Directly held by the Bank

On 20 March 2017, the Group agreed with an independent third party
to dispose of its held shares of Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited.
Accordingly, interests in Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited was reclassified
from “Interests in jointly controlled entities” to “Assets classified as held
for sale”.

On 1 October 2018, the sale was terminated. The Group continues to hold
16.67% of the issued share capital of Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited
and the interests in Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited was no longer
classified as “Assets classified as held for sale” and reclassified as “Interests
in associates”.

In December 2018, there was a capital injection of HK$75,000,000 by the
Group which was in proportion to the respective existing shareholding in
Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited.

There was a capital injection in December 2018 which caused the Group’s
ownership interest decreased from 34.97% to 25.85% and was reclassified
from “Interests in jointly controlled entities” to “Interests in associates”.
The profit prior to reclassification was included in “Share of net profit of
jointly controlled entities”.

The above associates are strategic partners for the Group.
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24 B A vlhEsE (4)

BIASEEA ERYBNBE SR 2
ERE T

AT 19 B4 85 R 1 I R ol A 5 ko
HE L) A A B 2 ] B i R P 81
A o

SR 2 S A R 7

24 Interests in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

associate is set out below:

The summarised financial information below represents amounts shown
in the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance with

HKFRSs.

Merchants Union Consumer Finance Company Limited:

—O0O—N\
2018
i
HK$°000
Wk 2 ) ) AR Gross amounts of associate
HE Assets 85,451,273
=i Liabilities 76,134,080
R4t Equity 9,317,193
gy Gross income 12,063,806
i ] Net profit 1,426,787
A ] A i AR Total comprehensive income 1,426,787
B A A I 0 8 2 ] R Reconciled to the Group’s interest in associate
Bt O\ U AR Gross amounts of net assets of associate 9,317,193
A [ N FT A 2 B R Group’s share of net assets of associate 2,408,190
AR I AS B K B &R Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:
—O0O—N — 00—
2018 2017
T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share
A A A % 55 W 8 2 i A of associates
VR A RS E (BR) A (Loss)/profit from continuing operations (4,084) 1,342
Hiham () ks Other comprehensive (expense)/income (4,632) 102
A0 () s BEE Total comprehensive (expense)/income (8,716) 1,444
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25 "EWE 25 Investment properties
—O—N\ —0—t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 3,225,920 3,191,670
Net reclassification between premises and
5 B EY) S E investment properties (4,540) (7,497)
H AL PE B A Fair value gains on revaluation 44,770 41,747
Rt —HA=+—H At 31 December
(KRB LA S HR) (professional valuation) 3,266,150 3,225,920
—O—N\ —O0—1
2018 2017
T BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
MR Z A E - Leasehold properties in Hong Kong:
— RMHA (4R L) — Long-term leases (over 50 years) 454,120 449,040
— Medium-term leases (between
— A (2 A 4F) 10 to 50 years) 2,812,030 2,776,880

3,266,150 3,225,920
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25 BeEWE (H)

rEREWER_—O—NE+ A=+
— HZAh(E > IBCEAGE D7 50 F &
WA BEAAL R o 2 UCE il £E i 2 52 31
BN Fl B EAE W E AAT A R m T
HoR B B A i AR R R
b {EL W) 6 1A P 7E 3t B % SR A 20 30 £ (L

77 L
KBy o

TREIIALEHRE S BOREY
SEN VAR - Sl % 7 S5 o B 2R
1398 R AT HEEE R - AFH
{6 DA B BT B9 450 A Sl B 4 ) 0
J& 8] o AT HBLEE BB B S T 355 Al
T SL A VRIS 5 A ATBUE I A B
R T A SR BTG W T - fE WA
BABEELE T FOIAPEERER

o HIE-2%F - THRIERTS
BAGRI TSGR ORAEETREE) -

o GH2E — RRAT BN HE (R
) S (b HAE PR HA
B 2 A ERK -

o 30 — MR EEH A BIEE T

25 Investment properties (Continued)

All investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2018 by
capitalising the net rental income using the Investment Method of
Valuation. The valuations were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, A.G. Wilkinson & Associates (Surveyors) Limited, who have
among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category of property being valued.

The table below presents the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties measured on a recurring basis, categorised into the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is based on whether the inputs used in the
valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs
reflect market data obtained from independent sources; unobservable
inputs reflect the Group’s market assumptions. These two types of inputs
have created the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level 1 — Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either
directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

* Level 3 — Valuation techniques using significant unobservable

HI BN B 2 AL ER A - inputs.

B=)E

Level 3
—O—N\ —o—+t
2018 2017
BT T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

BN TEER & Recurring fair value measurement:

PR 2 A Y 3E Leasehold properties in Hong Kong 3,266,150 3,225,920
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25 BeEWE (H)

BE_O0—/N\EFE+__HA=+—HEZ=O
—tF+ A=+ —HIEZHBFE
7 41 3 ~F-E 6 T A5 5 — g B AR — )i ]
RS > NI B SR = R o A
5 T N T 155 (R A T ) RS 4 A ) i
HHIR T LAERR -

AR 246 51 7 47 R g DL R 0 48
M EERRFEIENREY (&
RAATBE N BABIRER

25 Investment properties (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. The Group recognises transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

The table below sets out information about significant unobservable
inputs used at year end in measuring investment properties categorised
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

& T AL
Carrying value
—O—N —O0—t
2018 2017
¥ T T
M35 Valuation techniques HK$°000 HK$°000
Fe&AhE ik Investment method 3,266,150 3,225,920
HRABER i AABRE B A BRE
BB Range O PR B A SR
i 2] Significant ~O0—N ~0—t Fair value measurement
Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs 2018 2017 sensitivity to unobservable inputs
[IE i€k NE INIs/s
I A TE R T B
RA G E % [IE €k Significant increase in market yield
Investment method Market yield 2.75% — 8.7% 2.75% = 8.7% would result in a lower fair value
HFIR
EH16E (SR IIN
W 9087 B s TE
HKS$16 to #1336 T [iEii KA E NIy
HK$908 HKS$15 to HE5IBAF-EER T
(L7l per square HKS$1,336 Significant increase in market rent
Market rent feet per square feet would result in a higher fair value

FERE WAt HEE AR - AR
EMER—_O—NE+_A=+—H
M_Oo—tEF+_HA=+—HH#H
BAGE LR R -

Note: Due to the limited number of comparable transactions, all investment
properties are measured using investment method as at 31 December 2018
and 31 December 2017.
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25 BeEWE (H)

AREMEEHELAHEREDE -
HEFYEEARNIUE - HE 0 —
MNEFZHA=+—HIH4EFE > W EAaTE
EHHRNZEAEHE (0 — L4 i#
#21,0007C) ©

Bt A=+ —H o AARGE 2 B
B2 R AR WA B S IHAR R AR

25 Investment properties (Continued)

The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The
leases typically run for an initial period of up to 4 years. There were no
contingent rentals included in leases for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$21,000).

At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

—O0—N\ =IoE

2018 2017
T kil
HKS$’000 HK$°000

+ R g Land and buildings
— —4EPR — Within one year 117,867 102,435
— —HFUREHFRN — After one year but within five years 107,789 40,112
225,656 142,547
26 FlE L HuhE 25 26 Interests in leasehold land

A AR 2 AL R A TEA L b G
8 HHUREFE TR

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid land lease
premium and their net book values are analysed as follows:

ZO0—AN —o—t

2018 2017
T T oo
HK$’000 HK$°000

H“—H—H At 1 January 167,366 180,569
SRS HIE B

(FERE32(b)) Classified as assets held for sale (Note 32(b)) (1,912) =
HE Disposals - (9,099)
&+ AT e (GERELD) Depreciation of leasehold land (Note 11) (4,027) (4,104)
wTr—_H=+—H At 31 December 161,427 167,366
TEFBRA - In Hong Kong held on:

— RBHA (H T4 L) — Long-term leases (over 50 years) 65,588 65,965

— A (2 04 — Medium-term leases (between 10 to 50 years) 95,839 99,216

— A (DA 4E) — Short-term leases (below 10 years) - 2,185

161,427 167,366
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27 H A3 Kk i 27 Other properties and equipment
A0 % % A
Furniture
3 and Tt
Premises equipment Total

T T i
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000

A Cost
H—Oo—/N\¥—H—H At 1 January 2018 896,338 1,786,869 2,683,207
[FEE 2% ) % Exchange adjustments 80 3,076) (2,996)
HE Additions - 70,994 70,994
SEEIEL EEE Classified as assets held for sale

(FERE32(b)) (Note 32(b)) (339) - (339)
& Disposals (585) (5,627) (6,212)

Net reclassification between

5 B A W) SE T A S premises and investment properties 4,540 - 4,540

Revaluation surplus on premises
transferred to investment

B EEAL R R A R EY % properties 7,194 - 7,194
Less: elimination of accumulated

W BREHTE RS A depreciation on revaluation (765) - (765)
ﬁﬁ:O~/\fﬁ+:HE+~HAt 31 December 2018 906,463 1,849,160 2,755,623
2RI Accumulated depreciation
W=0—/\¥E—H—H At 1 January 2018 228,217 1,084,516 1,312,733
[P 2% 8 Exchange adjustments 23 (2,148) (2,125)
AEFEITE GERELLD Charge for the year (Note 11) 16,576 166,670 183,246
SERIEL EEE Classified as assets held for sale

(FERE32(b)) (Note 32(b)) (271) - 71)
B [m] ¢ Written back on disposal (198) (5,424) (5,622)
A AR MR Elimination on revaluation (765) - (765)
RO NFT_HA=1—H At31December2018 243,582 1,243,614 1,487,196
R T ¥ Net book value

MO —/NF+_H=4+—H At31 December 2018 662,881 605,546 1,268,427
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27 HAbW3E Kk it (%)

27 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

ELNE i

Furniture
FEE and At
Premises equipment Total

ki wT T T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

A Cost

W=O0—+t4FE—H—H At 1 January 2017 891,709 1,659,372 2,551,081

[ifE 5% 5 Exchange adjustments 256 4,861 5,117

WE Additions - 152,381 152,381

e Disposals (3,124) (29,745) (32,869)

Net reclassification between
[ S B ) 2 premises and investment properties 7,497 = 1,497
MR_O0—Lt4FE+="H=1+—H At31 December 2017 896,338 1,786,869 2,683,207

EY Cix Accumulated depreciation

MR_O0—+tHFE—H—H At 1 January 2017 213,423 955,499 1,168,922

[FEE 2% ) % Exchange adjustments 69 3,005 3,074

AEFEITE GERELLD Charge for the year (Note 11) 16,522 154,091 170,613

B[] ¢ Written back on disposal (1,797) (28,079) (29,876)
R_o—+tE+"HA=+—H At31 December 2017 228,217 1,084,516 1,312,733

W15
RO~ L +—A=t—H

Net book value

At 31 December 2017 668,121 702,353 1,370,474
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27 HoAt 3 Kt (%) 27 Other properties and equipment (Continued)

B 2 MR T E A4 The net book value of premises comprises:
—O—N\ —Z0—t
2018 2017
BT BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
PR FHs Z AW 2E Leasehold properties in Hong Kong:
— R (4R E) — Long-term leases (over 50 years) 351,057 356,142
— Medium-term leases
— A (T FE A H4F) (between 10 to 50 years) 283,932 282,620
— FHA (HFEIF) — Short-term leases (under 10 years) - 78
634,989 638,840
PLR A Z LI ZE Leasehold properties outside Hong Kong:
— KA — Freehold 23,476 24,299
— Medium-term leases
— A (2 A4 (between 10 to 50 years) 4,416 4,982
27,892 29,281
662,881 668,121
28 B P fFaK 28 Deposits from customers
—O—N —o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000
TG HATE R A AR R Demand deposits and current accounts 22,911,912 17,594,473
it 78 A7 3K Savings deposits 63,766,873 67,367,747
T HA A7 K B 3 AT 3K Time, call and notice deposits 134,650,617 126,001,426
221,329,402 210,963,646
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29 EATH 29 Capital instruments
—O0O—N —0o—t
2018 2017
wHT T T
HK$°000 HKS$’000
BT 2 AR AEAE I Subordinated debts issued
£ 76200,000,000 7C 1% 4 £8 ml A US$200,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
BRI E BRI (EfRa) measured at amortised cost (Note a) - 1,554,865
2£1.400,000,000 704% 4 85 Bl A US$400,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes,
SR B BB (1) measured at amortised cost (Note b) 3,128,160 3,120,437
3,128,160 4,675,302
HSMEE TH Additional equity instruments
FI6130,000,000 T AR IE BAE US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
BRIEERES GEREC) subordinated capital securities (Note c) 1,008,020 1,008,020
F71130,000,000 K AR JE 245 US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative
BIEEARES () subordinated capital securities (Note d) 1,007,370 1,007,370
A K #1,000,000,000 7T 7K 48 7 RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative
FERBRMEEARTS (GikEe) subordinated capital securities (Note e) 1,236,600 1,236,600
% 76170,000,000 ¢ 7K 48 7! US$170,000,000 undated non-cumulative
BB EARES (GRS subordinated capital securities (Note f) 1,321,240 1,321,240
4,573,230 4,573,230

FEEE ¢ (a) B 3% J0200,000,00000 fE B & E

R O — 4HFE+—H/NHH
A7 o M B 5 T AN B [ 2 [ &
Ao WERIEMN O 4F +—
H-EHZ W - MR A
O—/\4TH -t HEZ % 4EH
FIE A H o BZZHE A A B 54
F24.79% (O ——4E+—H
NEHEZO—LHFE+—HLEH :
3.50%) st B > $ A E AT o B
=EER O~ N4ETAHLEH
JiE ] o

It 2 98400,000,0007C & B 1% &
H=ER_O—LtFEIF—H=+=
H 8847 > b L E 4 A 4E 18 22 [
TEA o LM — O L4
B Ry Bt e = 2 1 B 20
BHAE O _&#FEt+—H -+
He B3/ H EREEEENZ
T AR > BB G I B AR R R
3.75%%T B 5 AR A o H
15 5 i ZE 4 o 70 SR A R E R H I
] > FE 4% 0 A S & 5T A% H
52 [ AT A B A 2 R 175 2
T oo BLELHE 2 AN 4 i S A S A T
A 1 AR SRS AR RS o

Note:

(a) These represent US$200,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes

qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group issued on 6
November 2012. The notes will mature on 7 November 2022 with
an optional redemption date falling on 7 May 2018 or any interest
payment date thereafter. Interest at 4.79% (from 6 November 2012 to
7 November 2017: 3.50%) per annum is payable on a semi-annually
basis. The notes were redeemed on 7 May 2018.

(b) These represent US$400,000,000 subordinated fixed rate notes

qualifying as supplementary capital of the Group issued on 22
November 2017. The notes will mature on 22 November 2027 with
an optional redemption date falling on 22 November 2022. Interest
at 3.75% per annum is payable on a semi-annually basis for the
first 5 years from the date of issue to the optional redemption date.
Thereafter, if the notes are not redeemed, the interest rate will reset
and the notes will bear interest at 5 year US Treasury Rate on that
date plus 175 basis points. The principal of the notes will be written
down if a non-viability event occurs.
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20 BARTH (4)

(c) U35 130,000,0007T 7Kk 48 78 I 24
BB E A B IR E B AL
RSN —REAR o HRIHFR O
—WENA=Z+H BT FARITZ
PR A > E AR B AT ] R H 2 —
O—NFETH—H - HEITHE
ER(EEA NN A=y =i S -3
F AR R R 56.00% o HAk > #E
WRE R AT (8 1] WS HE > B S AR 4%
i IRF 9 [P A U £k 2 5 2R
4.13%FEH HEw]

(d) 135 1130,000,0007T 7K 48 7 I 24

Tl 1% 08 Y A 8 I ol A8 A AR SR

RSN —REAR o WREIHFRZ O

—P4E+ = H Z+ L H BT T A

AT 2 A W) - R £ i [E] B H

B_O—NET_A=+TH-H

BEAT H 2 0 S T H 2

o MBS AE R R 5.80% o H

1% o 5 I R R AT A ) A - B3R

N 5 A 2 IR 5 ) 14 1 [ e A

B RIN4.13%EH T o

=

A K #1,000,000,0007C 7K %5
FEERBEEERBREGERERA
EH 2 BHIN—REA o BLEE R
ZO—NHEZHA=HBIT AT
ZHERE S ] > R AR AT B A
ZOZOFHMH o IR
R F5.50% o

(€

~

(f) I 3EI8170,000,0007C 7K 45 % JE 2
R MEEAR B SERE bALEE
ZHRON— B - ILRE SR Z O
—tEHEMA = +EHET 5
BEEBEAA O~ 4MH
AN K T Sy R T
HZHAE WEBHFNEER
£55.20% o H AR > 2 JE R AR ATl
B B AR SR A 5 4 e IRy 95 [
A ) ] R 2 S N 3. 13 % B T
T o

FHAMHE £ T L 2 7S <5 1 i 2B 50 v A
REEF AP I ARG o RE T REL
£ MATTAMEATRERHEELRX
ff - EBUHZ REAE RN -

29 Capital instruments (Continued)

(¢) This represents US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative subordinated
capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1 capital of the Group.
The securities were issued to the Bank’s holding company on 30
September 2014 with the first call date falling on 1 October 2019.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 6.00% per annum for the
first 5 years from the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution
rate will be reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing 5 year
U.S. Treasury Rate plus 4.13% per annum if the capital securities are
not called.

(d) This represents US$130,000,000 undated non-cumulative subordinated
capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1 capital of the Group.
The securities were issued to the Bank’s holding company on 29
December 2014 with the first call date falling on 30 December 2019.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 5.80% per annum for the
first 5 years from the date of issue to the first call date. Distribution
rate will be reset thereafter every 5 years at the then prevailing 5 year
U.S. Treasury Rate plus 4.13% per annum if the capital securities are
not called.

(e) This represents RMB1,000,000,000 undated non-cumulative subordinated
capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1 capital of the Group.
The securities were issued to the Bank’s holding company on 3
February 2015 with the first call date falling on 4 February 2020.
Distribution rate for the securities is set at 5.50% per annum.

(f) This represents US$170,000,000 undated non-cumulative subordinated
capital securities qualifying as additional Tier 1 capital of the Group.
The securities were issued on 27 April 2017 with the first call date
falling on 28 April 2022. Distribution rate for the securities is set
at 5.20% per annum for the first 5 years from the date of issue to
the first call date. Distribution rate will be reset thereafter every 5
years at the then prevailing 5 year U.S. Treasury Rate plus 3.13% per
annum if the capital securities are not called.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written down
if a non-viability event occurs. Distribution is payable semi-annually,
and may be cancelled at the sole discretion of the Bank. Cancelled
distribution is not cumulative.
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30 EHEBLIH 30 Deferred taxation

O GE A MHIR L R N HERR 2 MRAEBLTH  The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
e (AR ZHBER » X NZ %  consolidated statement of financial position and the movements during
BuE the year are as follows:

ik

il B WA

BEME  FARE  Impairment

Accelerated  Retirement  allowances
tax benefit onloansand  HiJFAEHE ot Hit
depreciation  obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
EWTx  #%Tx  #WTx  #WTx  #WTx  #¥Tx
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000

RZO—A%F—H—H > At January 2018, as previously

WEAEFI R reported (97,599) (21,594) 70,948 - 18,260 (29,985)
MR L Effect of initial application of

I SEo5E 2 f 2 HKFRS 9 - - 28,087 - (449) 27,638
BZ0o—AFE—H—H >

B At 1 January 2018, as restated (97,599) (21,594) 99,035 - 17,811 (2,347)

Credited/(charged) to income

Tl Fatik / (Juk) statement 9,982 1,526 (21,391) 13,322 ?3) 3,436
TEEMAIEREE  Credited to other comprehensive

(FERE34) income (Note 34) - 14,360 - - 33,531 47,891
RZ0—/\F

+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2018 (87,617) (5,708) 77,644 13322 51,339 48,980

¢

il RIE HEEE

BUESTE  WAHEE  Impairment

Accelerated ~ Retirement  allowances
tax benefit on loans and o) Htth Gt
depreciation obligation advances Tax loss Others Total
whTT  #WTx  wWTr EWTr BT BT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

RZO0—t%—H—H At January 2017 (94,521) (9,526) 87,116 = 27,648 10,717
FlgE (k) ,/ (Charged)/credited to income

[l statement (3,078) 1,722 (16,168) = (89) (17,612)
TEHM2 WU Charged to other comprehensive

(3134) income (Note 34) - 13,7%) - - (9300) (23,090
RZ0—t%

+oAZ+—H At 31 December 2017 (97,599)  (21,59) 70,948 - 18,260 (29,985)
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30 MEREBLIA (%)

30 Deferred taxation (Continued)

—O—N\ —o—+t
2018 2017
BT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$°000
NGRS BB IR LR N TR 2 Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
% FE 5 TE 7 VAR consolidated statement of financial position 50,917 37,841
i BABS RO 3R B RR 2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
R SE AL TH B A AR consolidated statement of financial position (1,937) (67,826)
48,980 (29,985)

0% SIE 30 T 7 R R A R A 5 R i T 9
3480 R A AR Vi ) A B 1 T A 2
VG 1R T LR - iR O — 4%+
= H s AR SR R 2 B T

B (ZOo—L4 : M) > W45E LK K  taxable profits.

ARERRBLICA -
31 HAbMRIA K

31 Other accounts and accruals

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to the
extent that realisation of the deferred tax benefit through future profits
is probable. At 31 December 2018, the Group had no unrecognised tax
losses (2017: HKS$Nil) to be carried forward to set off against future

—“O—N —O0—t

2018 2017

BT BT

HKS$°000 HK$°000

JEASHFILE Interest payable 1,377,714 1,557,130

IrE-§=Li Insurance liabilities 2,088,490 2,051,411

JREAST B H A B T Accounts and other payable 2,495,534 2,927,631
BHR S M RIE R G4 Impairment allowances on loan commitments

Rk and financial guarantee contracts 34,950 =

5,996,688 6,536,172
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31 HAbRIE K HH R (4)

31 Other accounts and accruals (Continued)

REGABEHHNT - Insurance liabilities are analysed as follows:
—O—N\ —0==
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
A Gross
CE2EMZRKER Claims reported and loss adjustment
RS expenses 733,221 706,023
EEEH R B RIE Claims incurred but not reported 780,182 821,797
R 1 R 2 Unearned premiums 305,892 273,191
R EI 1 B A Provision for unexpired risk 69,960 36,785
HoAt Others 199,235 213,615
PR B B A A RE Total insurance liabilities, gross 2,088,490 2,051,411
R LT IN Recoverable from reinsurers
R REXR Claims reported and loss adjustment
RS A % expenses 138,198 107,462
CEAERERZ RE Claims incurred but not reported 89,116 101,055
R HA TR Unearned premiums 43,461 37,913
AR AL B & 48%H  Total reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
(FERE21(a)) (Note 21(a)) 270,775 246,430
T Net
EE2MmRE X Claims reported and loss adjustment
R S o expenses 595,023 598,561
B R R R RIE Claims incurred but not reported 691,066 720,742
R 313 5 Unearned premiums 262,431 235,278
IR B A J gz A Provision for unexpired risk 69,960 36,785
HoAts Others 199,235 213,615
PR b A B Total insurance liabilities, net 1,817,715 1,804,981

CE2EH RIEAH - ABEL LB AE
MEEMNREMERER BEHBRETHE
17 T 8 R B RS i [ 2 R o A
O—NE+—"H=+—HEK_-O0—t4
T A=+ —HZ ik iR 2 SR
SRR 5 KSR ST B R o

The gross claims reported, the loss adjustment expenses liabilities and
the liability for claims incurred but not reported are net of expected
recoveries from salvage and subrogation. The amounts for salvage
and subrogation at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 are not
separately disclosed as they are not material.
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32 HIMEH B &

(a)

wm_o—tHE=H_+H> &K
L E B — B = R L —
B DB A RE A
1,183,333,0007C (A 41 Bk AH B < 22
S &R hEHREBANFSREA
RN R F A 1916.67%2 B 347 %
By o AL E BOM 48 iR AR B 10%
M RT 4 0 4 RH A% %6118,333,000
j‘Eo

A B 22 5 28 e T TR B S e A 22
JEAR 7 o SE B > AR AT A B B
WM BT i LV o DL > A
FRBA RN 7 Z R 0 5 [ 51
EHEERE ] -

WZo—t&E+H=+—H B
HIAE B R Y s 5 TE B AR A AR B
) B 5t 4 %k ¥543,633,0000C B £
S At 2 T i i B i TR RRERR

FE A FR B B 32 A5 AR R 4% R H
R Oo— NFIJLH=+H)
WA EE AR B3 5 B AR KT
WETEE PR - AEFEESH
T NF R A R\ 2317 0
216.67% > HIN A& s NF IR A R
A ZRERS AN TSR T &
BERE o

32 Assets classified as held for sale

(a) On 20 March 2017, the Group entered into a share sale agreement

with an independent third party to dispose of 16.67% of the
issued share capital of Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited for a
cash consideration of approximately HK$1,183,333,000 before
transaction related expenses. The Group has received a deposit of
amount equal to approximately HK$118,333,000 being 10% of the
consideration.

Completion of the transaction is subject to certain customary
closing conditions including obtaining the necessary approvals from
the relevant authorities. Accordingly, interests in Hong Kong Life
Insurance Limited was classified as “Assets classified as held for
sale”.

At 31 December 2017, cumulative amount of HK$43,633,000
relating to the disposal group classified as held for sale has been
recognised in other comprehensive income and included in equity.

On the basis that the closing conditions were not fulfilled to the
Group’s satisfaction by the long stop date, being 30 September
2018, the transaction was terminated and the deposit received has
been forfeited. The Group continues to hold 16.67% of the issued
share capital of Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited and the interests
in Hong Kong Life Insurance Limited was no longer classified as
“Assets classified as held for sale”.
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32 SifE B & A (41

by o~ NFE+_H+—H &4
9] 5 — M 5L 2F = &R ET T — i iEsR
HEAAN  BEAREH—HEE -
A 2 UM S A RAB 10% 9 ET 4 e

A B 22 5 8 e T USSR A AR
T e AR O —LFE—H
—/\B LT > B ESA TA
BR N B S8 o L > AREEHE

32 Assets classified as held for sale (Continued)

(b) On 11 December 2018, the Group signed a formal agreement
for sale and purchase with an independent third party to dispose
a premises and received the deposit money equal to 10% of the
consideration.

Completion of the transaction is subject to certain conditions
including the residue of the purchase money to be fully paid by the
purchaser on or before 28 January 2019. Accordingly, the Group’s
interest in this premises was classified as assets held for sale as

WEEMEAIEHEEEMNT ¢ follows:
—O—N\
2018
BT
HK$’000
THE T RERS (5ERE26) Interests in leasehold land (Note 26) 1,912

F5 e A (5ERE27)

Premises at cost (Note 27) 339

o BRI (GERR27) Less: Accumulated depreciation (Note 27) 271)
HIFE B Assets classified as held for sale 1,980
EHR G ER O —JLE—H 1 /\H  The above transaction was completed on 28 January 2019.
SEIK
33 A 33 Share capital
—O—N\ —0—1k
2018 2017
i 1 T Jic BT T
No. of shares HKS$’000 No. of shares HK$°000
T REHME A Issued and fully paid:
fgilila Ordinary shares 232,190,115 1,160,951 232,190,115 1,160,951

T B R AN A RECIBUR R E IR 2 B
B TA#ERAGZzg#R USR5
W J7 B o P il e B A AT 2 R R

B S A [ S s o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Bank’s residual net assets.
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34 fili s 34 Reserves
P The Group
Hff
S A
it/ A
B A
Financial
gl asset
R revaluation
Bank reserve/
B G premises  Investment  JEMUfifF  IREHEA
Capital revaluation revaluation Other Retained it
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
ERTr wkTr  #WTx BTz #%Tx  #%Tx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO0—NFE—H—H> At 1 January 2018, as previously
LI ITN reported 57,500 562,916 (27,242) 941,236 30,437,770 31,972,180
MRS A &V BB 56 I Effect of initial application of
oYY B HKFRS 9 - - 23,678 - (43544) (119,866
RZO0—NF—H—H>
BEF At 1 January 2018, as restated 57,500 562,916 (3,564) 941,236 30,294,226 31,852,314
PIAFE(EEA M2 Financial assets at fair value through
g2 &g E other comprehensive income
— N EEN S — Changes in fair value - - (645,157) - - (645,157)
— Transfer to income
— T RO i 45 2% statement on disposal - - (47,886) - - (47,886)
— Transfer to income statement
— JN P R A i 25 on impairment - - 606,210 - - 606,210
PIVAFEERARMAR  Equity securities at fair value through
Wi di 2 i e RE 25 other comprehensive income
— AVEERE — Changes in fair value - - (198,288) - - (198,288)
— Transfer to retained earnings
— 7 i 5 R AR B i A on disposal - - 5,114 - (5,114) -
FEAR T R G Share of associates’ reserves - 8,505 (13,137) - - (4,632)
Share of jointly controlled entities’
JEE 5 [ o o reserves - 3,803 (9,315) 47,541 (47,541 (5,512)
Pz iAoyl Profit for the year - - - - 3219302 3,219,302
T Exchange difference - - - (216,337) - (216,337)
Surplus on revaluation of
BEhEEZBEG bank premises - 7,194 - - - 7,194
Actuarial losses on defined benefit
RE A 2 K H R scheme - - - - (87,029) (87,029)
Effect of deferred taxation on other
At A T e R comprehensive income items
B B2 (GE1230) (Note 30) - - 33,531 - 14,360 47,891
Distribution for additional equity
BAMER T HAM i instruments - - - - (257,511)  (257,511)
MZO—/\4
+-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 57,500 582,418 (272,492) 772,440 33,130,693 34,270,559
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34 flifl (4)

34 Reserves (Continued)

ENE) The Bank
Bl
SHEE
Fifli / Edl
HE
Financial
EX[) asset
FERMME  revaluation
Bank reserve/
premises  Investment Hofto ki fR B A
revaluation revaluation Other Retained wit
reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
T LR T T T
HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
REO— AR~
ARSI At 1 January 2018, as previously reported 388,970 (56,334) 925,806 28,942,879 30,201,321
AUCER A R o
BB Effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 - 26,839 - (147,075) (120,236)
RZO—N\E—R—H >
BT At 1 January 2018, as restated 388,970 (29,495) 925,806 28,795,804 30,081,085
DAFE AR AR Financial assets at fair value through other
2l &Y E comprehensive income
— MBS — Changes in fair value - (645,157) - - (645,157)
— Transfer to income statement
— I ERE A % on disposal - (47,886) - - (47,886)
— Transfer to income statement
— RO A g R on impairment - 606,210 - - 606,210
ATEHEA LM Equity securities at fair value through
2T 2 MRS other comprehensive income
- NPEERE — Changes in fair value - (203,508) - - (203,508)
— Transfer to retained earnings
— A E AR A on disposal - 4,052 - (4,052) -
A Profit for the year - - - 2,778,153 2,778,153
M) Exchange difference - - (215,394) - (215,394)
BEREZENR Surplus on revaluation of bank premises 7,194 - - - 7,194
RERRE B ER Actuarial losses on defined benefit scheme - - - (87,029) (87,029)
Jofh A s H R A Effect of deferred taxation on other
B comprehensive income items - 34,392 - 14,360 48,752
Distribution for additional equity
BAMER TEAE instruments - - - (257,511) (257,511)
RZ0— )\
+-H=+—H At 31 December 2018 396,164 (281,392) 710,412 31,239,125 32,064,909
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34 flifl (4)

34 Reserves (Continued)

P The Group
=
7 7 ft A EH]
Bank BB R
B premises  Investment Hopth it R Bt
Capital  revaluation  revaluation Other Retained At
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
R W BWTr %t #WTx BETx
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
RZO—tHF—H—H At 1 January 2017 57,500 556,146 71,348 622,047 26,823,849 28,131,090
Al it 2 5 Available-for-sale securities
— NFEE — Changes in fair value - - 206,393 - - 206,393
— Transfer to income statement on
— A 5 % disposal = - (300,144) - - (300,144)
JEA 58 2~ 7 bt Share of associate’s reserves - - 102 = = 102
Share of jointly controlled entities’
A [ 2 o reserves = 6,770 4359 136 (125) 11,140
T B i Profit for the year = = = - 3,858,019 3,858,019
[ 2R 5 ) Exchange difference = = = 318,853 = 318,853
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
FOERFIHE scheme = = = = 83,576 83,576
Effect of deferred taxation on
A A T e T other comprehensive income items
REHIHZLE (GERE30)  (Note 30) = = (9,300) = (13,790) (23,090)
Distribution for additional equity
HAMER T RN instruments = = = = (313,759)  (313,759)
RZO0—+L%F
TZHA=+—H At 31 December 2017 57,500 562,916 (27,242) 941,236 30,437,770 31,972,180
Af7 The Bank
Eff
5 7 fif EX
Bank RA& R
premises Investment oAt it % e 1
revaluation revaluation Other Retained At
reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
T T T T R
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000
RZOo—t#—H—H At 1 January 2017 388,970 50,982 608,514 25,664,645 26,713,111
At 7 B Available-for-sale securities
— ATEERE — Changes in fair value = 160,289 = = 160,289
— Transfer to income statement
— A A % on disposal = (258,703) - = (258,703)
SEF A Profit for the year - - - 3,522,207 3,522,207
2R £ Exchange difference = = 317,292 = 317,292
SR RS 2 A Actuarial gains on defined benefit scheme = = - 83,576 83,576
HoAfth A i 43 H EHEAE R Bffect of deferred taxation on other
B comprehensive income items - (8,902) - (13,790) (22,692)
Distribution for additional equity
HOMER THA A instruments = - - (313,759) (313,759)
RZO—LHFE+ZA=+—H At31 December 2017 388,970 (56,334) 925,806 28,942,879 30,201,321
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34 fififth (4)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

AL 2 B A A A T W
1% LR B Vi ) A AL 0 B AT R
TAATIE AL o

A 55 f 4 5 AR RO SRR 1.13
4 & &R T SGE @

T A A A T DA TE (E
A Ho At 2 T 0 36 2 4 & A A
BB E AT 2 AT EESE 2 B
Z AR AR R SE L6 & 1.7 &
FHBURHERR o

AL BB GEH T RE RAE
E a2 A T EE S 2 Bt
AR BE RN O —LEER
FEREL.6 M. TR B T EURERD -

A I 6 A it 5 2 435 5 2 faf 45
ME S A~ IR Gl Dok o Wl A
?g%ﬁ@%ﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁ&@

A (ol A5 2 1 4 R AR PR i ) e £
ZEH o

MEE S b 44 2 (R 47 B0 8 A0 0 AT % VY VR
O B B R A A S B o

B IR folt R 42 B ol IR B S B R )R
BRI 2 45 78 48 R O B SE 5 b 85 <2 5
5| LA AT 58 39 f 2 40 L IR 22 A J,
B i . 2 fiti s o

5 58 B AR T A5 10 B TE S DA AR AT A o
#E N R I B R a7 2 ] '
BN ) 2 £8 2R 1A A A9 10%51
0> HERMMEZ B EEAE R
T B AR B950% o £ i fib i 46 B
SR A% A R o A 2R R R i
b BT WA -

AEHERN_O0—NE T H
+ — B 2 5" %A b
1,567,000,0007C (— O — £ 4
#51,423,049,000T) 1 5 3
5o WEEMM ) BB EEEH
iz 1B & s CERAT 2B 01 2 R 3k A4
B mEEMEz 2 E R
L | N O < W Sl el
B o

EHEWRERARMRE (O0—t
i E) o

34 Reserves (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(®

The Group’s capital reserve was set up in relation to the
capitalisation by certain subsidiaries of their retained earnings for
the issue of new shares to the Bank.

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in Note 1.13.

Financial asset revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income until the financial assets are
derecognised or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 1.6 and 1.7.

Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities until the securities
are derecognised or impaired and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Notes 1.6 and 1.7 of 2017 Annual
Report.

The Group’s other reserves comprise general reserve, exchange
reserve, contingency reserve and statutory surplus reserve. The
Bank’s other reserves comprise general reserve and exchange
reserve.

General reserve comprises previous years’ transfers from retained
earnings.

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial statements of overseas branches
and subsidiaries.

Contingency reserve represents a reserve established for
contingency of accumulation of risks in times of severe economic
downturn in accordance with Guidance Note on Reserving for
Mortgage Guarantee Business issued by the Insurance Authority.

Statutory surplus reserve is provided at 10% of the audited
profit after tax of a jointly controlled entity of the Bank which is
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, until the reserve
balance is equal to 50% of its registered share capital. Surplus
reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses or capitalised as
paid-up capital with the approval of shareholders.

At 31 December 2018, included in retained earnings is an
amount of HK$1,567,000,000 (2017: HK$1,423,049,000) which
was earmarked as regulatory reserve. The regulatory reserve is
maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance for prudential supervision purposes. Movements in
the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in
consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The directors did not propose any final dividend (2017: Nil) after
the year end.
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35 4 #R R
(a) EEH 5

A SR ) 3 B T SEARAT S > o]
G VU o TR SRAT B A AE R 2
TEALR  174E LA NG - B - &
AR - ANFE OB S R RS - 2
R M T SESRAT SE B B BR i e sz A AT
W LREE - "By E - Mg
5o MR R BN E RSN E - &
BT ~ W ETT G REATIGE T
(7] B I 45 355 % 32 JF SR AT B il MR 2 A7 3K
B 7 S5 e 2 K o P B S g A SE S
LA P B S AT SRS o HoAh SR £
TS — BRBUR R XY 68 E - WA
P AT HEE i 73 BB 2wl B SR B R 1 At
TR A G B 2 T BORMR -

ROTIIE B ADIE R B S H At
el E MR ps < B KA BLH - D
B AR RE & B0 BT 45 E SE B 7 B
JHH -

35 Segment reporting
(a) Business segments

The Group operates predominantly in commercial banking which
comprises four business segments. Retail banking includes acceptance
of retail deposits, mortgage and personal lending, wealth management,
securities brokerage, life insurance agency and brokerage services.
Corporate and commercial banking includes acceptance of corporate
deposits, advance of commercial and industrial loans, trade financing,
hire purchase and leasing. Treasury and financial institution activities
include foreign exchange, money market, interbank market and capital
market activities as well as acceptance of deposits from and lending to
non-bank financial institutions. China and overseas operations activities
include China and overseas branches operations. Other activities mainly
comprise general insurance underwriting and investment properties
holding. The accounting policies applicable to the reportable segments
are the same as those applicable to the Group as stated in Note 1.

Unallocated items mainly comprise assets and liabilities of the central
management unit and other shared services, taxation and any items
which cannot be reasonably allocated to specific business segments.
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35 JrabEkl (4) 35 Segment reporting (Continued)
(a) ¥eEW B 5 (%) (a) Business segments (Continued)
RARCEH
Nl R B Ji Begy iz
AT WE R MEE ] B i 25 ik
Corporate  &RiKH China 2 #bt Unallocated
ZEAUT and Treasury and and Total and inter-
Retail  commercial financial overseas  reportable KA segment A%
banking banking institution  operations segments Others  elimination Group

T wWTx BT wRTx #WTx BT #RTx #WTx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000

ZO—N\& 2018
ﬁ?ﬁ WA /(32 H) Net interest income/(expense)
SN — External (1,310,527) 2,375,294 2,405,887 1,391,889 4,862,543 (97,402) - 4,765,141
- Wigﬁiﬁ — Inter-segment 3,047,102 (915,159)  (1,609,572) (545,424) (23,053) 23,053 - -

1736575 1460135 796315 846,465 4,839,490 (74,349) o 4,765,141

Hﬁﬂ%gﬁ WaEgEA / Net fees and commission
income/(expense) 505,426 185,263 94,030 105,855 890,574 24,879 (81,044) 834,409
Other operating income/

H ﬁlﬁ BEWA /(L) (expense)

— External 227,882 13,211 206,938 25,352 473,383 W18 (107,617) 588,484

— 4 ~ Inter-segment (60,062) (91,616) 172,720 118,701 139,743 172,34 (311,977) -

SHEREFEIRA Segment operating income 2409821 1,566,993 1,270,003 1,096,373 6,343,190 345482 (500,638) 6,188,034
EES T Operating expenses

— SN ~ External (788,975)  (148,137)  (136,086)  (361,073) (1,434,271)  (200,864)  (533,724)  (2,168,859)

— NEA D ~ Inter-segment (263,743) (31,090) (7,383) @4,101)  (306,317) (5,530) 311,847 -

(1L052,718)  (179.227)  (143469)  (365,174)  (1,740,588)  (206394)  (221877)  (2,168,859)

Impairment written back/

HEREBL) (losses) _(60138) 55885 (S83.690)  (144992)  (132935)  (1740) - (850405)
AEVEERA / (ER) Segment operating profit/(loss) 1,296,965 1,443,651 542,844 586,207 3,869,667 21,618 (122,515) 3,168,770
&§%¥Z/ S Fair value gains on investment

BEEY properties 44,710

Hih s %(ﬁ L] Net gain on other

railen non-operating activities 89,793
JEE 15 3t ] i Share of net profits of jointly

REEARZE controlled entities and

i Al associates 469,157
BBt i A Profit before taxation 3,772,490
YRR Capital expenditure 19,379 919 3,657 497 28,927 9,408 32,659 70,994
e Depreciation 85,689 9,714 3,222 12,847 111,472 36,234 39,567 187,273
N Segment assets 34,032,182 80,392,156 166,581,708 75,653,899 356,659,945 5,858,945 672,925 363,191,815
N5 Inter-segment transactions (51,533,918)
tﬂ}"‘“% B R Interests in jointly controlled

UNGIL B entities and associates 2,817,956

Bilffe i Assets classified as held for sale 1,980
MR Total assets 314,477,833

iR Segment liabilities 170,173,495 26,773,163 50,998,082 75,659,104 323,603,844 1,869,405 523,071 325,996,320

LB Inter-segment transactions (51,533,918)

iUt Total liabilities 274,462,402
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35 ksl (4)
(a) HEH 5 (4])

35 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

FABER
BNAR B R RA 2
FSESAT MER s o] e 25 L
Corporate & flHEHE China  A#AF Unallocated
ZERT and Treasury and and Total and inter-
Retail ~ commercial financial overseas  reportable Hit segment HEEH
banking banking institution  operations segments Others  elimination Group
BT BT Wt Wt Wt B¥Tr BWTc BT
HK$000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000
—O0—t& 2017
FRIEMA /Gt Net interest income/(expense)
— 5 — External (935,171) 1,935,236 1,630,272 991,954 3,622,291 15,875 - 3,638,166
— A — Inter-segment 2,434,634 (693,669)  (1,394,508)  (355,819) (9,362) 9,362 - -
1,499,463 1,241,567 235,764 636,135 3,612,929 25,237 - 3,638,166
TREE R4 A/ Net fees and commission
(i) income/(expense) 453,041 233,153 100,632 88,303 875,129 30,438 (97,238) 808,329
HiEERA / Other operating income/
(i) (expense)
— 5N — External 224722 37,523 902,284 (5,156) 1,159,373 332,727 (78,012) 1,414,088
— RER — Inter-segment (136,664) (68,672) 205319 134,668 134,651 173,165 (307,816) -
iili-eL/UN Segment operating income 2,040,562 1443571 1,443,999 853,950 5,782,082 561,567 (483,066) 5,860,583
BELL Operating expenses
— 5N — External (756,703) (137,309)  (105,815)  (351,763)  (1,351,590)  (147,421)  (454,383) (1,953,394)
— R4 — Inter-segment (347,634) (32,630 (11,235) (4,014) (395,513) (6,028) 401,541 -
(1,104,337) (169,939) (117,050)  (355,777)  (1,747,103)  (153,449) (52,842)  (1,953,394)
Impairment written back/
M{E[ﬁ]ﬁi‘/(fﬁ%) 7777777777 (losses) 10,637 (216,015) - 14,091 (191,287) 579 - (190,708)
EERN / (ER) Segment operating profit/(loss) 946,862 1,057,617 1,326,949 512,264 3,843,692 408,697 (535,908) 3,716,481
BEMEL AT Fair value gains on
(B (s investment properties 41,747
Hih RS Net gain on other
Z non-operating activities 97,198
JEE 1 36 ] i B I Share of net profits of jointly
BEARZ controlled entities and an
Al associate 643,642
IR i s Profit before taxation 4,499,068
AR X Capital expenditure 35,182 13,756 2,300 5,494 57,232 5,086 90,063 152,381
i Depreciation 88,443 5,524 3,071 14,420 111,458 21,271 35,982 174,717
I Segment assets 34,764,205 74763754 152,452,838 84,829,953 346,810,750 6,935,691 777,884 354,524,325
R Inter-segment transactions (58,069,737)
ST PR RS Interests in jointly controlled
UNGL 2 entities and an associate 2,163,206
Assets classified as held
SIfE & R for sale 149,021
AEE Total assets 298,766,815
S A Segment liabilities 155,841,523 36,637,817 39,049,238 85,083,257 316,611,835 2,139,879 324,667 319,076,381
NI Inter-segment transactions (58,069,737
Aaf Total liabilities 261,006,644
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35 sr ke (4)

35 Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) #2335 H 43 (b) Geographical area

EREEA
i B i P %
eyl Capital
BERA Profit Mg MAM  FEARE  expenditure
Operating before Total Total Credit during
income taxation assets liabilities commitments the year
wWTE  EWTr  BWTx wWTx  BWTx  E%Tx
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000

ZO—N\E 2018
i Hong Kong 5,231,405 3,186,284 282,876,842 249,263,376 37,643,814 66,022
HigE \ R AL People’s Republic of China 792,846 291,166 56,848,061 51,959,660 653,135 4,067
Hth Others 303,527 295,040 17,488,981 15,975,417 2,447,016 905
G LW R Inter-segment elimination (139,744) - (42,736,051) (42,736,051) - -
A A Consolidated 6,188,034 3,772,490 314,477,833 274,462,402 40,743,965 70,994

ZO0—t# 2017
i Hong Kong 5,123,587 3,986,804 264,886,149 233,374,601 57,861,866 146,887
e \ R LA People’s Republic of China 547,356 303,933 64,020,745 59,106,349 3,763,277 4,666
Hopth Others 306,594 208,331 18,441,300 17,107,073 2,375,102 828
AP AR B Inter-segment elimination (116,954) — (48,581,379) (48,581,379) = =

HABE

Consolidated

5,860,583 4,499,068 298,766,815 261,006,644 64,000,245 152,381
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36 BOA B SR i 36 Contingent liabilities and commitments

T A B sOA BB MR YE 2 A E 2B The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
Az A& &R G EEB I ESH  significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments, and the

o aggregate credit risk weighted amounts:
—O0O—N — 0=
2018 2017
i3 BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
HEZEEEBAR Direct credit substitutes 4,141,052 3,669,890
o E B A Bz 8 a8 E% Transaction-related contingencies 1,867,453 1,965,121
THEETE H A B 2 BUF &% Trade-related contingencies 506,855 585,563
7 H T 40 3K Forward forward deposits placed 243,439 1,015,671
A DA SRR A HRUUH Other commitments which are unconditionally
Z Ho A AR cancellable 20,923,448 40,094,059
JRAAE A B — AE R DL Other commitments with an original
Z HoAh AR A maturity of one year or less 1,034,685 1,689,342
JRAAEIA B —4E L | Other commitments with an original
2 FHoAth R A5 maturity of over one year 12,027,033 14,980,599
40,743,965 64,000,245
{5 5B LU B R Credit risk weighted amount 10,569,063 11,752,928

MLAFHAE S E R L E % 2 BB L The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted amounts
£50%%150% ° range from 0% to 150%.
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37 BAR A AR 37 Capital and lease commitments
(@) R TZHA=1—H > FEFHRME (a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December not provided for
WENZ EAKIEMT - in the financial statements are as follows:
ZO—N\ =0="
2018 2017
BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000
EL SR A A H R AE g Contracted but not provided for 82,431 68,458
R BEERE B A Authorised but not contracted for - =

by R tTZH=+—H  ~Sulf#ZE (b) At 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments payable

TR 2 AR AR A IR A A B R I A under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
BUE
—O—N\ —0—+k
2018 2017

wHTT W TT
HK$°000 HK$°000

+ g F Land and buildings
— B—4ER — Within one year 113,968 93,788
— B BEHAENRN — After one year but within five years 161,805 165,877
— BHARAR — After five years 21,472 =

297,245 259,665

AREEDVEEM G — L% - fH4  The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The leases
FEAREI Sy — BN o IETHAI A typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years. None of the leases
FEECAH WA - include contingent rentals.
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38 i Bl i B LB

(a) BBt wir i A1) B2 22 36 35 B 2 B A\

38 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated from

FHIRE operations
ZO0O—NA —0—¢
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
Wt i Ve ) Profit before taxation 3,772,490 4,499,068
PHEIEH - Adjustments for:
JRE A [ 42 1 5 Share of net profit of jointly controlled entities (391,372) (642,300)
JRE A B 2 /A ) i Share of net profit of associates (77,785) (1,342)
IR AR IR Net gain on disposal of investment in securities (47,886) (300,144)
I o] 2 B 8 LA B R 2 Net loss on redemption of financial instrument at
ST HZFEiE amortised cost 30,236 =
B HA Y 3 Skt 2 Net gain on disposal of other properties and
T U equipment (404) (97,198)
o B B A ) 2 i i Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary (1,292) =
FIEEBEREAZ Forfeited deposit arising from assets classified as
BT & held for sale (118,333) =
BEWEZ AT EE Fair value gains on investment properties (44,770) (41,747)
RN Impairment losses 850,405 190,708
e Depreciation 187,273 174,717
W ARG IR Amortisation of discount on investment in securities (54,851) (53,216)
Amortisation of discount on certificates of
BT A E IR deposit issued 80,817 38,399
Amortisation of discount on subordinated
ST 2 RE I PR debts issued 394 1,373
BB RREHZE FE A Operating profit before changes in working capital 4,184,922 3,768,318
BEEE (BN, W (Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
7l 3 I AR B ) Bk Placements with and loans and advances to
(=8 A LAz E13) banks maturing beyond three months 411,150 469,344
PAVAFEEFAERERZ Financial assets at fair value through profit
ERE or loss 666,874 (823,183)
B A IR IE Advances and other accounts (6,544,429)  (12,678,898)
Tk 4 fh TR & Derivative financial assets 920,868 (710,963)
BEAM (WD), (Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities:
Chifack -y MR Derivative financial liabilities (25,252) (107,254)
Deposits and balances from banks maturing
] A (A0 A IR E) beyond three months (12,094,733) 3,946,394
LARVES ¢ Deposits from customers 10,365,756 26,712,492
AT 2 AP Certificates of deposit issued 2,915,313 906,254
IR T 2 Al Trading liabilities (77,380) 77,380
FAbRRIE K TR Other accounts and accruals (454,810) 1,383,229
w2 HER AT Cash generated from operations 268,279 22,943,113
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ISHEAHEWELRER (H) 38 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
(b) B4 K %5 W B4 00 H Z &5 i 4 At (b) Analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents
—O0O—N —o—t
2018 2017
BT BT
HKS$°000 HK$’000
JEAF B 4 T A7 T R] 2 Cash and balances with banks 13,373,561 22,474,911
[A] 2 72 B A7 T Bk Placements with and loans and advances to banks
(2 H 7 =18 A A) with original maturity within three months 46,930,176 28,164,690
B e (JREIHA H 7E Treasury bills with original maturity within
=MHA W) three months 1,832,486 =
Rl 2 s (JREIH A Certificates of deposit held with original
TE=M8H R maturity within three months - 19,532
[F A7 (B A 7R Deposits and balances from banks with original
=MEAN) maturity within three months (23,424,931)  (9,048,948)
38,711,292 41,610,185
(c) RE TG B A i B B IR R (c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

NRFMALEHER R EEH N EMEE  The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
By WIEB S KIFBl ) c METEH)  from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
EANAMEHSMBSCRRB &M E  Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
A MEARAERZAHESMERYT  flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

DERABEFEHNBRSRE -

AT 2 % B
Subordinated
debts issued
—ZO—N\ —0—+k
2018 2017
BT BT
HK$’000 HK$°000
w—H—H At 1 January 4,675,302 1,541,841
BT R RIE Subordinated debts issued - 3,117,906
fE3R B BT R A TE Repayment of subordinated debts issued (1,569,960) =
e a1 T 2 BIEMEIHZ Amortisation of discount on subordinated
g debts issued 394 1,373
W 3t T 2 BB R IE Net loss on redemption of subordinated debts
18 issued 16,171 -
R Foreign exchange translation 6,253 14,182
wt+t—-HA=+—H At 31 December 3,128,160 4,675,302
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39 TR 2 B A

W_o—NFE+-_H=Z+—H, —4
B B (H 35 5T20,000,0007C (%5 [A] & W
156,624,0000T) (= O — L 4F : % ¢
20,000,0007C (% [ # %156,257,000
I6)) Z BTG S [ B
FEFMBEER] N> In—E58HE
3% J12,500,0007T (5 [A] #5 %19,578,000
Jt) (O —L4F : 3£702,500,000 (55 [F]
W5 1519,532,00000) ) 2 17 3K 78 & i [ 75
HHEI N CHEM T ERERES
BB o A By AR AT IEAS A AT S = T
DATZIEBAFIN »

Roo—NE+-H=+—H > WEH
AN R 11,892,293,0000T (%5 [A]
#2.154,943,0007C 5 — O — L 4F : %)

SARARBLE A TEAF Bl ~ W 2E 47
R N B A A AT E N &Y 4
T2 N R #1,894,380,0007T (%5 [m] 7 ¥
2,157,320,0007C ; — O — L 4F : &) {&
BE B EIRA - B 95 2 IEH
P OEST o

Woo—NFE+_HA=+—H > —%*
J641,221,0007C (% [A] # 322,808,000
L) (ZO—LF  MEAFEAILET
124,428,0007C (% [ ¥ 972,140,000
Jb)) ZEESNIEBEEEREl N B
7 4E ) 2 3% 5137,656,0007C (45 [A] #s
#294.,891,0007C 5 — O — L4 : £ ¢
100,000,0007T (% [F] # 781,285,000
Jt)) RIS EERI - B B T
ZIE P MO T -

39 Assets pledged as security

At 31 December 2018, a money market deposit of US$20,000,000
(equivalent to HK$156,624,000)(2017: US$20,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$156,257,000)) included in “Cash, balances and placements
with and loans and advances to banks” and a certificate of deposit of
US$2,500,000 (equivalent to HK$19,578,000) (2017: US$2,500,000
(equivalent to HK$19,532,000)) included in “Investment in securities”
have been pledged to the Office of the Comptroller of Currency of the
United States of America as statutory deposits for the Bank’s branch in
Los Angeles and San Francisco.

At 31 December 2018, 2 lots of discounted bills totaling RMB1,892,293,000
(equivalent to HK$2,154,943,000; 2017: Nil) which are included
in “Cash, balances and placements with and loans and advances to
banks” have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowing activity of
RMBI1,894,380,000 (equivalent to HK$2,157,320,000; 2017: Nil) for the
Bank’s branches in Guangzhou and Shenzhen. Those transactions are
entered into by the Group in the normal course of its business.

At 31 December 2018, a security of US$41,221,000 (equivalent to
HK$322,808,000) (2017: 2 securities totalling US$124,428,000
(equivalent to HK$972,140,000)) which is included in “Investment in
securities” has been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowing activity of
US$37,656,000 (equivalent to HK$294,891,000; 2017: US$100,000,000
(equivalent to HK$781,285,000)). The transaction is entered into by the
Group in the normal course of its business.
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40 =N B 8%

2 B s (O AR 1) 55383(1)(d) K&
(oA (R B R 2 Bk K1) 5533
KRB BT P FE 2 B R T B
MR

40 Loans to officers

The aggregate of loans to directors of the Bank and entities connected
with directors disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure of

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Rt+ZHA=+—HZHRXH AR AKX

Balance outstanding at 31 Maximum balance during
December the year
—O0—N\ —~o—+t —O—N\ —0o—t
2018 2017 2018 2017
W T BT T T BT T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Aggregate amount outstanding
&g RFIEZ in respect of principal and

4R MR interest 16 26 242 3,828

41 ERABEANLZRY

JEAR LA ANSR BAE LE W P 6 S B T B
AERENLES ZRITR S > AR
A AR PRBR SO A B AR B 2E 5
RN FUNS RS R SN
Al AT Z EEATEN B R R E
BRSNS A B I Bz A N B
il BT B HATHEEREE N Z AT - %
55 22 by LAEAT & 38 By W 2 AR B i 35
SEAE > A BLASE F TR T A 5 5
BFREF M GRFOESR - EHR
o W55 3 5y Ty — R SERGT AL o
W TE A B 755 i 3 At b 7 BT 8 % 2 32
DA BRAN > A5 [ By 2 B p) — 1) HoAth B
REBENLZZ G IR TH -

41 Material related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain banking transactions
with related parties in the normal course of business, which include
loans, deposits, insurance and other financial related transactions. These
related parties are those companies which have control over the Group,
key management personnel of the Bank, close members of their families
and companies controlled or significantly influenced by the Group or
by them. The transactions were priced at the relevant market rates at the
time of each transaction, and were on the same terms as those available
to other counterparties and customers of the Group. In the opinion of
the directors, these transactions were conducted on normal commercial
terms. In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
the financial statements, other material related party transactions entered
into by the Group are set out on the following pages.
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41 ERABEANLZRY (4) 41 Material related party transactions (Continued)
o] FE Hofs
Pl TBAE HREAL
el | Jointly Key Other
Holding  controlled W% 4% management related it
company entities ~ Associates  personnel parties Total

whTr  WWTn #WTx gRTx EWTx #WTx
HK$’000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000

ZO— N\ 2018

Aggregate amounts outstanding

T4 B 45 AR at the year end
— SR NI M MEWIRIE  — Loans and other receivables 407,683 47,705 3,633 11,143 600,008 1,070,172
— R — Placement of deposits 931,680 - - - - 931,680
- EF {7 ~ Deposits from customers 3,130,711 969,178 97,290 63,826 430,272 4,691,277
— HABRIE K 78 4% — Other accounts and accruals - - - 9 97 106
B A RRIMG Off-balance sheet outstanding
—SMESH — Exchange rate contracts
(%FEL2H) (notional amounts) 5,419,793 - - - - 5,419,793
— HAh & — Other commitments - 13,799 167 2,154 152 16,272
— I HAE (R ~ Guarantee received 14,402,397 - - - - 14,402,397
TR B ORA E Income for the year received from
ANEZ A related parties
— FEHA ~ Interest income 355,727 35 - 220 97 356,079
— HiE A — Other operating income 14,623 8,966 385 99 27 24,100
— REREFEBIA — Net insurance operating income - - 8,075 - - 8,075
370,350 9,001 8,460 319 124 388,254
REEINTARE Expenses for the year paid to
ANEZER related parties
— FIE — Interest expenses 51,176 14,890 10 838 557 67,471
— MR & R4 3 — Fees and commission expenses 11 - 1 1 46,642 46,655
—HETH — Operating expenses - 322 _ _ _ 3
— RBE R — Net insurance operating expenses - 1,790 723 - - 2,513

51,187 17,002 734 839 47,199 116,961
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41 EARAHEANLZRZY (#)

41 Material related party transactions (Continued)

A TE ity

Pl E R fTRAR AEEAL

PR ) Jointly Key Other
Holding ~ controlled ¥/ F] management related &5
company entities ~ Associates  personnel parties Total

wRTr T wWTr BETr BNTr BN T
HK$°000 ~ HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000

—O0—tF 2017

Aggregate amounts outstanding

T4 B 45 AR at the year end
— SR REMEYURIE  — Loans and other receivables 37,685 81 6,080 10,568 12 54,426
— R — Placement of deposits 1,486,327 = = = 1,486,327
- &R — Deposits from customers 2,819,962 773,784 2,558 38,958 407,842 4,043,104
— HAWMRIE KR — Other accounts and accruals = - - 6 _ 6
B AERIME Off-balance sheet outstanding
—MESH — Exchange rate contracts
(%FE28H) (notional amounts) 63,811 = = = = 63,811
— HitRiE — Other commitments = 1,629 = 2,432 148 4,209
— I HLAE (R ~ Guarantee received 5,264,135 - - - - 5,264,135
TR B ORA E Income for the year received
ANEZ A from related parties
— R A — Interest income 179,792 - - 139 12 179,943
— HAbEERA ~ Other operating income 76 7,870 1 52 16 8,015
— REERFRA — Net insurance operating income - 9,424 - - - 9,424
179,868 17,294 1 191 28 197,382
REEAFHBE  Expenses for the year paid
ANEZER to related parties
—FE Il — Interest expenses 90,487 9,055 = 521 2,965 103,028
— B ke — Fees and commission expenses 9 1 = 8 49,566 49,584
—BETH — Operating expenses - 32 _ _ _ 1
— RBE R — Net insurance operating expenses - 3,154 1,358 - 1,060 5,572
90,496 12,242 1,358 529 53,591 158,216

MWNZo—NE+_H=+—H &7
16 H W EB R i — i o
1738 5 B HE 1) I i B I AT B Jag /A D 3K
TE 48 28 4 Al B ¥ %5124,043,0000T (.
O —-L4E : #%81,610,00070) M ik ¥
1,163,648,0000C (= O — b 4F : i
1,012,410,0007T) °

WRoo—/4E+"A=+—H  AEMH
B bl A BN L BT —
s Bt g (L Y8 5 75 #°320,0000C (O —-k
4 ) o

As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising from
transactions entered into during the normal course of business at
commercial terms are HK$124,043,000 (2017: HK$81,610,000) and
HK$1,163,648,000 (2017: HK$1,012,410,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised Stage 1 impairment
allowances of HK$320,000 in respect of loans granted to related parties
(2017: Nil).
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41 EARAHEANLZRZY (#)
FRATBA B H

AEBMAEBITHANE » QAT TA
738 R B B B A an R

41 Material related party transactions (Continued)
Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group including
amounts paid to or receivable by the Bank’s directors is as follows:

—O0—N\ —o—t

2018 2017
T T
HKS$’000 HK$°000

HiH - B AL N HoAb A IR A Salaries, bonus and other short-term benefits 45,456 41,730
BARAE F Retirement benefits 3,218 2,700
48,674 44,430

42 BESS W) Bt 2 52 L W)

ASE M 2 BN R R B MR RN R A
22 N BN B 5 1 22 3w R AT A4 A BR

A -
43 W% I
RoO—JutE—A+EH » A5 %

JE400,000,0007T 7K #4757 IF 2 R 1% 18 %8 4

42 Immediate and ultimate holding company

The directors consider that the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Group to be China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., which is
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China.

43 Events after the balance sheet date

On 17 January 2019, the Bank issued US$400,000,000 undated
non-cumulative subordinated additional Tier 1 capital securities.
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A A I S AR B ) e A AR B 2 B
A5 5 USRS 4R ISR A 2 — {1
2B H > EAEARIEIT > B
P A I B BB (5 8, > Sl 7R T B S B R
(19 D ) R R0 T B i o R B S R
9 R REE ~ 2o - YEREYE - R E
SEREVER G R

WENBEERATERANZBEE O
G CBRAT ¥ (B ER) B BRI A
PR o BT R 0l A AN 4E [ 4 B (http://

www.cmbwinglungbank.com) A1 |5 o

PATR A 2 B P B B R i SR
B HEAE ORI A R AR AL A B
Rz — By o

1 AT R

TSI BE R ORECEFZ)

Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

This Annual Report and the Regulatory Disclosures are prepared
according to the Group’s disclosure policy. The disclosure policy sets out
a robust mechanism for the Group’s disclosures of financial information
on a legitimate and compliant basis. It depicts the principles and internal
control measures to ensure the timeliness, fairness, accuracy, integrity,
completeness and legitimacy of financial disclosures.

The Regulatory Disclosures, together with the disclosures in this Annual
Report, contain all the disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure)
Rules. The Regulatory Disclosures is available on the Bank’s website at
http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying
information to the consolidated financial statements and does not form

part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

1 Capital adequacy ratio

—O—N —0—t
2018 2017

EAR R Capital ratios
— R A AR R — Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 12.7% 12.2%
— —REARE — Tier 1 capital ratio 14.8% 14.4%
— R R — Total capital ratio 18.0% 18.2%

BR_O— N+ _HA=+—HEK_0—
LEFT A= HZERERTIRE
T s 4 A B S P 8 R B CGERATE (&
) HHD FHE o

MRAE CRATHE (CEA) BRI > A 4L B
FEBRAA [HEYE DTk | 5H 58 15 B L B S T
5 By 2 Ja B b A > DA BR T T
AAGBEITIE | R EE E R

The capital ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were
compiled in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA”).

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Group has adopted
the “standardised approach” for the calculation of the risk-weighted
assets for credit risk and market risk, and the “basic indicator approach”
for the calculation of operational risk.

—O0—N\ —o—t
2018 2017
BARLE Capital buffers
— iR EA R — Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.88% 1.25%
— 750 R A48 h A R — Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 1.07% 0.71%

A0 0 2% A B R T R T TR A 4
44 H(http://www.cmbwinglungbank.
com) NI o

RO —NF+_HAH=Z+—HEK -O0—
tEFZH=+—H > FistEEARLR
Ko FE AR HE 3R 22 4 5 LA T R B B TS i R
Z AR EERE > HRER S A T S A B A
T g A e

The additional information of countercyclical capital buffer ratio is
available on the Bank’s website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

The basis of consolidation for calculation of the capital ratios and
leverage ratio at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 follows
the basis of consolidation for financial reporting but excludes certain
subsidiaries as set out in the following table.
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1 BEARTER R (4)
Wi B > ) 14 M T M M AR AR AN T

1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

The total assets and total equity of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Z0—A 20—t
2018 2017
dmEE  EEAE mEE  EAAE
Total assets  Total equity ~ Total assets ~ Total equity
wHTT  WWTo  BWTT BT
B Name FEEH Principal activities HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
B KERRAERARS CMB Wing Lung Insurance  fRIREH Insurance underwriting 3,345,207 1,191,710 3398,668 1,232,957
Company Limited®
MK BEMEARATe CMB Wing Lung Capital BB R Financial consultancy 17,158 7,993 17,286 15,696
Limited® services
R KERBARAR  CMB Wing Lung Finance RABBME  Provision of financial 31,008 30,386 31,000 30,880
Limited services
W KEEEEHAR  CMB Wing Lung Asset BREH Asset management 178,906 178,795 165,372 163,813
/NG Management Limited®
TRk EAHRATC  CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) {5 E3EH Trustee services 22,283 20,781 17,713 15,980
Limited®
KR RBEREAR  CMB Wing Lung Insurance TRBR Insurance broking 136,783 140,034 43,009 76,603
A Brokers Limited
B KBERIARAT  CMB Wing Lung Agency et Insurance agency 190,676 144,246 137,199 17,190
Limited
B KEZAMNEAR  CMB Wing Lung (Nominees)  Z#tfUEM#  Nominee services 10 10 10 10
NG Limited®
MR EEERAFC  CMB Wing Lung Property WEEH Property management - (172) - (159)
Management Limited®
RARR AT Hongnet Limited® REEH Investment holding 3,804 3873 3,908 3,886
Wingspan Incorporated ~ Wingspan Incorporated MERA Property holding 29,703 11,458 30,322 11,553
Wing Lung Opportunities  Wing Lung Opportunities BT Investment holding 285,900 284,475 347,065 340,214
Fund Limited® Fund Limited@
Wing Lung Opportunities  Wing Lung Opportunities BT Investment holding 286,326 285,358 347,724 347,018
Master Fund Limited®  Master Fund Limited®
Wing Lung Growth Fund ~ Wing Lung Growth Fund REEK Investment holding 280,206 261,685 329,088 314,933
I Segregated Portfolio® 1T Segregated Portfolio®
WA EARA Sea Wing Investments Limited #2454 Property holding 5,126 (4,993) 5,010 (5,202)
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1 BEARTER R (4)

1 Capital adequacy ratio (Continued)

Z0—N
2018
dgE B
Total assets ~ Total equity

~0—t
2017
aEE MG
Total assets ~ Total equity

wRTr  wRTx  ERTx BNt
4% Name FEEH  Principal activities HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
MR KRR EEH  CMB Wing Lung Equity BehEftEEH  Bauity investment 18,412 18,118 19,409 19,165
(Y AR Investment Management management

(Shenzhen) Limited

ZEARAT@ Antopex Limited® ERES Trustee services - - - -
REARAA@ Bulleria Limited® (e Trustee services - - - -
HEARAT@ Cameland Limited® (e Trustee services - - = -
EHARAT@ Deeright Limited® ERES Trustee services - - = -
EBARAFQ Eaglearn Limited® fa st 5 Trustee services - - = -

@ AEERE_O—NE+_A=+
—HEk—O—t4#E+=-H=1T—H
ZEEAEARL R WSS

NE

@ Companies excluded in the computation of the consolidated capital
ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 for regulatory

reporting purposes.
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2 R R

Hoo—/NFE+_HA=+—HK _-0—
LEFT A= — HER R T
T s R R A 2 CRELRE FE 2R AE 42 )
FHE o

2 Leverage ratio

The leverage ratio as at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were
compiled in accordance with the Leverage Ratio Framework issued by
the HKMA.

—O—N —0o—+k
2018 2017
FE AR 2 Leverage ratio 9.86% 9.74%

= A B < A I N S
(http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com) Al
B -

3 B RO

The additional information of leverage ratio is available on the Bank’s
website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

3 Liquidity position

#7l

Restated

—O—N\ — 0=
2018 2017

B M LR Average liquidity coverage ratio

— = — First quarter 147.4% B n.a.
— B — Second quarter 150.8%  AEMH n.a.
— E3=2% — Third quarter 164.4%  A#H na.
— S — Fourth quarter 166.3% 148.9%
TRE Ea T % Net stable funding ratio

— B — First quarter 125.3%  AN@EHn.a.
— & — Second quarter 125.2%  AN@EHn.a.
— == — Third quarter 137.3%  A@EHn.a.
I LES — Fourth quarter 132.1%  A@EHn.a.

SF- ¥ B M A bR AR PR (AR AT
(FREE) BLED) 2B 10(1) (b)Y FE 45 & %
B I DA R% 2 B 0 91 DA H A& R U
BT 2 ARG BT B o

BEESFHEL R IR GRITE K
k) BT S10(1)(b) 5 LA JE 454 St
FIE > R ARARDL o

U B <R L Al T R AT A A A T A
(http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com) Al
BI5E -

The average liquidity coverage ratio is calculated as the arithmetic mean
of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of each working day in the
quarter on an unconsolidated basis in accordance with rule 10(1)(b) of
the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The net stable funding ratio reflects the quarter end position and is
calculated on an unconsolidated basis in accordance with rule 10(1)(b) of
the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

The additional information of liquidity position is available on the

Bank’s website at http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com.

—0—+t
2017

TN EMERR R Liquidity maintenance ratio 46.2%
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3WHE MO (H)

T B M A LR T AR R GRATZE (R Eh
PE) BLAD 2510(1)(b)Mh LA I 45 & SE 5 I
DHZ_O—t#E—H—HE_O0—L4&
JA=+THBREHEEA 2 FHEFAE
Z B8 o

ALEBE BER  FrE - B MR
Bl E HAZ - ZERERAFE T - AREE 2R
o L B 7 L R IS R B S R R R
434 o

4 B LD

REE AN AT > RITEAR
W L5 W RR A I VR AR AR Y 10% B LA |

3 Liquidity position (Continued)

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the arithmetic mean
of each calendar month’s average value for the reporting period from
1 January 2017 to 30 September 2017 on an unconsolidated basis in
accordance with rule 10(1)(b) of the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

Objective, framework and process are in place for governance,
measurement and monitoring of the Group’s liquidity risk. Details of the
Group’s liquidity risk management approach are set out in Note 4.3 to
the financial statements.

4 Currency concentration

The US dollar and RMB net positions constitute 10% or more of the
total net position in all foreign currencies of the Group and are reported

B LA WSS 5 - in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:

eV NG

US dollar RMB
—ZO0—N\ —0O—t ZO—N —O0—1t
2018 2017 2018 2017
BT BT oo BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEgE Spot assets 111,693,924 83,620,178 45,187,007 53,070,713
BEAR Spot liabilities (67,316,740)  (62,369,601) (51,375,581) (54,509,739)
HIE A Forward purchases 26,565,394 31,493,978 27,798,587 21,112,117
7 15 Forward sales (67,829,529) (49,759,023) (18,050,170) (15,584,346)
HIREF A Net option position (7,718) (4,208) (3,368) 5,138
BREH Net long position 3,105,331 2,981,324 3,556,475 4,093,883

SR R R AR 8 A 9 < L LR S
[HNREFS A ] H SRR BT 2 [ 45 1 35 i b
il 7 GHR -

AL E T AN S A R R R
UNGRL g T g SR s
FEERY10%8E LA b > B LS W45 1 51 3
mr :

The net option position is calculated based on the delta-weighted position
approach set out in the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position”
issued by the HKMA.

The US dollar and RMB net structural positions constitute 10% or more
of the total net structural position in all foreign currencies of the Group
and are reported in Hong Kong dollar equivalent as follows:

—O—N —o—+t

2018 2017

b1 BT

HK$°000 HK$’000

AERETE S R Net structural position

=T US dollar 690,747 690,747
N RMB 2,714,178 2,006,129
3,404,925 2,696,876
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5 s ME R

(a) AT W FH P B3R ABH

5 Segmental information

(a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors

ZO0—N\ —0=1%
2018 2017
R4 b A HEA b 4G
% PR HF K
ZHIK ZHAH
% of gross % of gross
advances advances
WHETIC  covered by T covered by
HK$’000 collateral HKS$’000 collateral
ERBHE N8R Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
BN financial
LB Property development 4,405,280 38.7 5,942,656 72.7
YEERE Property investment 12,556,276 84.2 9,739,970 94.9
LA Financial concerns 29,465,612 35.8 24,942,502 27.9
i &Skl Stockbrokers 2,131,645 12.5 5,041,477 7.4
HaE R EEE Wholesale and retail trade 1,385,941 50.1 970,855 46.2
LEE S Manufacturing 303,377 48.5 361,210 52.2
Transport and transport
78R i 7 A e equipment 2,337,112 1.1 3,656,432 0.9
i 4 3 Recreational activities 574 100.0 2,378 100.0
iR Information technology 5,648 23.7 299,038 20.7
HoAt Others 17,049,438 36.3 13,448,747 37.6
A Individuals
Loans for the purchase
WE [EEAHLE of flats in the Home
AEE] - TRAN Ownership Scheme,
ZfE R Private Sector Participation
B[ EHE Scheme and Tenants
FT# ) SO A Purchase Scheme or their
14 1% 4 T B A respective successor
ZHER schemes 391,048 100.0 450,711 100.0
W B AT B3 Loans for the purchase of
1 Bk other residential properties 7,637,732 100.0 8,224,073 100.0
5 R Credit card advances 217,395 - 243,942 =
oAt Others 14,038,981 89.1 12,948,858 86.5
B o g Trade finance 1,385,311 28.6 615,114 56.0
93,311,370 54.7 86,887,963 54.0
Loans for use outside
TEHBELSMEMN 2 E3  Hong Kong 64,448,209 241 63,950,537 27.7
157,759,579 42.2 150,838,500 42.8
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5aBER (8) 5 Segmental information (Continued)
(a) AT ES M E P B AH () (a) Gross advances to customers by industry sectors (Continued)

HATENBZ ZEF AR DR EF B The gross amount of impaired loans, impairment allowances, amount of
HAFE10% BRI > O BM(ES R ~ W{E  new impairment allowances charged to income statement and the amount
HEM ~ W HG (B R ST 2 AR R S of impaired loans written off for those industry sectors which constitute

W U SR BT AT not less than 10% of gross advances to customers is analysed as follows:
i3 fE

EX/ €83 ks 2

New A Bk

il 0FL e impairment ZeH

S Impairment allowances allowances  Amount of

Bk charged impaired

Impaired E—FEE HHBE HEBB to income loans

loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 statement written off
EHTe ERTo #WTo #%Tx T W% T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000

ZO— N\ 2018
A 2 B Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
T4 financial
— SR bE ~ Financial concerns - 17918 33,648 - 19,401 -
— Hits — Others 2239 20,251 802 426 7,422 53,886
Loans for use outside
TR U ASME I 2 B3k Hong Kong 689,975 60,349 7,279 474,563 315,444 -
692,214 98,518 41,729 474,989 342,267 53,886
e (E
TEAHG o 13
EXLEES WERE
New U (E K
A impairment x|
o {E BEYE @5 allowances  Amount of
B Collective  JH(EHEM charged impaired
Impaired impairment  Individual to income loans
loans allowance  impairment statement  written off
BTt W Tor  allowance W TT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—O—t4# 2017
TEF WA 2 B3 Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
L 4 financial
— SRl — Financial concerns - 42,062 - 12,371 -
5 s LA Mt Loans for use outside
ZEHK Hong Kong 709,469 137,834 270,620 281,339 -

709,469 179,896 270,620 293,710 -
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5 FER () 5 Segmental information (Continued)

(b) EB S EZEFEHR - @HE  (b) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers, overdue
aX > CIAE Bk B A advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances

LB 2 B F & @M The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers,
A EE BRSO EER 2 RIESLS  overdue advances, impaired loans and impairment allowances is based
HFZ e AR M > W E S % A on the location of the counterparty, after taking into account the transfer

BB K R B RS o of risk in respect of such advances where appropriate.
AR
Impairment allowance
BEREB
Stage 3
aH=MmA wH=MmA
VL B VLB # Bk
Overdue Overdue
B % advances advances
Gross for over CI{HE K for over CLURALE
advances to three  Impaired H—FFB B ZREB three  Impaired
customers months loans  Stage 1 Stage 2 months loans

wHTT  #WTx  EWTx #WTx #WTx  E%TIT  #WTx
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000  HKS$’000

ZO—N\4& 2018
s Hong Kong 83,262,150 14,760 496,138 62,839 24,130 4,093 267,505
People’s Republic
e A R LA B of China 52,302,277 349,138 349,139 21,754 5,005 281,828 281,828
HAth Others 22,195,152 - - 34,153 26,555 - -
157,759,579 363,898 845,277 118,746 55,690 285,921 549,333
118 51 9k A
Individual
impairment allowance

i =1H H =14 A

PAE A BR Ph b B

Overdue LA Overdue

Ee ek advances B (E A advances
Gross for over CELM(HEZ  Collective for over L I {H &K
advances to three Impaired  impairment three Impaired
customers months loans  allowance months loans
wHTr BT W% Tr W%t B¥Tr  B%Tr
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000

—O0—t# 2017

s Hong Kong 85,226,345 71,264 214,638 145,779 11,603 26,927
HiE N RALAE People’s Republic of China 45,679,364 67,982 542,980 120,551 48,942 297,293
HAty Others 19,932,791 6,905 77,077 29,340 - 7,404

150,838,500 146,151 834,695 295,670 60,545 331,624
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5 FER ()
(c) I B f e

A5 [ DA S 3t 52 5y ) T e AR IS S i 2
e > B AR U8 52 B 3t T 6 JL By 1 A AR
AR 22 [ 3R > A 2 I R AR 22 23 A o
A o BT 2 R R S — e
(7] [ 2% By N A DR R RO 3 —
] SR AT 2 Sh o AT o T AR Y mLR A R
— AN TR B Ko e g A e B % o — {1
B 2 RS B ) — (R B 5K o % 5 [ A

5 Segmental information (Continued)
(c) International claims

The Group analyses international claims by exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according
to the location of the counterparties after taking into account any transfer
of risk. The transfer of risk from one country to another is recognised
if the claims against a counterparty are guaranteed by another party in
a different country or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank
whose head office is located in a different country. Those areas which
contribute 10% or more of the aggregate international claims are as

W HE AR AR 10% B L 3 > BRI follows:
T
FRITRERE
Non-bank private sector
AT
SRBE e
HHHHE  Non-bank OB e
g} Official financial  Non-financial it
Banks sector institutions private sector Total
EWTe  #WTc BT E¥Te  E¥ T
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$’000
ZO— N\ 2018
Lig P Developed Countries 30,959,324 1,746,428 2,091,974 2,053,246 36,850,972
— He o EH — of which: United States 21,281,606 1,549,819 1,532,714 1,994,469 26,358,608
B L Offshore Centers 8,108,997 9,315 14,642,801 27,236,219 49,997,332
—Hr o Fik — of which: Hong Kong 6,476,067 4,857 7,996,297 14,952,661 29,429,882
Developing Latin America
BERPHL T RMAN N L and Caribbean 9,184 - - 186,375 195,559
Developing Africa and
B I A R R Middle East 943,227 44 - - 943,271
B Kb R Developing Asia Pacific 67,856,006 1,115,203 8,040,939 19,434,191 96,446,339
— of which: People’s
—Hrp o NRIEAE Republic of China 63,454,103 1,108,127 8,040,939 19,226,428 91,829,597
107,876,738 2,870,990 24,775,714 48,910,031 184,433,473
ZO—t# 2017
BEBK Developed Countries 12,293,815 1,463,737 1,464,950 3,535,276 18,757,778
— M ER — of which: United States 4,502,213 1,292,703 1,128,000 2,706,878 9,629,794
L Offshore Centers 5,895,898 17,028 14,109,367 32,800,790 52,823,083
— Hrp o B — of which: Hong Kong 5,659,162 6,852 11,681,246 18,387,102 35,734,362
Developing Latin America
SRR T E WA H and Caribbean - - - 196,431 196,431
Developing Africa and
B e TR NN o R [ Middle East 392,670 34 - 57,023 449,727
B R K3 [ Developing Asia Pacific 38,648,016 333,824 13,243,129 20,731,936 72,956,905
— of which: People’s
e AR E YN Republic of China 36,942,720 323,132 13,243,129 20,452,132 70,961,113
57,230,399 1,814,623 28,817,446 57,321,456 145,183,924
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6 7 ) B 2% ¥ A e 6 Overdue and rescheduled assets
(a) W Bk (a) Overdue advances
AEEZ K FmEHS T The Group’s overdue advances to customers are analysed as follows:
—O0—N\ —o—t
2018 2017
(-9 &R
Bk A B
ZHGK ZHH
% of total % of total

W TIC advances to WHTIC  advances to
HK$°000 customers HKS$’000 customers

Gross amount of advances

ks > Hoaiy which have been overdue for:
— ZMfAM % — Six months or less, but over
75 H three months 208,983 0.13 13,946 0.01
—AEAMER — One year or less, but over
— 4 six months 147,582 0.09 47,430 0.03
— —4EDL E — Over one year 7,333 0.01 84,775 0.06
363,898 0.23 146,151 0.10
A AT 2 56 B K Secured overdue advances 119,941 83,650
JHEAG 4 2 3 HH B K Unsecured overdue advances 243,957 62,501
363,898 146,151
Market value of collateral held
ST g 1 0 = against the secured overdue
JIT 5 2 A i TR advances 145,297 124,349
Ea il et Impairment allowances made
I AE e in respect of such advances
— B =REY — Stage 3 285,921 =
— i B BRAG — Individually assessed - 60,545

HR_O0—NFE+_H=1+—H>FZ* At 31 December 2018, there were no advances to banks which were
Al e ) =M H A £ (O —-+t  overdue for over three months (2017: Nil).
A ) o

St BB R A 2 K3 S FZ A MEE Collateral held with respect to overdue advances are mainly residential
L/ E properties.
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6 W RREMERE (H)
(b) il 36 ) %

6 Overdue and rescheduled assets (Continued)
(b) Other overdue assets

AL 2 A B AT

The Group’s other overdue assets are analysed as follows:

ZO0—NA\ —0—t
2018 2017
EHRE  EAHNA EHHE AR
Debt  Accrued et Debt  Accrued ARl
securities interest Total  securities interest Total
T WRTX Wtk Wt BWT B%T
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000  HKS’000  HKS$’000

Gross amount of other assets
which have been overdue for:
— Six months or less,
but over three months - 21 21 - 105 105
— One year or less,

S E A e

— ZfALEZEAMEA

—A~MEAA ML E—4E but over six months 136,050 6,942 142,992 = 357 357
— —4 Dk — Over one year - 562 562 - 7,582 7,582
136,050 7,525 143,575 - 8,044 8,044

(c) REMEX

(c¢) Rescheduled advances

A B2 ) 2 R AL AR (2 98 PR A 1 e 2
=8 A Sl AE Al (a) T A 5 B 2 O 2

The Group’s rescheduled advances (net of those which have been
overdue for over three months and reported in item (a) above) are as

Mranw - follows:
—O—N\ — 00—+t
2018 2017
(9=l % F
Bk B
ZHAGW ZHEH
% of total % of total
W Tt advancesto T IT  advances to
HK$’000 customers HKS$’000  customers
Rescheduled advances to

KEMAKF RN customers 473,967 0.30 736,416 0.49

o — N+ _H=+—H: 2 At 31 December
(2017: Nil).

gHxhitmgEHAZERX (COo—t
A ) o

2018, there were no rescheduled advances to banks



220

Annual Report 2018 CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

BRI K PESRAT A RA T .0 — /UFE4EH

HiTEIB ER OREEEFZ)

Supplementary Financial Information (Unaudited)

7 B A JE R AT JE B

*E%@ﬁ 3 (fisk) MAD > DU S

SRAT 2 5 3 T 19 Mo A BR AR A5 R B A 2
ﬁ*ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁi”"l@%ﬂﬁWi&%i‘%
HR S 3% BT 97 2 A S e L 4 L i 2 8

7 Non-bank Mainland exposures

The following analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct exposures
defined by the HKMA under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules with
reference to the HKMA return of Mainland activities. This analysis

A AT B o LR RAEFE R AAT L H AHL  includes exposures extended by the Bank and its Mainland branches
AT TR 2 1R B A o only.
BEAfME EEAME
DRz BB PAAh BB
On-balance  Off-balance A )l o 7
sheet exposure sheet exposure Total
BT T T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
“O— N\ 2018
Central government, central
government-owned entities and
— HREUR - R BUR R B their subsidiaries and joint ventures
WEHTRAFAMEEMRR (Vs) 30,883,277 2,000,697 32,883,974
Local governments, local
= MU - M BUN R R government-owned entities and
WRETARMGERFE their subsidiaries and JVs 8,929,205 81,890 9,011,095
PRC nationals residing in Mainland
= JE A A Y R A R R AR China or other entities incorporated
B8] A AR S ) A A 1 B in Mainland China and their
HyArmaghsk subsidiaries and JVs 58,920,698 9,083,427 68,004,125
PO At A A4 7 55 — JH H iy o Other entities of central government
JLELRT 2 B not reported in item 1 above 1,895,950 - 1,895,950
T HA R GRS S I A ot Other entities of local governments
T5 BUN £ B not reported in item 2 above 1,632,142 29,641 1,661,783
PRC nationals residing outside
N HEAHBSE MBI A R K& Mainland China or entities
HH B A DA A Eﬁi FA A B incorporated outside Mainland
2 B HERRBA China where the credit is granted
i F for use in Mainland China 5,628,945 2,295,551 7,924,496
Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered by the
L AL A B A FE R AT R Bank to be non-bank Mainland
R China exposures 5,815,651 53,609 5,869,260
113,705,868 13,544,815 127,250,683
TEYE AR 10 A R Total assets after provision 316,672,389
B A ERANZ BB & E On-balance sheet exposures as
MEZHESN percentage of total assets 35.91%
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7 Non-bank Mainland exposures (Continued)

FEAMREK BEAER
PALA Z JE B A PSR 2 Ja\ B BE
On-balance  Off-balance
sheet sheet A8 B B
exposure exposure Total
T T T T
Gl Restated HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
—O—t& 2017
1 Central government, central
— B - PREIFREA government-owned entities
IHRE XL T ARG and their subsidiaries and joint
T ventures (JVs) 37,846,723 5,562,534 43,409,257
= BN > MO B R 2 Local governments, local
MR B A R A government-owned entities and
G their subsidiaries and JVs 9,105,932 424,781 9,530,713
= JEfE R A AR 3 PRC nationals residing in
N AE ] A b ST ) G Mainland China or other entities
B s S HL T A W RL A incorporated in Mainland China
EA and their subsidiaries and JVs 43,286,038 6,603,880 49,889,918
4 Other entities of central
O HAb R ELAE LRSS — Y government not reported in item
F o S R 2 B B A 1 above 2,702,663 369,211 3,071,874
5 Other entities of local
T HAR AR —IH Y governments not reported in
Fh i 77 BT 2 B B A item 2 above 890,012 = 890,012
6 PRC nationals residing outside
7N B E AR BB AN Mainland China or entities
B % P R A s DA A1 ST incorporated outside Mainland
A T 41 Hh 2 B China where the credit is granted
AR I 7R f for use in Mainland China 4,127,496 2,787,772 6,915,268
7 Other counterparties where the
exposures are considered by the
£ oA AR 2y B A IR R AT R Bank to be non-bank Mainland
Wi 7R A China exposures 7,847,908 203,242 8,051,150
105,806,772 15,951,420 121,758,192
T E AR % 1Y) B AR Total assets after provision 300,266,309
EEABERANZEMEENE  On-balance sheet exposures as
EEMAEZHOI percentage of total assets 35.24%
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HEAD OFFICE

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

Website: http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com

Telephone: (852) 2309 5555

LOCAL BRANCHES
Hong Kong Island

North Point
Central District
Western District
Happy Valley
Causeway Bay
Quarry Bay
Aberdeen
Johnston Road
Kennedy Town
Sai Wan Ho
Fortress Hill

Kowloon

Prince Edward

Sham Shui Po

San Po Kong

Mongkok

Kwun Tong

Tsim Sha Tsui

To Kwa Wan

Tsz Wan Shan

Kowloon Bay

Hunghom

Lam Tin Sceneway Plaza
Mei Foo Sun Chuen
Kwun Tong Shing Yip Street
Express Rail Link Branch

361 King’s Road

189 Des Voeux Road Central
262 Queen’s Road West
44 King Kwong Street
262 Gloucester Road

1A Westlands Road

201 Aberdeen Main Road
118 Johnston Road

28 Catchick Street

123 Shaukeiwan Road
101 King’s Road

17 Lai Chi Kok Road

111 Tai Po Road

8 Shung Ling Street

Wing Lung Bank Centre, 636 Nathan Road
339 Ngau Tau Kok Road

4 Carnarvon Road

64 To Kwa Wan Road

25 Fung Tak Road

19 Lam Lok Street

28 Wuhu Street

Shop 59, 3/F, Sceneway Plaza
Shop N94, 1/F, Mount Sterling Mall
Shop 149, 1/E, E Plaza, Legend Tower
Shop No WEK G-1, G/F, Hong Kong
West Kowloon Station
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LOCAL BRANCHES

New Territories

Tsuen Wan 251 Sha Tsui Road

Tai Wai 8 Tai Wai Road

Yuen Long 37 On Ning Road

Tuen Mun 42 Tuen Mun Heung Sze Wui Road
Sheung Shui 128 San Fung Avenue

Tai Po 1 On Chee Road
Shop 2, Level 1, Shatin Plaza
Shop 238, Metro City Phase 1

Shatin Plaza
Tseung Kwan O Metro City

MAINLAND BRANCHES

Shenzhen Branch

Room 5301, 53/F, Tower A, Kingkey 100 Building

No. 5016 Shennan East Road, Luohu District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shenzhen Qianhai Sub-branch

Room 2203, Block B, Tiley Central Plaza
No. 3 Haide Road, Nanshan District
Shenzhen, PRC

Shanghai Branch

Room 2601-2609

Phase II Office Tower Shanghai IFC
8 Century Avenue, Pudong New Area
Shanghai, PRC

Guangzhou Branch

Room 4202-4204, 42/F

Guangzhou International Finance Center

No.5 Zhujiang Road West, Zhujiang New Town
Tianhe District Guangzhou, PRC

MACAU BRANCH, CHINA

Macau Branch

Baia da Praia Grande, No. S/N, Fecho
BPG-Zona A-Lote 5, R/C A

Finance and IT Center of Macau

il Telephone

(86 755) 2294 9300

(86 755) 2294 9415

(86 21) 2035 7199

(86 20) 3895 0078

# il Telephone

(853) 2888 8111
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Bank Offices and Subsidiaries
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OVERSEAS BRANCHES
Los Angeles Branch # il Telephone
520 Newport Center Drive
Newport Beach, CA 92660
U.S.A (949) 269-3000

San Francisco Branch

One Market Plaza

Steuart Tower, Suite 1200

San Francisco, CA94105

U.S.A (415) 400-8700

SUBSIDIARIES

CMB Wing Lung Insurance Company Limited
CMB Wing Lung Capital Limited

CMB Wing Lung Finance Limited

CMB Wing Lung Asset Management Limited
CMB Wing Lung (Trustee) Limited

CMB Wing Lung Insurance Brokers Limited

8 K R A A PR A 7] CMB Wing Lung Agency Limited

AR K REZ R EARA A CMB Wing Lung (Nominees) Limited

TH R K RS A BRA A CMB Wing Lung Property Management Limited
JA A AT Hongnet Limited

Wingspan Incorporated

Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited

Wing Lung Opportunities
Master Fund Limited

Wingspan Incorporated
Wing Lung Opportunities Fund Limited
Wing Lung Opportunities

Master Fund Limited

K B & A BRA Sea Wing Investments Limited
GHA R Antopex Limited

PREEA R A Bulleria Limited

SRAE A BRA A Cameland Limited

T A R Deeright Limited

B A R AT Eaglearn Limited

A K PR REE (EYI) ARA T CMB Wing Lung Equity Investment Management
(Shenzhen) Limited

Wing Lung Growth Fund SPC Limited
— Wing Lung Growth Fund III

Segregated Portfolio

Wing Lung Growth Fund SPC Limited
— Wing Lung Growth Fund III
Segregated Portfolio
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CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

A R 45k

45 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

http://www.cmbwinglungbank.com
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